
 

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Stephen Loach Tel: 01609 532216 
or e-mail stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk 

Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
OFFICIAL 

 
Agenda 

Notice of a public meeting of 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 

  

To: Councillors Peter Sowray (Chairman), David Blades 
(Vice-Chair), Caroline Goodrick, Eric Broadbent, 
Robert Heseltine, David Hugill, Mike Jordan, 
John McCartney, Zoe Metcalfe, Clive Pearson and 
Chris Pearson. 

Date: Tuesday, 22nd February, 2022 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Remote Meeting via Microsoft Teams 

 
Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s 
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision 
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of 
the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and 
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for 
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May 
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote 
live-broadcast committee meetings should continue, with any formal decisions required being 
taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after 
consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any 
views of the relevant Committee Members. This approach will be reviewed by full Council at its 
February meeting. 
 
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings      
 
Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also available there. 

 
Business 

 
1.   Welcome by the Chairman, Introductions and Apologies 

 
 

2.   Minutes of Previous Meeting - To agree as an accurate record the 
Minutes of the meeting held on 18th January 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

 
OFFICIAL 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 

4.   Public Questions and/or Statements  
  

Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they  
have given notice (including the text of the question/statement) to Steve Loach of  
Democratic Services (contact details provided on the Agenda) by  
midday on Thursday 17th February 2022. Each speaker should limit themselves to 3  
minutes on any item. Members of the public who have given notice will be invited to  
speak:- 
 
• at this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which  
are not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes); 
 
• when the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a  
matter which is on the Agenda for this meeting. 
 
 

5.1   C1/21/00118/PLANYC - Planning application for the Variation of 
conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 of planning permission 
C1/14/00747/CM to revise working times for Phase 3 and the 
restoration scheme at Middleton Lodge Quarry, Kneeton Lane, 
Middleton Tyas, Richmond - Report of the Corporate Director – 
Business and Environmental Services 
 

(Pages 7 - 66) 

5.2   Addendum Report - Planning application for the Variation of 
conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 of planning permission 
C1/14/00747/CM to revise working times for Phase 3 and the 
restoration scheme at Middleton Lodge Quarry, Kneeton Lane, 
Middleton Tyas, Richmond 
 

(Pages 67 - 70) 

6.   Items Dealt with under the Scheme of Delegation - Report of the 
Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 
 

(Pages 71 - 72) 

7.   Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the 
handling of Planning Applications - Report of the Corporate 
Director – Business and Environmental Services 
 

(Pages 73 - 84) 

8.   Other business which the Chairman agrees should be considered 
as a matter of urgency because of special circumstances. 
 

 

 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
14th February 2022 
 
 
 
For all enquiries relating to this agenda or to register to speak at the meeting, please contact  
Stephen Loach, Democratic Services Officer on Tel: 01609 532216 or by e-mail at:  
stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk  
 

Page 2

mailto:stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk


 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes – 18 January 2022/1 

 

OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held remotely, via Microsoft Teams, on 18 January 2022 at 10.00 a.m. 
 
Present:- 
 
County Councillors Peter Sowray (Chairman), David Blades, Eric Broadbent, Caroline Goodrick, 
Robert Heseltine, David Hugill, Mike Jordan, John McCartney, Chris Pearson and Clive Pearson. 
 
The meeting was available to watch live via the County Council’s website and a recording of the 
meeting is now available on the website via the following link www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings 
 

 
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book  

 

 
259. Welcome and Introductions 

 
 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and made the following statement:- 
 
You will have seen the statement on the Agenda front sheet about current decision-
making arrangements within the Council, following the expiry of the legislation permitting 
remote committee meetings.  I just want to remind everyone, for absolute clarity, that this 
is an informal meeting of the Committee Members. Any formal decisions required will be 
taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency delegated decision-making 
powers after taking into account any the views of the relevant Committee Members and 
all relevant information. This approach was agreed by full Council at its July meeting 
following a review, and will be the subject of a further review and consideration at the 
November meeting of the County Council. 
 
 The Chairman advised that apologies for absence had been received from County 
Councillor Zoe Metcalfe  
 
Members and officers then introduced themselves. 
 

260. Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2021  
 
 Resolved - 

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2021, having been printed and 
circulated, be taken as read and confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record at the next available opportunity. 

  
261. Declarations of Interest 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
262. Public Questions or Statements 
 
 There were no public questions or statements. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes – 18 January 2022/2 

 

OFFICIAL 

263 Planning Enforcement and Monitoring Policy 

 
 Considered -  
 

 The report of the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services, requesting 
Members to receive, consider and comment on a proposed draft Planning Enforcement 
and Monitoring Policy. 

 
 The Head of Planning Services presented the Committee report, highlighting the 

following:- 
 

 The proposed Planning Enforcement & Monitoring Policy would replace the 
existing Enforcement Charter. 

 The proposed Policy explained how enforcement would be carried out by NYCC 
and for what purposes, providing details in respect of the following :- 

 
  • The Council’s Planning Functions 
  • Responsibilities 
  • Objectives  
  • Commitments 
  • The Enforcement and monitoring functions 
  • Investigating unauthorised development  
  • Identifying a breach of planning control   
  • Dealing with enquiries and complaints  
  • Recording and Acknowledging Complaints 
  • Joint Working 
  • Time limits for taking enforcement action 
  • Approach to enforcement 
  • Breaches remedied by negotiation  
  • Breaches remedied by a retrospective planning permission  
  • Where negotiation fails to resolve the breach 
  • Where enforcement action is not expedient  
  • Where enforcement action is expedient   
  • What action can be taken  
   o Planning Contravention Notice 
   o Breach of Condition Notice  
   o Enforcement Notice   
   o Temporary Stop Notice  
   o Stop Notice  
   o Injunction  
   o What might happen after serving a notice or injunction 
  • Compliance  
  • Prosecution  
  • Direct action 
  • Monitoring 
  • Dissatisfaction with the service 
  • Policy review 
 

 The proposed Policy has been developed in line with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and the Planning Practice Guidance on ‘Enforcement and 
post-permission matters’ 

 The draft will be reported to the Transport, Economy and Environment Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for information / comments.  Subject to any comments 
received from the Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee and the 

Page 4



 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes – 18 January 2022/3 

 

OFFICIAL 

Transport, Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the 
draft policy will be reported to the Council’s Executive Committee for approval 
and recommendation to County Council for approval and adoption. The adopted 
Policy will then be published on the Council’s website.  

 A copy of the draft proposed Policy was provided as an appendix to the report.  
 
 Members discussed the proposed Policy, and the following issues and points were 

highlighted:- 
 

 It was noted that a recruitment exercise was currently coming to a close in 
terms of employing a Planning Monitoring and Compliance Officer. Members 
raised concerns that there was only one officer in place to undertake these 
duties on behalf of NYCC, covering the whole of the County. In response it was 
noted that Planning Case Officers also provided assistance when and where 
required in terms of monitoring compliance. A Member suggested that more use 
should have been made of District Council Planning Enforcement Officers, 
taking advantage of the knowledge of local areas. In response it was stated that 
it was likely that this pool of talent would be utilised as North Yorkshire moved 
forward into being a unitary authority. 

 A Member considered that the Policy did not effectively address issues around 
climate change and carbon reduction. In response it was emphasised that this 
Policy related to enforcement and focussed entirely on that aspect of the 
Planning service, other reports would address the issues raised. 

 A Member noted that there was no single, on-line register for enforcement 
issues in North Yorkshire. In response the Head of planning Services stated 
that on-line enforcement registers were a statutory responsibility of the District 
Councils, and were, therefore, provided by those authorities. Going forward, as 
North Yorkshire moved into a new Authority, it was likely that an overarching 
register would be created for the whole County. 

 Clarification was provided as to the process involved in adopting the Policy 
through the democratic structure of the County Council. 

 It was noted that Section 10 of the proposed Policy dealt with the time-frame for 
enforcement, and specifically set out how and when action could be taken 
where deliberate concealment had occurred.  

 Members suggested that the Policy should be given more weight as a practical 
tool for enforcement and compliance as the public considered this issue to be a 
very important aspect of the Planning service. 

 A Member suggested that previously enforcement had not been effective 
enough by NYCC Planning and that more assistance should have been 
obtained from the District Councils. He also suggested that reference to homes 
within the proposed Policy was irrelevant as the County Council dealt with 
minerals and waste. 

 
 Resolved:- 
 
 (i) That the Committee’s comments regarding the proposed draft Planning 

 Enforcement and Monitoring Policy be taken account of and incorporated into 
 reports on this matter, going forward ; and 

 
 (ii) that, subject to the incorporation of those comments, the draft Planning 

 Enforcement and Monitoring Policy be reported to the Executive for approval and 
 recommendation to County Council for approval and adoption 

 
  

Page 5



 

NYCC Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee - 
 Minutes – 18 January 2022/4 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
264 Items dealt with under the Scheme of Delegation – 15 October 2021 to 14 

December 2021, inclusive.  
 
 Considered – 
 

 A report by the Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services, which listed 
Items dealt with under the Scheme of Delegation.  The Items had been determined 
during the period 15 October to 14 December 2021, inclusive. 

 
Resolved:- 
 
That the report be noted. 

 
 
265 Any other business 
 

There being no other business, the Chairman declared the meeting closed 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 10.26 a.m. 
 
SML 

Page 6



 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

North Yorkshire County Council 

 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 
22 FEBUARY 2022 

 
C1/21/00118/PLANYC - PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE 

VARIATION OF CONDITIONS 1,6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION C1/14/00747/CM TO REVISE WORKING TIMES FOR PHASE 3 AND THE 

RESTORATION SCHEME AT MIDDLETON LODGE QUARRY, KNEETON LANE, 
MIDDLETON TYAS, RICHMOND, DL10 6NJ  

ON BEHALF OF BREEDON NORTHERN 
(RICHMONDSHIRE DISTRICT) (RICHMONDSHIRE NORTH ELECTORAL DIVISION) 

 
Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 

 

1.0 Purpose of the report 

1.1 To determine a planning application for the Variation of conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 
20, 24, 26, 27, 30 of planning permission C1/14/00747/CM to revise working times 
for Phase 3 and the restoration scheme at Middleton Lodge Quarry, Kneeton Lane, 
Middleton Tyas, Richmond, DL10 6NJ, on behalf of Breedon Northern . 

1.2 This application is subject to an objection having been raised in respect of this 
proposal on the grounds of visual amenity and is, therefore, reported to this 
Committee for determination. 

 
2.0 Background 
 

Site Description 
 
2.1 Middleton Lodge Quarry is located approximately 800 metres to the east of the A1(M), 

and is approximately 1 kilometre north of Middleton Tyas village, 1.5 kilometres south 
west of Barton village and proximately 1.8 kilometres to the north east of Scotch Corner 
Services. 

 

2.2 There are a number of properties surrounding the Middleton Lodge Quarry. The 
nearest residential properties to the application site are North Road Farm and 
Woodhouse Farm approximately 600 metres to the north and east. The original 
application site lies adjacent to land at Barton Quarry which has been worked 
intermittently for minerals since the 1850s, including via a number of planning 
permissions granted since the 1940s covering an area of approximately 22.6 hectares. 
Sherburn Stone Company Ltd reopened the site in the 1980s extracting limestone, clay 
and sandstone from Barton Quarry. The current Barton Quarry operation currently 
covers about 15 hectares. 

 
2.3 Middleton Lodge itself, is a Grade II* Listed country house built around 1779, and which 

is set in landscaped grounds. Several other listed buildings are located within the 
Estate included a stable block and walled garden. The boundary to the estate is 
approximately 160 metres to the south west of the application site. The access to the 
Middleton Lodge Estate is made from the north of the site off Kneeton Lane and is 
approximately 380 metres to the north west of the application site. 

  

Page 7

Agenda Item 5a



 

commrep/2 

2 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Constraints 
2.4 The site does not fall within, or in close proximity to any ‘sensitive areas’ e.g. Sites of 

Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), Special Protection Area (SPA), Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC), Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC), RAMSAR, 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) or Article 1(5) land (Conservation Area), 
or Scheduled Ancient Monuments. However, in November 2007, part of the Middleton 
Lodge Estate was included in the Register of Parks and Gardens (Grade II) and this 
includes Middleton Lodge itself which is Grade II* listed, the overall size of the 
Registered Park and Garden is approximately 41.4ha, and the boundary to the Estate 
is approximately 160 metres to the south west of the application site. The site, to which 
this application relates, is neither within or adjacent to any flood zones or flood plains 
as identified by the Environment Agency.  

 
2.5  A plan showing the application site is attached to this report and the details relating to 

this application can be viewed online. 
 
 Planning History 
 
2.6 The planning history relating to the proposed development site relevant to the 

determination of this application is as follows: -  
 

2.7 In December 2006 a planning application accompanied by an environmental statement 
(NYCC ref no. C1/33/80G/CM) was submitted for the following development: 
‘Mineral extraction as an extension to Barton Quarry connected by a conveyor tunnel under 
Kneeton Lane; the enhancement of the Estate parkland and public access to part of the grounds 
of Middleton Lodge Estate; the renovation and conversion of the Stable Block into a restaurant, 
functions rooms and an estate shop; the creation of a themed quarry garden with a 50m high 
fountain and water feature in a landform created by the mineral extraction area; the 
reconstruction and renovation of a Georgian walled garden into working kitchen gardens and 
the renovation and conversion of the outbuildings on the walled garden into two holiday 
cottages’. 

 
2.8 The first part of the above application (C1/33/80G/CM) proposed the extraction of 

limestone from an area to the north east of Middleton Lodge as an extension to the 
existing Barton Quarry with the intention that the quarrying would take place in a way 
that would leave behind a void and landform capable of being used to create a quarry 
garden. Around 2.07 million tonnes of limestone would be extracted in three phases 
and taken by conveyor under Kneeton Lane for processing at Barton Quarry. The 
minerals would be worked over a 15 year period. Phase 1 (Year 1) would consist of 
creating a cut in the limestone to allow a conveyor to run under Kneeton Lane to Barton 
Quarry from the extraction area which would then be worked in a south easterly 
direction with Phase 2, forming the quarry garden, being worked in years 2-6 and then 
Phase 3 (Year 6 to completion) being worked back towards Kneeton Lane by winter 
working only and progressively restored. 

 
2.9 The second element was a range of works to the walled garden area and stable block 

at Middleton Lodge, including changes of use, to provide facilities that are said would 
give the built features a future use and enhance the attractions at Middleton Lodge as 
a visitor destination so as to secure its long term future. The listed stable block would 
be converted into conference and function rooms, restaurant and estate shop whilst 
outbuildings beside the walled garden would be renovated and converted into two 
holiday cottages. 

 
2.10 Following the refusal of the application in July 2009, the matter went to appeal (Ref: 

APP/P2745/A/09/2119601). In December 2010 the appeal inspector decided that the 
appeal should be upheld and granted planning permission subject to conditions, a 
number of which required prior approval before the proposed development could 

Page 8

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/Register/PlanAppDisp.aspx?recno=11191


 

commrep/3 

3 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

commence. The approved development was also subject to a Section 106 Unilateral 
Undertaking (dated 13 October 2010). The Section 106 Undertaking stated that the 
following requirements must be adhered to: 
1. Following the commencement of extraction of any stone from the land shown edged 
red on Plan C the number of blasts within Barton Quarry shall be limited to a maximum 
of ten in total for the remaining life of Barton Quarry. 
2. Prior to 2031, all extraction and processing of minerals permitted by planning 
permission reference C1/93/165/MR will have ceased. 
3. Upon the commencement of development the extraction and processing of 
aggregates from Barton Quarry shall cease on Saturdays. 
4. Upon the commencement of development they shall use best endeavours (including 
but not limited to signage, instructions to hauliers and instructions to despatch staff) to 
ensure that no operational lorry traffic making trips to or from Barton Quarry shall use 
any roads within the Local Delivery Area unless they are making a delivery to or coming 
from, a destination within the Local Delivery Area. 
5. Upon the commencement of development they shall ensure that Route 1 is 
dedicated as a public right of way. For the avoidance of doubt, this obligation 5 is 
conditional upon no financial contributions being required in respect of the dedication 
of Route 1 as a public right of way. In the event that any financial contributions are 
requested in respect of the dedication of Route 1 as a public right of way the obligation 
in this paragraph 5 shall cease to have effect. 
6. Upon the commencement of development the extraction of all minerals below 91 
metres Above Ordnance Datum (AOD) within Planning Permission Reference 
C1/93/165/MR shall cease. 

 
2.11 Since the date of the appeal decision, the following applications have been submitted 

to and permitted by the County Planning Authority with the aforementioned Section 
106 Undertaking amended to reflect the Decision references and to relinquish the 
previously approved route of the conveyor: 

C1/33/80R/CM - Application to vary condition No's 10 and 26 of Appeal Ref: 
APP/P2745/A/09/2119601 which relates to works to the highway and blasting on land 
at Middleton Lodge, Middleton Tyas, Richmond, granted on 18 April 2012. 

C1/33/80T/CM - Revised route of the conveyor proposed in connection with minerals 
extraction associated with Appeal Ref: APP/P2745/A/09/2119601 and the associated 
management of an area of woodland on the south-eastern side of Kneeton Lane on 
land at Middleton Lodge, Middleton Tyas, Richmond. Granted on 18 April 2012. 

 
2.12  Following the approval of these applications the development commenced in June 

2012 through the construction of the conveyor route underneath Kneeton Lane. 
Furthermore, minerals extraction on the Middleton Lodge side of Kneeton Lane 
commenced on 15 May 2013. 

 
2.13 In addition Richmondshire District Council granted Listed Building Consents for the 

works to the stable block (Decision 12/00674/LBC issued 8 January 2013) and the 
works to the walled garden (Decision 5/00960/LBC issued 29 September 2016). 

 
2.14 Planning permission C1/12/00746/CM, dated 18 July 2013 was granted by North 

Yorkshire County Council for the variation of condition 2 of planning permission 
C1/33/80R/CM, which related to the approved plans for the conversion of the stable 
buildings including the provision of first floor holiday accommodation and an associated 
utility building. The grant of this planning consent superseded permission 
C1/33/80R/CM. This decision included a deed of variation pursuant to the existing 
Legal Agreement, pursuant to Section 106A of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

Page 9



 

commrep/4 

4 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

2.15 A further planning permission was granted by Richmondshire District Council on 12 
November 2014 (ref.14/00716/FULL) for the revision to car parking arrangements 
associated with the approved development within the Middleton Lodge Estate. 

 

2.16 A further planning permission (ref. C1/14/00747/CM) was granted by North Yorkshire 
County Council on 24 April 2015 for the variation of conditions 5 & 6 of Planning 
Permission C1/12/00746/CM that relates to the site access arrangements. 

 
2.17 A further planning permission (ref: C1/16/00881/CM) was granted on 28 February 2017 

for part retrospective planning application for the storage of soil mounds for the 
duration of the mineral extraction works under Planning Permission Ref No. 
C1/14/00747/CM for use in restoration by 15th May 2028. 

 
2.18 In 2016 application (ref: C1/16/00191/CM) was submitted which proposed to change 

the phasing of the workings and a revised restoration scheme. Objections were 
received which resulted in the applicant proposing to amend the restoration plans. The 
applicant decided to withdraw the application and submit a new application, which is 
the current application under consideration. 

 
2.19 The quarrying operations at Middleton Lodge are currently being undertaken under 

permission C1/14/00747/CM. In early November 2016 an application 
(NY/2016/0220/73) was submitted to vary the working phases and restoration plan 
which had been approved under the extant permission. 

 
2.20 The application C1/16/00919/CM (NY/2016/0220/73) proposed the following changes 

i) Raising the floor levels in phase 2 – decision was taken not to construct a fountain 
in the Quarry Garden (Phase 2) which led to a review of how to pump the water from 
the base of the Quarry Garden. The floor level would be raised to allow for natural 
drainage.  The approved restoration scheme for Phase 2 provides for the formation of 
a lake in the quarry floor at a level of approximately 80 metres AOD. This is at a lower 
level than that of the water outlet to the tributary of the Five Hills Beck from the spring 
fed pond to the east and consequently the lake would not drain by gravity. In order to 
prevent the quarry garden flooding during periods of heavy rainfall it will be necessary 
to pump excess water out of the Quarry Garden in perpetuity. A more sustainable way 
of controlling the water level in the Quarry Garden is to have it drain by gravity, the 
application proposed raising the final restored level to approximately 83.5 metres AOD, 
this would be slightly higher than the level of the pond fed by the spring to the east 
meaning that the water would drain from the Quarry Garden to the pond by gravity 
before entering the tributary to Five Hills Beck. To achieve this it was proposed to raise 
the restoration level of the phase 2 quarry by backfilling with clay and scalpings arising 
from mineral extraction in Phase 2 and clay stored in perimeter bunds. 

 
2.21 ii) Stone rib between Phases 1 and 3 and direction of working – The application 

provided for the installation of an additional item of fixed plant in the form of a trammel 
screen and a stone ridge to provide noise attenuation. The direction of working would 
also change. The trammel would be used to process the scalpings i.e. separate clay 
out of the scalpings. In order to provide noise attenuation to Middleton Lodge whilst 
the trammel screen was in use it was proposed to leave a block of stone unworked 
between Phase 1 where the screen would be located and Phase 3. In order to develop 
and maintain the stone rib or block the application proposed modifying the direction of 
working in Phase 3 from the approved north westerly direction to a south easterly 
direction. 

 
2.22 iii) Additional phase 3B – The application proposed an additional area of mineral 

extraction, known as Phase 3B, within the area underneath Mound ‘C’ on the north 
east side of Phase 1. Given that the proposal to raise the floor levels in Phase 2 
envisaged using the clay stored in mound ‘C’, its removal would make the extraction 

Page 10



 

commrep/5 

5 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

of the underlying stone possible. However, in order to remove Mound ‘C’ and extract 
the underlying stone it would be necessary to remove both the trees on Mound ‘C’ and 
4 mature ash trees located adjacent to Mound ‘C’ on the boundary of Phase 1. 

 
2.23 iv) The application proposed a number of updates to the approved restoration and 

aftercare plan for the quarry. 
 
2.24 v) Year round working – Conditions 7 and 20 of the current planning permission provide 

that no quarrying and no blasting shall take place in Phase 3 between 1st April and 1st 
October. The application proposed that these conditions be amended to allow year 
round working to enable the quarrying operations to be completed by 2028 as provided 
for by Condition 13. 

 
2.25 However, following submission of the application, a number of concerns and objections 

to the proposals were raised primarily relating to the removal of Mound ‘C’ and the 
trees planted on it; removal of the four mature trees adjacent to Mound ‘C’; impacts on 
bats potentially roosting in the four trees; the extraction of the stone in additional Phase 
3B; and the effects of year round working 

 
2.26 Following detailed consideration of the objections to the previous 2016 application and 

investigation of alternative means of achieving the proposed changes to the approved 
scheme the decision was taken to withdraw the 2016 application and submit a new 
one which dispensed with: The proposed removal of Mound ‘C’ and the trees planted 
on it; the proposed removal of the four mature trees adjacent to Mound ‘C’; the 
proposed extraction of stone underlying Mound ‘C’ i.e. Phase 3B; and the proposal to 
install a trammel screen and the associated proposals to leave a stone ‘rib’ between 
Phases 1 and 3 and change the direction of working in Phase 3.  The new application 
sets out revised proposals to (i) raise the floor levels in Phase 2, (ii) allow for year round 
working in Phase 3 and (iii) amend the restoration proposals.  

 
 Conditions proposed to be amended 
2.27  The relevant planning conditions which are the subject of this application are under 

permission C1/14/00747/CM: 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
application details dated 18 December 2006 and the Environmental Statement dated 
December 2006, the Application details dated 27 September 2012 subject to the list of 
‘Approved Plans and Documents’ in Appendix 1 to this schedule of conditions, the  
 Application details dated 18 September 2014 and approved documents: 
• Supporting Transport Statement (ref: JN0776) dated December 2014; 
• Approved Plan titled ‘Visitor Exit Junction by Walled Garden’ (ref: NT03435/26/001 – 
Rev.D) dated June 2014. 
These plans, details and the following conditions shall at all times take precedence. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the works are carried out in accordance with the approved 
particulars and plans 

  
6. The proposed Quarry Garden as detailed on the plans titled ‘The Quarry Garden 
(Sheet 1-4)’ (ref: NT03435/18/030) dated December 2011, shall not be brought into 
use until such time as the Local Access Road between Scotch Corner and Barton, 
connecting to Kneeton Lane and constructed in accordance with the A1 (M) upgrade, 
has been implemented and made available for use. In the event that the Local Access 
Road is not constructed or made available for use, the access arrangements for the 
site shall be undertaken in accordance with the Chapter 5 of the Wardell Armstrong 
Report (ref: NT03435/18 – Report No.001) dated December 2011.  
 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact the local 
highway network. 

Page 11



 

commrep/6 

6 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
7. No construction works, extraction or associated operations including maintenance 
and transport of mineral from the site shall take place except between the following 
times: 07.30 - 17.30 hours Monday to Friday. No quarrying or associated operations 
(except for maintenance and repairs which shall be restricted to 07.30 - 12.30 hours 
on Saturdays) shall take place on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank or Public Holidays. 

 
 Within Phase 3 of the approved development (as shown on Figure 3.1 Indicative 

Phasing of Mineral Extraction NT03435/005 - dated August 2005) no quarrying shall 
take place between 1st April and 1st October each year. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact the local 
highway network. 

 
10. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with 
Chapter 7 titled ‘Condition 14: Landscape Planting and Trees to be removed’ of the 
Wardell Armstrong Report and the following plans: 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 

(Sheet 8)’ dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 

(Sheet 1-6)’ dated December 2011 and (Sheet 7) dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/005 titled ‘Phase 1 and 3 Planting Plan (sheet 1-7)’ 

 dated December; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/030 titled ‘The Quarry Garden (Sheet 1-4)’ dated 

 December 2011; 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/031 titled ‘Landscape Planting’ dated December 

 2011. 

In the event of any plant material, shown on Drawing no. NT03435/18/031, dying or 
becoming seriously diseased or damaged within 5 years of planting, it shall be replaced 
with similar species to a specification that shall be first agreed in writing with the County 
Planning Authority unless the County Planning Authority give written consent to any 
variation. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 
 
14. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the 
following details: 

 Document titled ‘Barton Quarry Extension: Information required by conditions 19 
and 21 – Detailed Method of Working and Details of the Construction of Conveyor 
Route’; 

 Appendix 1 Drawing NT03435/18/021 titled ‘Detailed Site Design Phase 1 dated 
June 2011’; 

 Appendix 2 titled ‘Cut and Fill Calculations for Phase 1’; 

 Appendix 3 titled ‘Typical Box Culvert Section’ dated 29 March 2011; 

 Appendix 4 titled ‘Arboricultural Implication Assessment Of Trees At Middleton 
Lodge’ dated 19 April 2011 and Drawing no. TPP-B titled ‘Retained Trees shown 
on Proposed Layout With Protective Measures Indicated’ dated 20 April 2011; 

 Appendix 5 titled Arboricultural Method Statement For Trees At Middleton Lodge’ 
dated April 2011 with amendments as set out in the Sherburn Stone Co. Ltd email 
dated 25 August 2011; 

 Appendix 6 titled ‘Ecological Updating Surveys 2010: Land at Middleton Lodge’ 
dated 20 May 2010; 

Page 12



 

commrep/7 

7 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 Appendix 7 titled ‘A Breeding Bird Survey of Land at Middleton Lodge 2010’ dated 
3 June 2010; 

 Appendix 8 titled ‘A Great Crested Newt Survey of Middleton Lodge’ dated 18 June 
2010; the above being submitted with the letter from Sherburn Stone Co. Ltd dated 
21 June 2011; 

 The details found within document no. B1747100/AIP/01 titled ‘Box AIP – Middleton 
Lodge – Barton Quarry Conveyor Tunnel’ dated 20 December 2011 and drawing 
no. 1747100/ML/LOC/001 Rev 0 titled Middleton Lodge Development Location 
Plan’ dated December 2011 received via Jacobs Ltd on 23 December 2011. 

 Document titled ‘Barton Quarry Extension: Information required for conditions 19 – 
Detailed method of working for Phases 2 and 3’ and associated drawings 
NT03435/18/28 titled ‘Detailed Site Design Phase 2A and 2B’ dated November 
2011 and NT03435/18/29 titled ‘Detailed Site Design Phase 3A’ dated November 
2011. 

Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 
20. Except with the prior written approval of the County Planning Authority, no blasting 
shall be carried out on any part of the site unless between 11.00 and 16.00 Monday to 
Friday inclusive and no blasting shall be carried out at any time on Saturdays, Sundays, 
Bank or Public Holidays. Within Phase 3 of the approved development (as defined in 
the application) no blasting shall take place between 1st April and 1st October each 
year. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 
 
24. All topsoil and subsoil shall be permanently retained on the site for subsequent use 
in restoration. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 
26. There shall be no removal of topsoils, subsoils or overburden storage except in 
accordance with the details shown on Drawings NT03435/18/28 titled ‘Detailed Site 
Design Phase 2A and 2B’ dated November 2011 and NT03435/18/29 titled ‘Detailed 
Site Design Phase 3A’ dated November 2011. The approved details shall be 
implemented in full as approved. Once formed, all mounds in which topsoil and subsoil 
are to be stored for more than 6 months, or over the winter period, shall be grass 
seeded in accordance with the specification that shall be submitted to an approved in 
writing by the County Planning Authority within one month of the date of this decision. 
Mounds shall be managed throughout the period of storage to maintain satisfactory 
vegetation cover, carry out weed control and avoid erosion and waterlogging. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 
27. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details found within Chapter 9 titled ‘Condition 33: Restoration and Aftercare of the 
Quarry’ of the Wardell Armstrong Report and the following plans: 
• Drawing no. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan (Sheet 
8)’ dated 7 March 2012; 
• Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 
(Sheets 1-6)’ dated December 2011 and (Sheet 7) dated 7 March 2012; 
• Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/005 titled ‘Phase 1 and 3 Planting Plan (sheets 1- 7)’ 
dated December 2011; 

Page 13



 

commrep/8 

8 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

• Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/030 titled ‘The Quarry Garden (Sheet 1-4)’ dated 
December 2011. 
The restoration and aftercare of the site shall be carried out in strict accordance with 
the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 
30. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details of the proposed arrangements for cycle and pedestrian access, and cycler 
parking, found within Chapter 10 titled ‘Condition 36: Cycle and Pedestrian Access & 
Parking’ of the Wardell Armstrong Report including drawing no’s NT03435/18/003 and 
NT03435/18/004 dated December 2011. The scheme shall be implemented in full as 
approved and once created shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained 
for their intended purpose at all times. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 

 
2.28 The Applicant expects the remainder of the conditions to remain the same unless the 

work has been completed to discharge the conditions, further details are contained in 
Section 7 of this report starting at paragraph 7.33, as they are not affected by the 
proposed changes. The extraction of Phase 1 is complete and extraction within Phase 
2 is ongoing and expected to be completed in 2021 to be restored in the next 2 to 3 
years. Full details of working and extraction methods are included in Appendix 1 of the 
Planning Statement, Method of Working for Phases 2 and 3. 

 
3.0 The proposal 
 
3.1 Planning permission is sought for the Variation of conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 

27, 30 of planning permission C1/14/00747/CM which relates to revising working times 
for Phase 3 and the restoration scheme Middleton Lodge, Kneeton Lane, Middleton 
Tyas, Richmond, DL10 6NJ on land at Middleton Lodge, Kneeton Lane, Middleton 
Tyas, DL10 6NJ on behalf of Breedon Northern. The proposal is to raise the floor of the 
Quarry Garden, provide a revised restoration scheme for Phases 2 and 3 and change 
the months of working of Phase 3 from being over winter only to all year round. 

 
3.2 The application was screened in accordance with The Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 to determine if an 
Environmental Impact Assessment was required to accompany the application.  The 
Screening Opinion confirmed that the proposal would not give rise to any significant 
impact on the environment or historic assets and an Environmental Statement is not 
required as it is not considered to be EIA development. 

 
3.3 The conditions listed have been selected to be varied as conditions 7 and 20 do not 

permit the operator to extract and blast in Phase 3 between the months of April and 
October. The applicant would like to change this to extract and blast in Phase 3 all year 
round. The other conditions 1, 6, 10, 14, 24, 26, 27 and 30 all contain references to 
plans which the applicant has provided updated versions of to reflect the proposed 
changes to the quarry garden floor level and restoration proposals for Phases 2 and 3. 
The remaining conditions are not affected by the proposed changes and would remain 
in place unless they have already been discharged, if the application is successful. 

 
3.4 The main aim of the now withdrawn application C1/16/00919/CM was to amend the 

approved restoration scheme for Phase 2 known as the ‘Quarry Garden’, Mound ‘C’ 
was to be removed and the materials used to raise the level of the lake in the quarry 
garden, following concerns raised it is proposed to retain Mound ‘C’.  The proposed 

Page 14



 

commrep/9 

9 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

revised restoration scheme does not now include the fountain which was included in 
the original permission agreed at appeal. The approved scheme provides for mineral 
extraction to take place down to a depth of approximately 78 metre AOD followed by 
restoration to a level of approximately 80 metres AOD. However, at this level water will 
not be able to drain via gravity and so in order to ensure the Quarry Garden does not 
become flooded it will be necessary to undertake pumping in perpetuity, a process 
which would not be sustainable. The applicant’s aim is to amend the approved 
restoration for Phase 2 to enable drainage to take place by gravity rather than using a 
pump now it is proposed that the fountain proposed in the original permission (Appeal 
Ref: APP/P2745/A/09/2119601) will not be built.  However, it is clear that the potential 
impact associated with the proposal to remove the clay in Mound ‘C’ raised 
considerable concern. As a result it is now proposed to raise the final level of the Quarry 
Garden to approximately 83.5 metres AOD as identified on Drawing Ref No 
NT03435/28/15: The proposed restoration of the Quarry Garden will be achieved by a 
combination of leaving mineral unworked in the base of Phase 2 and backfilling with 
scalpings and clay arising from mineral extraction in Phase 2 and 3 only. 

 
3.5 Year round working – Condition numbers 7 and 20 of the current planning permission 

provide that no quarrying operations and no blasting shall take place in Phase 3 
between 1st April and 1st October. These restrictions were proposed by the applicant 
when planning permission was first sought for the development of Middleton Lodge 
with the aim being to prevent any impact on visitors to the gardens in the summer 
months. However, the Applicant proposes that the development of the quarrying 
operations are now such that the application of these conditions would have the 
following implications: 
i. Condition 13 of the current planning permission provides that quarrying operations 

at Middleton Lodge should be completed and the site restored by May 2028. It was 
originally envisaged that mineral extraction would take 5 years to complete in 
Phases 1 and 2 and 10 years in Phase 3, so 15 years in total. However the 
extraction of the stone in Phases 1 and 2 has taken 8 years rather than 5 years 
due to a downturn in market conditions. Whilst it is proposed to increase production 
rates, the impact of conditions 7 and 20 would mean that the annual output would 
not be sufficient to enable Quarrying operations and site restoration to be 
completed by May 2028. 

ii. In addition to the clay and scalpings present in Phase 2, clay and scalpings in 
Phase 3 will also be required to complete the restoration of Phase 2, if this proposal 
is granted. The impact of conditions 7 and 20 would be to interrupt the generation 
of supply of these materials from Phase 3 to Phase 2 thereby delaying the 
completion of restoration of Phase 2. 

iii. The stone extracted from Middleton Lodge is transported by the field conveyor to 
Barton Quarry for processing. It is then stockpiled pending sale to customers. 
There is not enough space available within Barton Quarry to enable sufficient 
volume of stone to be extracted, processed and stockpiled during a 6 month 
working period to maintain supplies during the subsequent 6 month period. 
Accordingly, the impact of conditions 7 and 20 would be that stockpiles in Barton 
Quarry would expire well in advance of when working would recommence in 
Middleton Lodge. This would result in customers having to purchase stone from 
other locations further away resulting in greater HGV travelling distances. This is 
particularly true of the coating plant in Barton Quarry where a large volume of their 
aggregate needs are met from the stone extracted at Middleton Lodge and 
processed and stockpiled in Barton Quarry. If the aggregate would not be available 
from the stockpiles at Barton Quarry they would have to purchase it from elsewhere 
and import it to Barton to maintain the production and supply from the plant. 

 
3.6 Accordingly the Applicant proposes to amend conditions 7 and 20 to allow for year 

round working to enable quarrying operations and restoration of the site to be 
completed by 2028 as required by Condition 13 of the extant planning permission and 

Page 15



 

commrep/10 

10 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

to ensure continuity of supply to customers. Quarrying operations and blasting would 
continue to be undertaken in accordance with the first parts of conditions 7 and 20 
throughout the year. 

 
3.7 As detailed in paragraph 3.5 the extant permission restricts the extraction and blasting 

in Phase 3 to 6 months a year to prevent the impact on visitors to the gardens in 
summer months. However, a significant part of the gardens will be the Quarry Garden 
itself in Phase 2 and the restoration of Phase 2 is reliant upon receiving clay and 
scalpings generated by the working of Phase 3 and the Applicant anticipates that the 
Quarry Garden would be ready to open in 2025. Therefore, the Quarry Garden will not 
be open to visitors when quarrying in Phase 3 commences and when it is open 
quarrying will have advanced by 200 metres away to the north west and will be in the 
latter half of Phase 3 by this stage and consequently any subsequent impact arising 
from those operations will be mitigated by distance. 

 
3.8  The owner and operator of Middleton Lodge properties and business have confirmed 

that they have not had any issues with quarrying in Phase 2, which is operational all 
year round. The Estate is not affected by noise or dust and there have been no 
complaints from guests regarding the operations at the quarry. Phase 3 is further away 
from the main house at Middleton Lodge and is therefore unlikely that year round 
operations in Phase 3 would cause any harm to the Estate. 

 
3.9 It is proposed to revise the approved restoration and aftercare plan for the site and the 

details are shown on Drawings NY03435/28/007, 008, 009, 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 
015 and 016 and in Appendix 3: Restoration and Aftercare. 

 
 Proposed changes to conditions 
3.10 Apart from current Condition 7 and Condition 20 the remaining conditions are being 

varied due to the provision of some updated plans. The wording for the revised 
conditions as varied are proposed to be: 

  
Condition 1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the application details dated 8 January 2021 and those previously approved under 
permission C1/14/00747/CM and the following approved documents and drawings: 

 Supporting Transport Statement (ref: JN0776) dated December 2014; 

 Approved Plan titled ‘Visitor Exit Junction by Walled Garden’ (ref: NT03435/26/001 
– Rev.D) dated June 2014. 

 Planning Statement  

 Phase 2 Detailed Site Design – NT03435/28/002 – August 2016 

 Phase 3 Detailed Site Design – NT 03435/28/004A – August 2016 

 Landscape Masterplan – NT03435/28/007/B - August 2016 

 Cross sections showing the restoration profile – NT03435/28/008/A - August 2016 

 Indicative cross sections through restored quarry faces and slopes – 
NT03435/028/009 - August 2016 

 Sections through Quarry from Kiln Head Spring – NT03435/28/010 - August 2016 

 Section through quarry from Woodhouse Farm – NT03435/28/011/A - August 2016 

 System for collecting Surface and Ground water – NT03435/28/012/A – September 
2016 

 Vehicle, Pedestrian and Cycle circulation – NT03435/028/013/A – September 2016 

 Phases 1 and 3 planting plan – NT03435/28/014/A – September 2016 

 The Quarry Garden – NT03435/28/015 - August 2016 

 Quarry Garden lake edge details – NT03435/028/016 - August 2016 

These plans, details and the following conditions shall at all times take precedence. 
 

Page 16



 

commrep/11 

11 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Reason: To ensure that the works are carried out in accordance with the approved 
particulars and plans 

 
Condition 6. The proposed Quarry Garden as detailed on the plans titled ‘The Quarry 
Garden ’ (ref: NT03435/28/015) dated August 2016, shall not be brought into use until 
such time as the Local Access Road between Scotch Corner and Barton, connecting 
to Kneeton Lane and constructed in accordance with the A1 (M) upgrade, has been 
implemented and made available for use. In the event that the Local Access Road is 
not constructed or made available for use, the access arrangements for the site shall 
be undertaken in accordance with the Chapter 5 of the Wardell Armstrong Report (ref: 
NT03435/18 – Report No.001) dated December 2011. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact the local 
highway network. 
 
The Local Access Road has now been created and is in use so this condition can be 
removed as it is no longer required. 
 
Condition 7. No construction works, extraction or associated operations including 
maintenance and transport of mineral from the site shall take place except between 
the following times: 07.30 - 17.30 hours Monday to Friday. No quarrying or associated 
operations (except for maintenance and repairs which shall be restricted to 07.30 - 
12.30 hours on Saturdays) shall take place on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank or Public 
Holidays. 

  
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact the local 
highway network. 
 
Condition 10. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance 
with Chapter 7 titled ‘Condition 14: Landscape Planting and Trees to be removed’ of 
the Wardell Armstrong Report December 2011 and the following plans: 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 
(Sheet 8)’ dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 
(Sheet 1-6)’ dated December 2011 and (Sheet 7) dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/28/014/A titled ‘Phase 1 and 3 Planting Plan’ dated August 
2016; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/28/015 titled ‘The Quarry Garden ’ dated August 2016; 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/031 titled ‘Landscape Planting’ dated December 2011. 

 In the event of any plant material, shown on Drawing no. NT03435/18/031, dying 
or becoming seriously diseased or damaged within 5 years of planting, it shall be 
replaced with similar species to a specification that shall be first agreed in writing 
with the County Planning Authority unless the County Planning Authority give 
written consent to any variation. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 

 
Condition 14. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance 
with the following details: 

 Document titled ‘Barton Quarry Extension: Information required by conditions 19 
and 21 – Detailed Method of Working and Details of the Construction of Conveyor 
Route’; 

 Appendix 1 Drawing NT03435/18/021 titled ‘Detailed Site Design Phase 1 dated 
June 2011’; 

 Appendix 2 titled ‘Cut and Fill Calculations for Phase 1’; 

Page 17



 

commrep/12 

12 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 Appendix 3 titled ‘Typical Box Culvert Section’ dated 29 March 2011; 

 Appendix 4 titled ‘Arboricultural Implication Assessment Of Trees At Middleton 
Lodge’ dated 19 April 2011 and Drawing no. TPP-B titled ‘Retained Trees shown 
on Proposed Layout With Protective Measures Indicated’ dated 20 April 2011; 

 Appendix 5 titled Arboricultural Method Statement For Trees At Middleton Lodge’ 
dated April 2011 with amendments as set out in the Sherburn Stone Co. Ltd email 
dated 25 August 2011; 

 Appendix 6 titled ‘Ecological Updating Surveys 2010: Land at Middleton Lodge’ 
dated 20 May 2010; 

 Appendix 7 titled ‘A Breeding Bird Survey of Land at Middleton Lodge 2010’ dated 
3 June 2010; 

 Appendix 8 titled ‘A Great Crested Newt Survey of Middleton Lodge’ dated 18 June 
2010; the above being submitted with the letter from Sherburn Stone Co. Ltd dated 
21 June 2011; 

 The details found within document no. B1747100/AIP/01 titled ‘Box AIP – 
Middleton Lodge – Barton Quarry Conveyor Tunnel’ dated 20 December 2011 and 
drawing no. 1747100/ML/LOC/001 Rev 0 titled Middleton Lodge Development 
Location Plan’ dated December 2011 received via Jacobs Ltd on 23 December 
2011. 

 Planning Statement (submitted 8 January 2021) – Appendix 1 titled ‘Method of 
working Phases 2 and 3  drawings NT03435/28/002 – Phase 2 Detailed Site 
Design dated August 2016 and NT03435/028/004/A – Phase 3 Detailed Site 
Design dated August 2016. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 
Condition 20. No blasting shall be carried out on any part of the site unless between 
11.00 and 16.00 Monday to Friday inclusive and no blasting shall be carried out at any 
time on Saturdays, Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 
 
Condition 24. All topsoil and subsoil shall be permanently retained on the site and the 
adjacent soil mounds site (see planning Permission Ref No. C1/00881/CM) for 
subsequent use in restoration. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 
Condition 26. There shall be no removal of topsoils, subsoils or overburden storage 
except in accordance with the details shown on Drawings NT03435/028/002  titled 
‘Phase 2 Detailed Site Design’ dated August 2016  and NT03435/28/004/A  titled 
‘Phase 3 Detailed Site Design’ dated August 2016. The approved details shall be 
implemented in full as approved. Once formed, all mounds in which topsoil and subsoil 
are to be stored for more than 6 months, or over the winter period, shall be grass 
seeded in accordance with the specification that shall be submitted to an approved in 
writing by the County Planning Authority within one month of the date of this decision. 
Mounds shall be managed throughout the period of storage to maintain satisfactory 
vegetation cover, carry out weed control and avoid erosion and waterlogging. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

Page 18



 

commrep/13 

13 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 Condition 27. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the details found within Planning Statement (submitted 8 January 2021) – 
Appendix 3 titled ‘Restoration and Aftercare’: 
• Drawing no. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan (Sheet 
8)’ dated 7 March 2012; 
• Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 
(Sheets 1-6)’ dated December 2011 and (Sheet 7) dated 7 March 2012; 
• Drawing no. NT03435/28/014/A titled ‘Phase 1 and 3 Planting Plan’ dated September 
2016; 
• Drawing no. NT/03435/028/030 titled ‘The Quarry Garden’ dated September 2016 
. 
The restoration and aftercare of the site shall be carried out in strict accordance with 
the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 
Condition 30. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the details of the proposed arrangements for cycle and pedestrian access, and 
cycler parking, found within Chapter 10 titled ‘Condition 36: Cycle and Pedestrian 
Access & Parking’ of the Wardell Armstrong Report including drawing no’s 
NT/03435/28/013/A dated August 2016 . The scheme shall be implemented in full as 
approved and once created shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained 
for their intended purpose at all times. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions 

 
3.11 All of the other planning conditions are still relevant and will be carried forward unless 

already discharged should planning consent be forthcoming. 
 
3.12  The proposed changes to the restoration scheme have resulted in changes to several 

of the approved plans detailed in permission C1/14/00747/CM, these are detailed 
below: 

 

 Plan NT03435/28/002 ‘Phase 2 Detailed Site Design’ dated August 2016, replaces 
NT03435/18/28 ‘Detailed Site Design Phase 2A and 2B’ dated November 2011. The 
site design has been changed for Phase 2, which is the Quarry Garden, so a revised 
drawing has been submitted to show the fountain has been removed and floor level in 
the lake has been raised. The Plan shows Phase 2 at the end of the restoration 
process.  

 

 Plan NT03435/28/004A ‘Phase 3 Detailed Site Design’ dated August 2016 replaces 
NT03435/18/29 ‘Detailed Site Design Phase 3A’ dated November 2011 (submitted 
with application ref: NY/2011/0492/A30). The revised drawing shows the change in 
working direction and the site at the end of extraction of Phase 3. 

 

 Plan NT03435/28/007/B ‘Landscape Masterplan’ dated August 2016 replaces 

NT03435/011 ‘Landscape Masterplan’ dated November 2006. Shows the proposed 

revised restoration scheme, including planting, for Phase 2 and Phase 3 as well as the 

rest of the Middleton Lodge site. 

 

 Plan NT03435/28/008/A ‘Cross Sections showing the restoration profile’ dated August 
2016 replaces NT03435/042 ‘Cross sections showing restoration profile’ dated 
November 2006. The revised drawing shows cross sections across Phase 2 and 
Phase 3 one the revised restoration scheme is complete. 

Page 19



 

commrep/14 

14 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

 Plan NT03435/028/009 ‘Indicative cross sections through restored quarry faces and 
slopes’ dated August 2016 replaces NT3435/016 ‘Restored slope configuration’ dated 
July 2005. Shows cross section through the rock face once the revised restoration 
scheme is complete. 

 

 Plan NT03435/28/010 ‘Sections through Quarry from Kiln Head Spring dated August 
2016 replaces NT03435/031 ‘Sections through Quarry from Kiln Head Spring’ dated 
2006. Shows cross section from Kiln Head Spring, a residence located north of Phase 
3 showing sight line from first floor of the property both prior to and after extraction in 
Phase 3. 

 

 Plan NT03435/28/011/A ‘Section through Quarry from Woodhouse Farm’ dated 
August 2016 replaces NT03435/033 ‘Sections through Quarry from Woodhouse Farm’ 
dated April 2006. Shows sight line from Wood House Farm, located north east of the 
quarry looking over Phase 2 once restoration is complete. 

 

 Plan NT03435/028/012/A ‘System for collecting Surface and Ground water’ dated 
September 2016 replaces NT03435/944 ‘System for collecting Surface and Ground 
water’ dated November 2006. Shows how surface and ground water will be dealt with 
once restoration is complete, ensuring lake levels are maintained and excess water 
drained away. 

 

 Plan NT03435/028/013/A ‘Vehicle, Pedestrian and Cycle Circulation’ dated September 
2016 replaces Chapter 10 ‘Conditions 36: Cycle and Pedestrian Access & Parking’ in 
Wardell Armstrong Report NT03435/018 Report No. 1 dated December 2011. Shows 
pedestrian, cycle and vehicle routes around the whole Middleton Lodge site once 
restoration is complete. 

 

 Plan NT03435/028/014/A ‘Phases 1 and 3 planting plan’ dated September 2016 
replaces NT03435/18/005 dated December 2011. Shows proposed planting scheme 
in Phases 1 and 3 as part of progressive restoration scheme. 

 

 Plan NT03435/28/015 ‘The Quarry Garden’ dated August 2016 replaces 
NT03435/18/030 ‘The Quarry Garden’ dated December 2011. Shows detailed 
restoration scheme for Phase 2, which is the Quarry Garden including the lake, 
planting and surfaced paths. 

 

 Plan NT03435/028/016 ‘Quarry Garden lake edge details’ dated August 2016, this is 
a new plan showing a cross section through the lake in Phase in Phase 2 Quarry 
Garden, details depth of lake, material’s and plants to be used during restoration. 

 
4.0 Consultations 
 
4.1 The consultees responses summarised within this section of the report relate to 

responses to the consultation on 22 January 2021. 
 
4.2 Highway Authority – responded on 27 January 2021 stating that the proposed 

changes would not have any impact on the surrounding highway network therefore they 
had no objections. 

 
4.3 NYCC Heritage - Principal Landscape Architect – responded on 12 February 2021 

with no objection to the proposed variations. 
 
4.4 NYCC Heritage - Ecology – responded on 25 January 2021 and stated that it is 

understood that the revised scheme of quarrying removes the need to extract stone 

Page 20



 

commrep/15 

15 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

from the additional land in Phase 3B, which would have resulted in the loss of four ash 
trees which are verging on the veteran tree status and provide roosting habitat for bats. 
Since the revision removes this conflict of interests, it is welcome. 

 
4.5 NYCC Arboricultural Officer – responded on 24 June 2021 stating that as the removal 

of the four veteran trees is no longer part of the proposal they have no further 
objections. 

 
4.6 Richmondshire District Council (Planning) –  A response was received on the 1 

September 2021 which stated that taking into consideration other consultation 
responses they had no comments to make regarding the proposal. 

  
4.7 The Gardens Trust – responded on 9 February 2021 stated that the application for the 

purposes of the Variation of Conditions of the planning permission C1/14/00747/CM is 
connected with the extraction of stone and associated works, from an area of the 
Registered Park and Garden largely to the north of Middleton Lodge. It is understood 
that that the proposal should reduce the time scale for the quarrying operations and 
restoration, and so have no comments to make. 

 
4.8 Richmond & District Civic Society – responded on 10 February 2021 with no 

objections.  
 
4.9 Historic England – responded on 2 February 2021 and did not offer any comments 

but recommended seeking the views of our specialist conservation and archaeologist 
advisers.  

 
4.10 Richmondshire DC - Conservation Officer – at the time of writing this report no 

response has been received.  
  
4.11 Barton Parish Council – at the time of writing this report no response has been 

received.  
  
4.12 Middleton Tyas Parish Council – responded on 23 March and stated that not all 

residents may be aware of the application due to recent roadworks closing Kneeton 
Lane for several weeks, therefore local residents and those most affected would not 
have had the opportunity to observe any site notices. The changes to the quarry 
operational hours from October to April to all year round blasting is more likely to affaect 
properties further away from Middleton Lodge towards the east, rather than the hotel 
itself where the noise of the belt or blasting cannot be heard. Properties including those 
along Cow Lane, Oakfields and Murky Hill across to Halanby and Barton hear the 
quarry noise during the day and live music and fireworks from events at Middleton 
Lodge at night due to how the landscape dips away and the sound being carried across. 
With summer coming up and more events being held outside because of the pandemic 
it feels appropriate that consideration be given to consulting with these properties 
directly. 

 
4.13 Middleton Tyas Residents Association - at the time of writing this report no response 

has been received.  
 
4.14 Barton Residents Association - at the time of writing this report no response has 

been received.  
  
4.15 Environmental Health Officer (Richmondshire) – response received on 10 February 

2021 stating that they had considered the potential impact on amenity and the likelihood 
that the development will cause a nuisance and have no objections to the proposal 
providing that the existing hours of use as part of Condition 7 remain, along with the 

Page 21



 

commrep/16 

16 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

other conditions relating to noise including Conditions 17, 18 and 19 in Decision Notice 
C1/14/00747/CM. 

 
4.16 NYCC Heritage – Archaeology – responded on 21 January 2021. The appeal decision 

includes a planning condition relating to the agreement of a Written Scheme of 
Archaeological Investigation (Condition no. 5). The scheme was agreed in 2011 
(NY/2011/0492/A30) and applies to the proposed car parking areas to the north of 
Middleton Lodge. The current consultation does not have an impact on this aspect of 
development. There is no objection to the proposal and no comments to make. 

 
4.17 NYCC Public Rights of Way Team – an initial response was received on 26 January 

2021 stating that there is a Public Right of Way (PROW) within or adjoining the 
application boundary and set out actions which would be required if the PROW would 
be permanently or temporarily affected by activities on the site. The information in the 
response was forwarded onto the applicant who responded confirming that the PROW 
is not within the red line boundary of the site and so will not be impacted by the 
operations on site and will be protected and kept clear throughout the proposed 
development. Following receipt of the additional information the PROW team stated 
that the applicant does not need to take any action in relation to the PROW and had no 
further comments to make. 

 
Notifications 

4.18 County Cllr. Angus Thompson – notified on 21 January 2021. 

 
5.0 Advertisement and representations 
 
5.1 This application has been advertised by means of 6 Site Notices posted on 25 January 

2021 (responses to which expired on 15 February 2021). The Site Notices were posted 
in the following locations: where the PROW joins the highway network on Kneeton Lane 
north of the entrance to Middleton Lodge and west of the entrance to the Coach House, 
the vehicular access to Middleton Lodge, near access to Barton Service Station, near 
Half Moon pub on Silver Street, the Parish Council notice boards in Barton and 
Middleton Tyas. The site notices stayed in place longer than the required period to give 
people time to view them once Kneeton Road was reopened. A Press Notice appeared 
in the Darlington and Stockton Times on 29 January 2021(responses to which expired 
on 1 March 2021). 

 
5.2 Neighbour Notification letters were sent on 22 January 2021 and the period in which 

to make representations expired on 12 February 2021. The following properties 
received a neighbour notification letter:  

 Mill Farm, Middleton Tyas, Richmond. DL10 6NL; 

 1, 2, 3 and 4 Kneeton Cottages, Middleton Tyas, Richmond, DL10 6NL; 

 Woodhouse Farm, Middleton Tyas, Richmond. DL10 6SA; 

 Middleton Lodge, Kneeton Lane, Middleton Tyas, Richmond. DL10 6NJ; 

 Limekilns, Barton, Richmond. DL10 6NB; 

 North Road Farm, Barton, Richmond, DL10 6NB; 

 Overkneeton, Barton, Richmond. DL10 6NB; 

 Underkneeton, Barton, Richmond. DL10 6NB; 

 Little Kneeton, Barton, Richmond. DL10 6NB; 

 Stonecrest Hall, Barton, Richmond, North Yorkshire; 

 Kiln Head Spring, Kneeton Lane, Middleton Tyas, Richmond. DL10 6NB; 

 The Farmhouse, Middleton Lodge, Kneeton Lane, Middleton Tyas, Richmond. 
DL10 6NJ; 

 
5.3 One letter of representation has been received raising an objection on the grounds of 

Phase 3B of the quarry being in the sight line of one of the nearby properties, and that 
Page 22



 

commrep/17 

17 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

some of the saplings planted on top of ‘Mound C’ had died lessening the screening, a 
request for replacement planting for the saplings on top of ‘Mound C’ and additional 
planting in the wood adjacent to Phase 3B to provide additional screening while works 
were being carried out in the summer months was made so as to lessen the impact of 
the working on Phase 3B. The applicant had a meeting with the resident where their 
concerns were discussed. It was agreed to replace the saplings which had died on top 
of ‘Mound C’ and increase the number which was present to provide additional 
screening. The Applicant is of the opinion that there is sufficient screening provided by 
the existing wood, and this screening would increase in the summer months as the 
trees would be in leaf providing additional coverage. The resident was made aware of 
this but still requested additional screening as when the works would take place in 
Phase 3B it would be within the sightline of their property and it would be impossible 
to shield open workings from their property so the objection stands.  

 
5.4 The Phase 3B referred to in the above representation was included as an additional 

area in the proposal C1/16/00919/CM  (NY/2016/0220/73) which referred to the land 
under Mound ‘C’, this application was withdrawn. Bund ‘C’ is now staying in position 
so the Phase 3B identified as being under Mound ‘C’ is not now going to be extracted. 
In their representation the respondent made it clear that it was the area of land to the 
east of bund ‘C’ they were concerned about, as even with bund ‘C’ in place they were 
concerned that when extraction occurred in this area of Phase 3 it would be in the sight 
line of their property. The area they referred to can be seen on plan NT03435/28/014/A 
Phases 1 and 3 Planting Plan (2016), on this plan the area would be labelled as 3a to 
the east of bund ‘C’. 

  
6.0 Planning policy and guidance 
 

The Development Plan  

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that all 
planning authorities must determine each planning application in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this instance, 
therefore, the Development Plan consists of policies contained within a number of 
planning documents. These documents include: 

 any extant planning policies contained within Plan(s) adopted by the County and 
District (or Borough) Councils ‘saved’ under direction of the Secretary of State; and, 

 any planning policies contained within Development Plan Documents adopted 
under the Local Development Framework regime. 

 
6.2 The Development Plan for the determination of this particular application comprises 

the following: 

 The extant ‘saved’ policies of the North Yorkshire Minerals Local Plan (NYMLP) 
(1997);  

 The extant policies of the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014); 
 
6.3 Due to the age of the North Yorkshire Mineral Local Plan saved policies, they are 

assessed against the more up to date National Planning Policy Framework 2021 
(NPPF) to determine whether they are consistent with the NPPF and what weight 
should be attached to them.  

 

North Yorkshire Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ policies (NYMLP) 
6.4 The Planning and Compensation Act 1991 placed a duty on each County Council in 

England and Wales to prepare a Minerals Local Plan. The NYMLP was adopted in 
1997 under the 1991 Act. In the absence of an adopted MWJP and in accordance with 
the provisions of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 as of 27 September 
2007, only the ‘saved’ policies continue to form part of the statutory ‘development plan’ 

Page 23



 

commrep/18 

18 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

and provide an important part of the current local policy framework for development 
control decisions for minerals-related development. 

 
6.5 The ‘saved’ Policies North Yorkshire Minerals Local Plan (adopted 1997) relevant to 

the determination of this application are: 

 3/2 Preferred Areas 

 3/3 Areas of Search 

 4/1 Determination of Planning Applications; 

 4/10 Water Protection; 

 4/13 Traffic Impact; 

 4/14 Local Environment and Amenity; 

 4/15 Public Rights of Way; 

 4/18 Restoration to agriculture; 

 4/20 Aftercare. 
 
6.6 ‘Saved’ Policy 3/2 ‘Preferred Areas’ states: ‘In order to maintain landbanks of permitted 

reserves proposals for aggregates mineral working in Preferred Areas will be regarded as 
acceptable in principle. Satisfactory details will have to be submitted before planning permission 

can be granted.’ This Policy accords with paragraph 213 of the NPPF which states that 
provision for aggregates should take the form of specific sites, preferred areas or areas 
of search. Therefore, it is considered that full weight should be given to this policy. 

 
6.7 ‘Saved’ Policy 3/3 ‘Areas of Search’ states: ‘Planning permission may be granted for 

aggregate mineral working within Areas of Search where the Mineral Planning Authority is 

satisfied that sufficient mineral cannot be obtained from Preferred Areas.’ This Policy accords 
with paragraph 213 of the NPPF which states that provision for aggregates can should 
take the form of specific sites, preferred areas or areas of search. Therefore, it is 
considered that full weight should be given to this policy. 

 
6.8 ‘Saved’ Policy 4/1 ‘Determination of Planning Applications’, states,  

‘In considering an application for mining operations, the Minerals Planning Authority will need 
to be satisfied that, where appropriate: -  
(a) the mineral deposit on the application site has been fully investigated;  
(b) the siting and scale of the proposal is acceptable;  
(c) the proposed method and programme of working would minimise the impact of the proposal;  
(d) landscaping and screening has been designed to effectively mitigate the impact of the 
proposal;  
(e) other environmental and amenity safeguards would effectively mitigate the impact of the 
proposals;  
(f) the proposals and programme for restoration are acceptable and would allow a high standard 
to be achieved;  
(g) a high standard of aftercare and management of the land could be achieved;  
(h) the proposed transport links to move the mineral to market are acceptable; and  
(i) any cumulative impact on the local area resulting from the proposal is acceptable’. 

 

6.9 The NPPF does not mention the matters raised in points a), b), c), d). 
 
6.10 Where criterion e) is concerned, Paragraph 211 of the NPPF states that when 

determining planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure that any 
unavoidable emissions or vibrations are controlled or mitigated (if it is not possible to 
remove them at source). 

 
6.11 With regard to criteria f) and g), Paragraph 211  of the NPPF states that when 

determining planning applications, local planning authorities should provide for 
restoration and aftercare at the earliest opportunity to be carried out to high 
environmental standards, through the application of appropriate conditions, where 
necessary. 

 
Page 24



 

commrep/19 

19 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

6.12 Criterion h) of ‘saved’ Policy 4/1 does not conflict with the provisions of the NPPF; 
however, there are differences in the objectives. Criterion h) states that transport links 
should be acceptable whereas paragraph 104 of the NPPF states that the potential 
impacts of development to the transport network should be considered, therefore, the 
NPPF should be given more weight in this instance. 

 
6.13 Criterion i) of ‘saved’ Policy 4/1 is consistent with paragraph 211 of the NPPF. 

Paragraph 211 states that in granting permission for mineral development the 
cumulative effects of multiple impacts from individual sites and/or from a number of 
sites in a locality should be taken into account. 

 
6.14 ‘Saved’ Policy 4/10 ‘Water Protection’ states that proposals for mining operations and 

the associated depositing of mineral waste will only be permitted where they would not 
have an unacceptable impact on surface or groundwater resources. Paragraph 174  of 
the NPPF states planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and local environment by preventing new and existing development from 
contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, 
unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development 
should, wherever possible, help to improve local environmental conditions such as air 
and water quality; and this policy is consistent with paragraph 174 of the NPPF and full 
weight should  be given to this policy. 

 
6.15 ‘Saved’ Policy 4/13 ‘Traffic Impact’ states ‘Where rail, waterway or other environmentally 

preferable modes of transport are not feasible, mining operations other than for coal, oil and gas 
will only be permitted where the level of vehicle movements likely to be generated can be 
satisfactorily accommodated by the local highway network and would not cause undue 

disturbance to local communities.’  This policy is consistent with paragraph 110 of the 
NPPF which promotes sustainable transport, creation of suitable access and mitigation 
of any significant impacts. Therefore, it is considered that full weight should be given to 
this policy. 

 
6.16 ‘Saved’ Policy 4/14 ‘Local Environment and Amenity’, states that proposals for mining 

operations and the associated depositing of mineral waste will be permitted only where 
there would not be an unacceptable impact upon the local environment or residential 
amenity. This Policy is considered to be consistent with paragraph 211 of the NPPF. 
Paragraph 211 states that when determining planning applications, local planning 
authorities should ensure that there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the 
natural and historic environment and human health and should take into account 
cumulative impacts of a development in a locality. It is considered that substantial 
weight should be given to this policy. 

 
6.17 ‘Saved’ Policy 4/15 Public Rights of Way states proposals for mining operations will 

‘only be permitted where satisfactory provision has been made in the application for protecting 
the existing right of way or for providing alternative arrangements both during and after working’. 

Paragraph 100  of the NPPF states that ‘…decisions should protect and enhance public 
rights of way and access’, and continues that it includes ‘taking opportunities to provide better 
facilities for users, for example by adding links to existing rights of way networks including 

National Trails’. Nevertheless, ‘saved’ Policy 4/15 maintains consistency with the NPPF 
and may, therefore, be afforded substantial weight in the determination of this 
application. 

 
6.18 Saved’ Policy 4/18 – ‘Restoration to Agriculture’, states that ‘Where agriculture is the 

intended primary afteruse, the proposed restoration scheme should provide for the best 
practicable standard of restoration. Such restoration schemes should, where possible, include 
landscape, conservation or amenity proposals provided that these do not result in the 

irreversible loss of best and most versatile land.’ It is considered that the Policy is consistent 
with paragraph  211e) of the NPPF which states that when determining applications 
planning authorities should provide for restoration and aftercare at the earliest 

Page 25



 

commrep/20 

20 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

opportunity to high environmental standards through appropriate conditions, and 
therefore should be given weight. 

 
6.19 ‘Saved’ Policy 4/20 After-care states,  

‘planning permissions which are subject to conditions requiring restoration to agriculture, 
forestry or amenity (including nature conservation) will additionally be subject to an aftercare 
requirement seeking to bring the restored land up to an approved standard for the specified 
after-use. Normally this requirement will run for a period of five years following restoration. 
Additionally, where forestry and amenity (including nature conservation) after-uses are 
proposed, the Mineral Planning Authority may seek to secure longer term management 
agreements’.  

This Policy is considered to be consistent with paragraph 211e) of the NPPF which 
includes that when determining planning applications, local planning authorities should 
provide for restoration and aftercare at the earliest opportunity to be carried out to a 
high environmental standards. 
 
Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy (2014-2028) 

6.20 Core Policy CP1 ‘Planning Positively’ advises that ‘When considering development proposals, 
the Council will take a positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework. It will always work 
proactively with applicants jointly to find solutions which mean that proposals can be approved 

wherever possible and to secure development that improves the economic, social and 

environmental conditions in the plan area’. Furthermore, stating when there are no relevant 
policies to the application or policies are out of date the council will grant permission 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether:  
1. ‘any adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy 
Framework, taken as a whole; or  

2. specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be restricted’.  

This policy is considered to be consistent with paragraph 11 of the NPPF which 
promotes sustainable development and so full weight should be given. 

 
6.21 Core Policy CP3 ‘Achieving Sustainable Development’. It states ‘that support will be 

given for sustainable development which promotes the following –  
a. the efficient use of land and infrastructure including developments with a sustainable and 
complementary mix of uses;  

e. the quality of natural resources including water, air, land and biodiversity and minimises the 
impacts of airborne pollution;  

g. the natural drainage of surface water mitigating the effects of flash flooding of rivers, drains 
and drought;  

j. the character and quality of local landscapes and the wider countryside;  

l. the historic, environmental and cultural features of acknowledged importance;  

This policy is considered to be consistent with paragraph 11 of the NPPF which 
promotes sustainable development and so full weight should be given to this policy. 
 

6.22 Core Policy CP10 ‘Developing Tourism states ‘Tourist related activities will be encouraged 
where they make a sustainable contribution to the local economy, do not have a detrimental 
impact on and, where possible, enhance the local environment and landscape. Particular priority 
will be given to supporting improvements to the range and quality of facilities and to 

redevelopment and conversion schemes rather than new building.’ This policy is considered 
to accord with part c) of paragraph 84 of the NPPF which states ‘Planning policies and 
decisions should enable: c) sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments which respect 

the character of the countryside;’ Therefore substantial weight should be applied to this 
policy. 

 
6.23 Core Policy CP12 ‘Conserving and Enhancing Environmental and Historic Assets’ 

states that ‘Development or other initiatives will be supported where they conserve and 
enhance the significance of the plan area’s natural and man-made, designated or undesignated 
assets. Development will not be supported which: 

Page 26



 

commrep/21 

21 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 a. has a detrimental impact upon the significance of a natural or man-made asset; 
 b. is inconsistent with the principles of an assets proper management. 

 In terms of environmental assets it states ‘Where avoidance of adverse impacts is not 
possible, necessary mitigation must be provided to address any potential harmful implications 
of development. Where adequate mitigation measures are not possible, compensatory 

measures will be required.’ The relevant specific asset this is applicable in this instance 
is ‘b. the landscape character of the plan area will be maintained, enhanced and where 
appropriate, restored to ensure a sustainable future for the natural and historic environment.’ 

This policy accords with paragraphs 174 and 197 of the NPPF. Paragraph 174 states 
that planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment 
by a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value and 

soils; and paragraph 197 states that in determining applications local planning 
authorities should take account of ‘c) the desirability of new development making a positive 

contribution to the local character and distinctiveness.’ Therefore, substantial weight should 
be applied to this policy. 

 

6.24 Core Policy CP13 ‘Promoting High Quality Design’ states that ‘High quality design of both 

buildings and landscaping is a priority in all development proposals. Support will be given for 
proposals that: 

 a. provide a visually attractive, functional, accessible and low maintenance development; 
 b. respect and enhance the local context and its special qualities, including its design features, 

landscape, social activities, historic environment and nationally and locally recognised 

designations; This policy accords with paragraph 130 a), b) and c) of the NPPF and so 
full weight should be applied. 

  

 Other Material Considerations:   
 

Emerging Plans:  Minerals & Waste Joint Plan (MWJP) 
6.25 Although not yet part of the Development Plan, weight in the determination process 

may also be afforded to emerging local plans depending on their progress through 
consultation and adoption. In this respect, there are emerging local policies in the 
Minerals and Waste Joint Plan (North Yorkshire County Planning Authority, the City of 
York Council and North York Moors National Park Authority) (MWJP). Policies may be 
afforded an increasing amount of weight as the Plans progress through their stages to 
adoption. The NPPF (paragraph 48) permits authorities to give weight to policies in 
emerging plans according to:  

 the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, 
the greater the weight that may be given);  

 the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less 
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); 
and  

 the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the 
policies [in the NPPF] (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies 
[in the NPPF], the greater the weight that may be given).  

 
6.26 The emerging MWJP was published in November 2016 for consultation and 

representations on the content of the plan. The MWJP was submitted to the Secretary 
of State for Communities and Local Government on 28 November 2017. While the 
Hearings have taken place the Plan continues to remain under ‘examination’. The Main 
Modifications to the emerging MWJP Plan (reported to the County Council’s BES 
Executive Members on 15th March 2019) upon which the Joint Authorities consulted.  
This ‘Draft schedule of Main Modifications to the Publication Draft document’ dated 
July 2021 was consulted upon between 21 July and 15th September 2021 and 
responses are currently being considered by the Planning Inspector. The document is 
available on the NYCC website here: https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/minerals-and-
waste-joint-plan-examination as LPA117 in the Examination Library.  

 

Page 27

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/minerals-and-waste-joint-plan-examination%20as%20LPA117
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/minerals-and-waste-joint-plan-examination%20as%20LPA117


 

commrep/22 

22 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

6.27 The degree of weight must have regard to the fact that the emerging Plan is still 
‘under examination’ and, consequently subject to change. It must, therefore, be 
approached for development management purposes with an element of caution 
proportionate to the breadth and scope of representations made in respect of the 
content of the draft policies contained therein. The degree of weight should also be 
mindful of the fact that responses to the Main Modifications consultation are currently 
being considered by the Planning Inspector, therefore, the precise policy wording 
may well be subject to change and will not become formal policy, to which full weight 
will be able to be afforded, until such time as the Plan is adopted.  As the Joint Plan 
has been, and continues to be, produced post-publication of the NPPF, there is no 
requirement to include herein NPPF-consistency statements in respect of the 
emerging MWJP policies that follow below. 
 
Emerging Strategic policies for minerals 

 M01 Broad geographical approach to supply of aggregates; 

 M05 Provision of crushed rock; 

 M06 Landbanks for crushed rock; 

 M09 Meeting crushed rock requirements; 
 

Emerging Development Management Policies 

 D01 Presumption in favour of sustainable minerals and waste; 

 D02 Local amenity and cumulative impacts; 

 D03 Transport of minerals and waste and associated traffic impacts. 

 D06 Landscape; 

 D07 Biodiversity and geodiversity 

 D08 Historic Environment; 

 D09 Water environment; 

 D10 Reclamation and afteruse; 

 D11 Sustainable design, construction and operation of development. 
 
6.28 Emerging Policy M01 in regards to Broad geographical approach to supply of 

aggregates states  ‘the Plan area outside the North York Moors National Park, the Areas of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty and the City of York will be the main focus for extraction of 
aggregate (sand and gravel and crushed rock).  

 
6.29 Emerging Policy M05 in regards to the Provision of crushed rock states ‘Total provision 

for crushed rock over the 15 year period 1st January 2016 to 31st December 2030 shall be 56.3 
million tonnes, at an equivalent annual rate of 3.75 million tonnes, within specific provision for 
a total of 22.5 million tonnes at an equivalent annual rate of 1.50 million tonnes per annum shall 
be for Magnesian Limestone. Additional provision shall be made through a mid-term review of 
provision in the Plan, if necessary, in order to maintain a minimum 10 year landbank of crushed 
rock, including a separate minimum 10 year landbank for Magnesian Limestone, at 31 
December 2030 based on annual rate of provision to be determined through the review.  

 
6.30 Emerging Policy M06 in regards to Landbanks for crushed rock states ‘A minimum 

overall landbank of 10 years will be maintained for crushed rock throughout the time period. A 
separate minimum 10 year landbank will be identified and maintained for Magnesian Limestone 
crushed rock. Where new reserves of crushed rock are required in order to maintain the overall 
landbank above the 10 year minimum period these will be sourced from outside the National; 
Park and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.’ 

 

6.31 Emerging Policy M09 Meeting Crushed Rock Requirements states that Magnesian 
Limestone will be met through existing permissions and the grant of permissions on 
allocated sites.  . Following the hearings the draft policy changed to “crushed rock”  

 

6.32 Emerging Policy D01 in regards Presumption in favour of sustainable minerals and 
waste development states ‘When considering development proposals the Authorities will 

Page 28



 

commrep/23 

23 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

take a positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
contained in the NPPF.  
Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan (and, where relevant, with 
policies in neighborhood plans) will be approved without delay, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date then 
the Authority will grant permission unless:  

 Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a 
whole.’  

 
6.33  Emerging Policy D02 in regards to Local Amenity and Cumulative Impacts states:  

‘Proposals for minerals and waste development, including ancillary development and minerals 
and waste transport infrastructure, will be permitted where it can be demonstrated that there 
will be no unacceptable impacts on local amenity, local businesses and users of the public 
rights of way network and public open space including as a result of:  

 noise,  

 dust,  

 vibration,  

 visual intrusion, ,  

 disruption to the public rights of way network,  

 cumulative effects arising from one or more of the above at a single site and/or as a result of a 
number of sites operating in the locality.  

 

Proposals will be expected as  
a first priority to prevent adverse impacts through avoidance, with the use of robust mitigation 
measures where avoidance is not practicable.  
2) Applicants are encouraged to conduct early and meaningful engagement with local 
communities in line with Statements of Community Involvement prior to submission of an 
application and to reflect the outcome of those discussions in the design of proposals as far as 

practicable’. The main modifications document amends this emerging policy to include 
reference to local communities and residents instead of the wording ‘local amenity’. 

 

6.34 Emerging policy D03 refers to transport of minerals and waste and associated traffic 
impacts, and states: 

 ‘1) Where practicable minerals and waste movements should utilize alternatives to road 
transport including rail, water, pipeline or conveyor.’ 

The rest of the emerging policy deals with the criteria for road transport, access and 
mitigation. 

 
6.35 Emerging Policy D06 concerns landscape issues and the relevant points include:  

‘1) All landscapes will be protected from the harmful effects of development. Proposals will be 
permitted where it can be demonstrated that there will be no unacceptable impact on the quality 
and/or character of the landscape, having taken into account any proposed mitigation 
measures.  
4) Where proposals may have an adverse impact on landscape, tranquillity or dark night skies, 
schemes should provide for a high standard of design and mitigation, having regard to 
landscape character, the wider landscape context and setting of the site and any visual impact, 
as well as for the delivery of landscape enhancement where practicable.’ 
 

6.36 Emerging Policy D07 refers to Biodiversity and Geodiversity. The wording of the 
emerging policy changed at the Main Modifications stage and the relevant sections 
state:  
‘1) Proposals will be permitted where it can be demonstrated that, having taken into account 
any proposed mitigation measures, there will be no unacceptable impacts on biodiversity and 
geodiversity. The level of protection provided to international, national and locally designated 
sites are outlined in parts 5) and 8) below. 
 
5) Locally important sites and assets include: 
i.  Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation (including candidate sites); 
ii  Local Nature reserves; 

Page 29



 

commrep/24 

24 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

iii Local Geological Sites; and 
iv Habitats and species of principle importance to other sites of geological or 
geomorphological importance. 
Development will not be permitted that will result in an unacceptable impact to locally important 
sites and assets unless it can be demonstrated that: 

 the benefits of development clearly outweigh the nature conservation value or scientific 

interest of the site and its contribution to biodiversity objectives and connectivity; and 

 the proposed mitigation or compensatory measures are equivalent to the value of the 

site/asset. 

8) Proposals must consider the cumulative impacts as a result of a combination of individual 
impacts from the same development and/or through combinations of impacts in conjunction 
with other development. Proposals will only be permitted where it would not give rise to 
unacceptable cumulative impacts. 

 

6.37 Emerging Policy D08 refers to Historic Environment and the relevant section states: 
‘1)  Minerals or waste development proposals will be permitted where it can be demonstrated 
that they will conserve and, where practicable, enhance those elements which contribute to the 
significance of the area’s heritage assets including their setting.’ 
 
3) Proposals that would result in less than substantial harm to the significance of a  designated 
heritage asset (or an undesignated archaeological site of national  importance) will be permitted 
only where this is outweighed by the public benefits  of the proposal. Where proposals would 
lead to substantial harm to or total loss  of the significance of a designated heritage asset (or 
an undesignated  archaeological site of national importance), planning permission will be 
refused  unless it can be shown that the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve  
substantial public benefits that outweigh the harm or loss, or all of the following  apply: 
 i) The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and 
 ii) No viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through 
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and 
 iii) Conservation by grant funding or some form of charitable or public ownership is 
demonstrably not possible; and 
 iv) The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use. 

 
6.38 Emerging Policy D09 which refers to Water Environment, states: 

‘1) Proposals for minerals and waste development will be permitted where it can be 
demonstrated that no unacceptable impacts will arise, taking into account any proposed 
mitigation, on surface or groundwater quality and/or surface or groundwater supplies and flows.  
4) Proposals for minerals and waste development should, where necessary or practicable 
taking into account the scale, nature and location of the development proposed, include 
measures to contribute to flood alleviation and other climate change mitigation and adaptation 
measures including use of sustainable urban drainage systems.’ 

 

6.39 Emerging Policy D10, in regards to Reclamation and Aftercare, states:  
‘Part 1) Proposals which require restoration and afteruse elements will be permitted where it 
can be demonstrated that they would be carried out to a high standard and, where appropriate 
to the scale and location of the development, have demonstrably:  
i) Been brought forward following discussion with local communities and other relevant 
stakeholders and, where practicable, the proposals reflect the outcome of those discussions;  
ii) Taken into account the location and context of the site, including the implications of other 
significant permitted or proposed development in the area and the range of environmental and 
other assets and infrastructure that may be affected, including any important interactions 
between those assets and infrastructure;  
iii) Reflected the potential for the proposed restoration and/or afteruse to give rise to positive 
and adverse impacts, including cumulative impacts, and have sought where practicable to 
maximise potential overall benefits and minimise overall adverse impacts;  
iv) Taken into account potential impacts on and from climate change factors;  
v) Made best use of onsite materials for reclamation purposes and only rely on imported waste 
where essential to deliver a high standard of reclamation;  
vi) Provided for progressive, phased restoration where appropriate, providing for the restoration 
of the site at the earliest opportunity in accordance with an agreed timescale;  

Page 30



 

commrep/25 

25 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

vii) Provided for the longer term implementation and management of the agreed form of 
restoration and afteruse (except in cases of agriculture or forestry afteruses where a statutory 
5 year maximum aftercare period will apply)’ 
 
Part 2) In addition to the criteria in Part 1) above, proposals will be permitted which deliver a 
more targeted approach to minerals site restoration and afteruse by contributing towards 
objectives appropriate to the nature, scale and location of the site including where relevant: 
v) In proximity to important heritage assets, ensuring that the significance of assets and their 
settings is sustained and where practicable enhanced and, also where practicable, that 
opportunities to facilitate enjoyment of the asset are provided; 

 

6.40 Emerging Policy D11 in regards to Sustainable design, construction and operation of 
development.  The emerging policy aims to allow mineral developments where it has 
been demonstrated that measures appropriate and proportionate to the scale and 
nature of the development have been incorporated into its design, construction and 
operation in relation to: 
i) Minimisation of greenhouse gas emissions by incorporating energy-efficient siting, 
design and operational practices including those relating to bulk transport of minerals; 
viii) Implementation of landscape planting comprising native species able to successfully 
adapt to climate change and, where practicable, incorporating areas of new wildlife habitat that 
would help improve habitat connectivity; 
x) For minerals workings and mineral working deposits, consideration of tip and quarry 
slope stability, the impacts of any dewatering activity and incorporating appropriate mitigation 
in the design of tips and slopes to minimize any hazard to people and property.  

The main modifications document amends the final paragraph of part 1 to reference 
hydrocarbons and add in that a climate change assessment should only be provided 
as ‘appropriate’. 

 

 National Planning Policy 

6.41 The planning policy relevant to the determination of this particular planning 
application provided at the national level is contained within the following documents: 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (published July 2021)  
 
National Planning Policy Framework 

6.42 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government’s planning 
policies for England and how these are expected to be applied.  

 
6.43 The overriding theme of Government policy in the NPPF is to apply a presumption in 

favour of sustainable development. For decision-making this means approving 
development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay (if plans 
are up-to-date and consistent with the NPPF). The Government defines sustainable 
development as that which fulfils the following three roles: 
a) ‘an economic objective – to help build a strong, responsive and competitive economy, by 
ensuring that sufficient land of the right types is available in the right places and at the right time 
to support growth, innovation and improved productivity; and by identifying and coordinating 
the provision of infrastructure;  
b) a social objective – to support strong, vibrant and healthy communities, by ensuring that a 
sufficient number and range of homes can be provided to meet the needs of present and future 
generations; and by fostering a well-designed and safe built environment, with accessible 
services and open spaces that reflect current and future needs and support communities’ 
health, social and cultural well-being; and  
c) an environmental objective – to contribute to protecting and enhancing our natural, built 
and historic environment; including making effective use of land, helping to improve biodiversity, 
using natural resources prudently, minimising waste and pollution, and mitigating and adapting 
to climate change, including moving to a low carbon economy.’ 

 
6.44 Within the NPPF, paragraph 11 of the Framework advises that when making decisions, 

development proposals that accord with the development plan should be approved 

Page 31



 

commrep/26 

26 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

without delay and when the development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are 
out of date, permission should be granted unless:  
i.) ‘the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii.) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole’. 

 
6.45 This national policy seeks to ensure that there are positive improvements in people’s 

quality of life including improving the conditions in which people live, work, travel and 
take leisure. 

 
6.46 Paragraph 48 within Chapter 4 (Decision-making) of the NPPF states that ‘Local 

planning authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to: 
 a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the greater 

weight that may be given); 
 b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less significant 

the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
 c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the 

Framework, the greater weight that may be given). 

 
6.47 Paragraphs 55 – 57 within Chapter 4 (Decision-making) of the NPPF relate to planning 

conditions and obligations. Paragraph 55 states that ‘Local planning authorities should 
consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the 
use of conditions or planning obligations. Planning obligations should only be used where it is 

not possible to address unacceptable impacts through planning condition.’ With regard to 
planning obligations paragraph 57 states that ‘Planning obligations must only be 
sought where they meet all of the following tests: 

 a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
 b) directly related to the development; 
 c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

 
6.48 Paragraph 81 within Chapter 6 (Building a strong, competitive economy) of the NPPF 

states ‘Planning policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which 
businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the 
need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local 
business needs and wider opportunities for development.’ 

 
6.49 Paragraph 84 within Chapter 6 (Building a strong, competitive economy) of the NPPF 

states ‘Planning policies and decisions should enable: c) sustainable rural tourism and leisure 
developments which respect the character of the countryside.’ 

 
6.50   Paragraph 100 within Chapter 8 (Promoting healthy and safe communities) of the 

NPPF states: ‘decisions should protect and enhance public rights of way and access, including 
taking opportunities to provide better facilities for users, for example by adding links to existing 
rights of way networks including National Trails.’ 

 
6.51 Paragraph 110 within Chapter 9 (Promoting sustainable transport) of the NPPF 

promotes the use of sustainable transport modes, provision of suitable access and 
mitigation for any significant impacts on the highway network. 

 
6.52 Paragraph 130 within Chapter 12 (Achieving well-designed places) of the NPPF state 

that decisions should  ensure that new developments :  
a) ‘function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over 
the lifetime of the development;  

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture layout and appropriate and effective 
landscaping; 

c) are sympathetic to the local character and history, including the surrounding build 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change; 

Page 32



 

commrep/27 

27 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and 
mix of development (including green and other public space) and support local facilities and 
transport networks; 

 
6.53 Paragraph 174 within Chapter 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural environment) 

of the NPPF sets out a number of principles for determining planning applications 
which aims to conserve and enhance biodiversity. These include:  
‘a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value and 
soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the 
development plan);  

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits from 
natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and other benefits of the best 
and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland;  

d) minimizing impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing 
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures. 

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put as unacceptable 
risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution 
or land instability. Development should wherever possible, help to improve local environmental 
conditions such as air and water quality, taking into account relevant information such as river 
basin management plans.’ 

 

6.54 Paragraph 180 within Chapter 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural environment) 
states that when determining planning applications local planning authorities should 
apply the following principles ‘if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development 
cannot be avoided (through locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts), 
adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for then planning permission should be 
refused; 

 c) development whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should be 
supported; while opportunities to improve biodiversity in and around developments should be 
integrated as part of their design especially where this can secure measurable net gains for 
biodiversity or enhance public access to nature where this is appropriate.’ 

 
6.55 Within Paragraph 185 within Chapter 15 (Conserving and enhancing the natural 

environment) of the framework it states that …decisions should also ensure that new 
development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including 
cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as well 
as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the 
development. In doing so they should:  
a) mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from new 
development – and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and the 
quality of life;  

b) identify and protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by noise and 
are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason; and  

c) limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark 
landscapes and nature conservation. 

 
6.56 Paragraph 194 within Chapter 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) 

of the NPPF states that ‘in determining applications, local planning authorities should require 

an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets affected, including any 
contribution made by their setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets’ 
importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on 
their significance. As a minimum the relevant historic environment record should have been 
consulted and the heritage assets assessed using appropriate expertise where necessary. 
Where a site on which development is proposed includes or has the potential to include heritage 
assets with archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require developers to 
submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, a field evaluation’. 

 

6.57 Paragraph 195 within Chapter 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) 
of the NPPF states that ‘Local planning authorities should identify and assess the particular 
significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by development 

Page 33



 

commrep/28 

28 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any 
necessary expertise. They should take this into account when considering the impact of a 
proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise any conflict between the heritage asset’s 
conservation and any aspect of the proposal.’ 

 
6.58 Paragraph 197 within Chapter 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment’ 

states that ‘In determining applications, local planning authorities should take account of: 
 a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting 

them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 
 b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable 

communities including their economic vitality; and  
 c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 

distinctiveness.’ 
 

6.59 Paragraph 199 states that ‘When considering the impact of a proposed development on the 

significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s 
conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is 
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than 
substantial harm to its significance.’ 

 
6.60 Paragraph 200 states that ‘Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage 

asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), should require 
clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:  
a) grade II listed buildings, or grade II registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional;  

b) assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites, 
registered battlefields, grade I and II* listed buildings, grade I and II* registered parks  

 
6.61 Paragraph 201 within Chapter 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) 

of the NPPF states ‘Where a proposed development will lead to substantial harm to (or total 
loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset, local planning authorities should refuse 
consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is necessary to 
achieve substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss, or all of the following apply:  
a) the nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and  

b) no viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through appropriate 
marketing that will enable its conservation; and  

c) conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public ownership 
is demonstrably not possible; and  

d) the harm or loss is outweighed by the benefit of bringing the site back into use.’  

 
6.62 Paragraph 202 states that ‘Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial 

harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against 
the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable 
use.’ 

 
6.63 Paragraph 209 within Chapter 17 (Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals) states: 

‘It is essential that there is a sufficient supply of minerals to provide the infrastructure, buildings, 
energy and goods that the country needs. Since minerals are a finite resource, and can only be 
worked where they are found, best use needs to be made of them to secure their long-term 
conservation’ 

 

6.64 Paragraph 211 within Chapter 17 (Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals) states: 
 a) as par as practical, provide for the maintenance of landbanks of non-energy minerals from 

outside National Parks, the Broads, Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty and World Heritage 
Sites, scheduled monuments and conservation areas; 

 b) ensure there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural and historic environment, 
human health or aviation safety, and take into account the cumulative effect of multiple impacts 
from individual sites and/or from a number of sites in the locality; 

 c) ensure that any unavoidable noise, dust and particle emissions and any blasting vibrations 
are controlled, mitigated or removed at source, and establish appropriate noise limits for 
extraction in proximity to noise sensitive properties; 

Page 34



 

commrep/29 

29 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 e) provide for restoration and aftercare at the earliest opportunity, to be carried out to high 
environmental standards, through the application of appropriate conditions. Bonds or other 
financial guarantees to underpin planning conditions should only be sought in exceptional 
circumstances.’  

 

6.65 Paragraph 213 within Chapter 17 (Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals) states: 
 ‘Minerals planning authorities should plan for a steady supply of aggregates by: 

a) preparing an annual Local Aggregate Assessment, either individually or jointly, to forecast 
future demand, based on a rolling average of 10 years’ sales data and other relevant local 
information, and an assessment of all supply options (including marine dredged, secondary 
and recycled sources); 

b) participating in the operation of an Aggregate Working Party and taking the advice of that 
party into account when preparing their Local Aggregates Assessment; 

c) making provision for the land-won and other elements of their Local Aggregate Assessment 
in their mineral plans, taking account of the advice of the Aggregate Working Parties and 
National Aggregate Co-ordinating Group as appropriate, Such provision should take the 
form of specific sites, preferred areas and/or areas of search and locational criteria as 
appropriate; 

d) taking account of any published National and Sub National Guidelines on future provision 
which should be used as a guideline when planning for the future demand for and for and 
supply of aggregates; 

e) using landbanks of aggregate minerals reserves principally as an indicator of the security 
of aggregate minerals supply, and to indicate the additional provision that needs to be made 
for new aggregate extraction and alternative supplies in mineral plans; 

f) maintaining landbanks of at least 7 years for sand and gravel and at least 10 years for 
crushed rock, whilst ensuring that the capacity of operations to supply a wide range of 
materials is not compromised; 

g) ensuring that large landbanks bound up in very few sites do not stifle competition; and 
calculating and maintaining separate landbanks for any aggregate materials of specific type 
or quality which have a distinct and separate market. 

National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) (2014) 

6.66 On 6th March 2014 the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) 
launched the National Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) web-based resource. This 
was accompanied by a Written Ministerial Statement which includes a list of the 
previous planning practice guidance documents cancelled. The NPPG supports the 
national policy contained within the NPPF. The guidance relevant to the determination 
of this application is contained within the following sections: - 

- Conserving and enhancing the historic environment  
- Design 
- Minerals 
- Natural Environment  
- Noise 

 
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment  

6.67  This states authorities should set out their Local Plan with a positive strategy for the 
conservation and enjoyment of the historic environment. Heritage assets may be 
affected by direct physical change or by change in their setting; therefore it is important 
to assess the significance of a heritage asset and the contribution to its setting. 
Furthermore all heritage assets settings may have more significance than the extent 
of their curtilage. The guidance also requires authorities to consider the implications of 
cumulative change and whether a development materially detracts from the asset. 

 
 Design 
6.68 This states how good design is essential to sustainable development with reference 

to the importance of it being functional, in that it relates well to its surrounding 
environment, and is designed so that it delivers its intended purpose whilst maintain a 
distinctive character. It though must also ‘reflect an area’s function, history, culture 
and its potential need for change’. Ensuring a development can: 

Page 35



 

commrep/30 

30 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 Deliver a wide range of planning objectives; 

 Enhance the quality of buildings and spaces, by considering amongst other 
things form and function; efficiency and effectiveness and their impact on wellbeing; 

 Address the need for different uses sympathetically.  
 

Minerals 
6.69 The PPG provides supplementary guidance on mineral planning and the application 

process. The PPG in its guidance recognises the supply of minerals presents special 
characteristics not necessarily relevant to other types of development proposals. For 
example:  
 ‘minerals can only be worked (i.e. extracted) where they naturally occur, so location 
options for the economically viable and environmentally acceptable extraction of minerals 
may be limited’ by these constraints;  

 ‘mineral working is a temporary activity although the extraction often takes place over 
a long period of time;  

 ‘mineral working may present both adverse and positive environmental effects, but 
some adverse impacts can be effectively mitigated; and  

 ‘following working, land should be restored to make it suitable for beneficial after-use’.  

 
6.70 The (Mineral) PPG sets out guidance on the level of detail that should be provided on 

restoration and aftercare that should be provided with the planning application whilst 
recognising such detail will depend on the circumstances of the individual site and 
the expected duration of the works but will normally include:  
 ‘an overall restoration strategy, identifying the proposed after-use of the site’;  

 Information about soil resources and hydrology, and how the topsoil/subsoil/ 
overburden/ soil making materials are to be handled whilst extraction is taking place’;  

 ‘where the land is agricultural land, an assessment of the agricultural land 
classification grade’;  

 ‘a landscape strategy’; and  

 ‘where work is proposed on the best and most versatile agricultural land the outline 
strategy should show, where practicable, how the methods used in the restoration and 
aftercare enable the land to retain its longer term capability, though the proposed after-use 
need not always be for agriculture’; and  

 ‘restoration may, in some cases, need to be undertaken in phases so as to minimize 
local disturbance impacts.’ 

 
Natural Environment 

6.71 The PPG underpins one of the NPPF core principles of protecting the character and 
visual integrity of the natural environment including designated landscapes and the 
wider countryside in general. Where appropriate the PPG promotes the undertaking of 
landscape assessments to accompany planning applications to provide an 
understanding of the character and local distinctiveness of the landscape by identifying 
the features that give it a sense of place. 

 
 Noise 
6.72 In terms of decision taking on planning applications the NPPG states that planning 

Authorities should take account of the acoustic environment and in doing so consider 
whether or not a significant adverse effect is occurring or likely to occur; whether or not 
an adverse effect is occurring or likely to occur; and whether or not a good standard of 
amenity can be achieved. It also states that “neither the Noise Policy Statement for 
England nor the National Planning Policy Framework (which reflects the Noise Policy 
Statement) expects noise to be considered in isolation, separately from the economic, 
social and other environmental dimensions of proposed development. 

 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

commrep/31 

31 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

7.0 Planning considerations 
 
7.1 Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides for applications for 

planning permission to develop land without complying with conditions previously 
imposed on a planning permission. A decision can be to grant such permission 
unconditionally or to grant subject to different conditions if they were capable of being 
imposed on the original consent, or it can be to refuse the application if a decision is 
made that the original condition(s) should continue. In any event the original consent 
remains intact and capable of being relied upon until a section 73 consent is 
implemented. If permission is forthcoming, it is open to the Applicant to decide whether 
to implement the new permission. 

 

7.2 With a Section 73 application the Planning Authority is required to consider only the 
question of the conditions subject to which planning permission should be granted. This 
does not prevent the Planning Authority from looking at the wider considerations and 
relevant planning considerations and policies in determining the conditions to be 
considered and planning authorities are not restricted to policies and planning 
considerations in force at the time the previous permission was determined.   

 

7.3 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that all 
planning authorities must determine each planning application in accordance with the 
planning policies that comprise the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. In light of the abovementioned policies the main considerations in 
this application are set out below.   

 
Principle of the proposed development 

7.4 The application seeks to amend some conditions attached to an extant planning 
permission C1/14/00747/CM. The principle of mineral extraction from Middleton Lodge 
Quarry has already been established by previous permissions commencing with the 
2010 Appeal Decision APP/P2745/A/09/2119601 and the permission subject to this 
application C1/14/00747/CM accepted that the principle had been previously 
established. The current proposal would not increase the area previously approved for 
extraction. The extant permission is for the extraction of limestone and restoration to a 
quarry garden and green park which would form an extension to the grounds of 
Middleton Lodge which is a visitor attraction, hotel and wedding venue. The current 
expiry date for extraction is 2028, but at the current rate of extraction the predicted 
amount of limestone would not be extracted by this date. Currently work is continuing 
on Phase 2 of the development where year round extraction is taking place on the 
quarry garden. Once the development moves onto Phase 3 conditions 7 and 20 do not 
permit extraction or blasting between 1st April and 1st October each year. It is proposed 
to amend these conditions to allow all year round working and blasting with the aim of 
still completing extraction by 2028. Since the restoration plan details are listed in 
Conditions 1, 10, 14, 26, 27 and 30 these conditions would be amended to include the 
updated plan references, if the proposal receives approval the condition numbers will 
change from 10 to 8, from 14 to 12, from 26 to 24, from 27 to 25 and from 30 to 28 in 
the decision notice as some of the other existing conditions have been discharged and 
so are no longer required to be included in the Decision Notice, as detailed in paragraph 
7.40 of this report.  

 
7.5 While the in principle acceptability of the development is already established there is a 

requirement to consider any potential adverse impacts on the environment and amenity 
arising from the proposed condition amendments.  

 
7.6 As the consideration in this proposal is to extend the months of working for Phase 3 

and provide a revised restoration scheme it is considered acceptable in terms of ‘saved’ 
Policy 4/1, Determination of Planning Applications because the mineral deposit has 

Page 37



 

commrep/32 

32 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

already been identified and assessed in previous applications and the siting and scale 
of the development remains the same which as was considered acceptable previously 
and accords with paragraph 213 of the NPPF which details how the provision of  
landbanks for aggregates, including limestone, should be recorded and include the 
sales and reserves of existing sites. The proposal is considered sustainable 
development as the proposal is to amend some of the conditions to an extant planning 
permission without altering the size of the extraction area or amount of limestone 
extracted and is proposing restoration which will be used for leisure and tourism making 
the future of the site sustainable. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal in 
compliance with Policies CP1, Planning positively and CP3, Achieving sustainable 
development, in the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy and paragraph 11 of the 
NPPF The proposed development is to continue to form a garden for Middleton Lodge 
and would be a tourist attraction once complete, the proposed variation of condition 
application would alter the design of the lake in the quarry garden and the design of the 
grassland area in Phase 3.  The creation of a garden is supported by Policy CP10, 
Developing Tourism, in the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy as it would provide 
a ‘sustainable contribution to the local economy’ and ‘enhance the local environment and 

landscape.’  The provision of a tourist attraction is also supported by paragraph 84 of 
the NPPF which states that planning decisions should enable sustainable rural tourism 
which respect the character of the countryside. In terms of location the extraction area 
does not conflict with Policy M01, Broad geographic approach to aggregates, of the 
emerging MWJP and draft Policy D01, Presumption in favour of sustainable minerals 
and waste development, of the emerging MWJP. 

 
7.7 The planning application is to vary some conditions on extant permission 

C1/14/00747/CM, the conditions affected would be 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27 and 
30.  

 Condition 1 contains a list of the Approved Documents, which would be updated if the 
proposed planning permission were to be granted; 

 Conditions 6, 10, 14, 26, 27, 30 amendments would be a change in plan reference in 
the condition text; 

 Conditions 7 and 20 amendments would result in the removal of the text which limits 
the working of Phase 3 to be outside the 1st April and 1st October each year. The 
removal of this text would enable year round working in Phase 3. 

 Condition 24 amendment would allow all topsoil and subsoil to permanently retained 
for use in restoration. 

 
7.8 The principle of this proposal is to amend conditions to provide an updated restoration 

scheme and change the months within which Phase 3 can be worked from winter only, 
to all year round. The principle of the development as a whole is to extract limestone 
and to restore the site to a visitor attraction that would be linked with Middleton Lodge. 
It is considered that the principle of the development is established and is sustainable 
development which is supported by national and local policies.  

 
Need 

7.9 ‘Saved’ Policies 3/2, Preferred Areas and 3/3, Areas of Search in the NYMLP 1997 
identified areas which could be used for the extraction of aggregates, and paragraph 
213 of the NPPF details the need for landbanks for aggregates, which includes 
limestone. Middleton Lodge Quarry is not included in either the Preferred Areas or the 
Areas of Search but the need for the carboniferous limestone was identified in previous 
applications C1/33/80G/CM and C1/14/00747/CM and therefore need is established 
and this application does not seek to amend the volume or term of extraction. Extraction 
has occurred on site since 2012 and forms part of the landbank for meeting 
requirements for carboniferous limestone over the Plan period in the draft MWJP. The 
expected amount of limestone which would be extracted remains the same so the 
contribution to the landbank and supply chain remains the same. The applicant is 
concerned that there has been less limestone extracted than forecast and this would 

Page 38



 

commrep/33 

33 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

result in, some available limestone which would not have been extracted by 2028. The 
2010 appeal decision APP/P2745/A/09/2119601 supported the extraction of limestone 
and restoration to a visitor attraction at Middleton Lodge Estate with conditions, 
including the end date of 2028.  

 
7.10 Currently extracted limestone is moved by conveyor belt to nearby Barton Quarry for 

processing all year round in Phase 2 providing a continuous supply for the processing 
plant. However once the extraction moves into Phase 3 there would only be limestone 
provided six months of the year in accordance with conditions 7 and 20 and no room 
to stockpile reserves to provide supply for the remaining six months. To resolve this the 
applicant is proposing to amend conditions 7 and 20 to allow year round working of 
Phase 3.  The appeal decision on APP/P2745/A/09/2119601 included a condition to 
limit working in Phase 3 during the winter months based on the potential impact on 
amenity, especially in terms of Middleton Lodge. If conditions 7 and 20 were not 
amended to allow year round working then the Applicant has indicated that extraction 
of the predicted level reserves would not occur by 2028, which would affect the 
landbank for Carboniferous Limestone, the change in these conditions is supported by 
the need for the mineral to be extracted by 2028. The continued extraction of 
carboniferous limestone is supported by emerging Policies M05, Provision of crushed 
rock, M06, Landbanks for crushed rock and M09, Meeting crushed rock requirements 
within the emerging MWJP and paragraphs 209 and 211 of the NPPF supply of 
minerals.  In terms of emerging Policy M06 and paragraph 209 the reserves of 
limestone in Middleton Lodge Quarry is included in the calculation of the total landbank 
for crushed rock and carboniferous limestone within North Yorkshire County Council 
plan area, if these reserves were not extracted it would lower the landbank and there 
would be a reduced supply of carboniferous limestone.  The Main Modification to 
emerging Policy M09, detailed in paragraph 6.32, supports the provision of 
carboniferous limestone from unallocated sites where the development would 
contribute to the maintenance of the supply of crushed rock. Middleton Lodge Quarry 
is an unallocated site as it was operational before the MWJP was produced but the 
carboniferous limestone reserves contribute to the landbank.  

 
7.11 Therefore, as the amendments for conditions 7 and 20 are related to an existing active 

limestone extraction site where the reserves have been taken into account in the 
landbank, and the amended conditions 7 and 20 would allow the continuation of year 
round working into Phase 3 to ensure the projected amount of limestone would be 
extracted within the required 15 year period up to 2028 to help fulfil the requirement for 
provision of Carboniferous Limestone. Therefore, in terms of need the proposal is 
considered acceptable and in line with local and national policy. 

 
Design, visual impact and landscape 

7.12 Middleton Lodge Quarry is within the Registered Park and Gardens of Middleton Lodge 
Estate which includes Grade II and Grade II* listed buildings. The listed buildings are 
separated from Middleton Lodge Quarry by an established wood so the quarry cannot 
be seen from the location or setting of the listed buildings.  

 
7.13     Part of the proposal to vary conditions is as a result of a revised restoration plan being 

submitted. The design of Phase 2, which is the Quarry Garden, would change as it is 
proposed to raise the level of the floor of the Quarry Garden from 80m AOD, in the 
approved scheme, to 83.5m AOD to allow drainage to occur by gravity rather than using 
a pump. The overall appearance of Phase 2 would change as the fountain has been 
removed from the scheme.  The floor level of the lake would be raised but this would 
have no visual impact on the restoration scheme. It is considered that the removal of 
the fountain would reduce the visual impact of the restored quarry on the setting of the 
Registered Park and Garden compared to the restoration scheme agreed at the time 
of the Appeal (APP/P2745/A/09/2119601) The Quarry Garden has been designed to 
become a tourist attraction linked to Grade II Middleton Lodge and would be fully 

Page 39



 

commrep/34 

34 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

accessible to wheelchairs and pushchairs. The Quarry Garden would contain a number 
of benches which spiral round the edge of the quarry to the quarry floor. The quarry 
floor within the garden would be formed using clay and scalpings from Phase 2 and 3 
and would slope gently down towards the lake. Different types of plants would be used 
within the quarry garden, as detailed in Appendix 3: Restoration and aftercare, of the 
Planning Statement for this application with the intention of creating a number of 
strongly contrasting vegetation types that can be created over extensive areas of the 
restored quarry. 

 
7.14 The design of Phase 3 would include a lake with marginal planting at the lowest point 

and agricultural grassland, above the quarry faces in the north  of the area the 
grassland would be pasture. Restoration blasting would break up the quarry faces 
leaving some exposed rock faces and buttresses with meadow grassland slopes 
between them and scattered native tree and shrub planting along them. No field 
drainage would be required as surface water would percolate directly into the limestone 
and flow into the lake. This lake would be connected to the lake in the quarry garden, 
which will then discharge into the small pond fed by the spring to the east.  

 
7.15 In terms of design and landscape no objections to the proposal were received from 

consultees. The Ecologist welcomed the change in design in Phase 3 as it ensured the 
trees near Mound C would be retained, along with the trees associated with it, and so 
removed the reason for previous concerns with the 2016 application which was 
withdrawn. One objection was received from a local resident who lives within sight of 
the quarry who states that some of the saplings on Mound C have died and when work 
takes place in Phase 3B it will be in the sight line of their property which they consider 
unacceptable and so requested additional planting in the wood adjacent to Phase 3B 
to provide additional screening. In their representation the objector  made it clear that 
it was the area of land to the east of bund ‘C’ they were concerned about, as even with 
bund ‘C’ in place they were concerned that when extraction occurred in this area of 
Phase 3 it would be in the sight line of their property.  It is worth noting here that the 
Phase 3B the objector is referring to relates to an area in the previous application which 
was withdrawn. In terms of the current application the area they are referring to is Phase 
3a identified on plan NT03435/28/014/A Phases 1 and 3 Planting Plan (2016), which is 
the area to the east of Mound C. The area identified as Phase 3b on this plan lies in 
front of Mound C and therefore is not in the sightline of the resident.  The objection 
needs to be considered in terms of whether it is a material planning concern, the failure 
of the saplings to grow on Mound ‘C’ is considered material and discussion regarding 
the benefit of Mound C is included in the 2010 Appeal decision 
APP/P2745/A/09/2119601. In the Appeal decision APP/P2745/A/09/2119601 at 
paragraph 45 it states that ‘North Road Farm and Kiln Head Spring are both to the north of 
the site and could potentially have a view into phases 1 and 3b, the other phases screened by 

the woodland at Acre Howden Plantation.’ It also states that Mound C is being provided as 
mitigation to provide screening between the gaps in the trees along the north eastern 
edge of the site and would prevent views into the operational phase 1 and phase 3 
voids. Therefore the loss of a view by the proposed extraction in Phase 3 is considered 
material in planning terms as reference in the 2010 Appeal decision. The Applicant has 
held a meeting with the objector and the Applicant has agreed to replace the dead 
saplings and increase the number of saplings on top of Mound C to improve the 
screening provided by this. In terms of screening provided by the wood adjacent to 
Phase 3 the Applicant considers this acceptable, since it has not been objected to in 
terms of working Phase 3 during the winter months when there are no leaves on the 
trees, and the level of screening will increase in the summer months when there are 
leaves on the trees. There have been no concerns raised by any of the consultees in 
terms of views. 

 
7.16 The Objector has not withdrawn their objection. The failure of some of the saplings is 

considered material, however the proposed replacement and increase in number of the 
Page 40



 

commrep/35 

35 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

saplings by the Applicant is considered a positive action and will mitigate the loss of the 
original saplings. The potential impact of extraction in Phase 3 on the view is also 
considered to be a material consideration. Phase 3 is screened by woodland and 
extraction is currently permitted during the winter months, when there is less foliage on 
the trees in the wood, the screening would be greater in the summer due to the foliage 
on the trees. It is considered that the screening provided by the additional planting and 
trees in full leaf during the summer months would be acceptable for the temporary 
period that extraction would take place.  The Landscape Architect, Ecologist and 
District Council Officers are satisfied with the proposal so the mitigation proposed will 
satisfy the material parts of the objection and comply with relevant policies as set out 
below in paragraph 7.17. 

 
7.17 Therefore in terms of design the proposed development accords with Policy CP13 of 

the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy which promotes high quality design and 
landscaping where support would be given to proposals which are visually attractive, 
functional, accessible and low maintenance. The proposal accords with ‘saved’ Policy 
4/1 d) of the NYMLP as the revised landscaping and screening has been designed to 
effectively mitigate the impact of the proposal. It is considered that the proposal is 
supported by Emerging Policy D11 1) viii) of the emerging MWJP as the planting 
proposed will include native trees and shrubs which will adapt to climate change. The 
proposal also accords with paragraph 130 of the NPPF as it would add to the quality of 
the local area, would be visually attractive and be sympathetic to the local environment. 
In terms of landscape it largely reflects the restoration proposal for the extant 
permission which was, and is still considered acceptable. The most visible change 
would be the fact that the fountain as provided in the extant consent is not included in 
the revised scheme, which would reduce the visual impact of the restored site. There 
have been no objections received from expert consultees which supports the view that 
the scheme is considered acceptable. The proposal accords with emerging Policy D06 
in the MWJP in regards to landscape, and whilst the landscape would be impacted in 
the short term while extraction takes place, the restoration would provide a quarry 
garden with planting and a lake and grassland with trees and shrubs in the long term. 
The proposed restoration scheme accords with paragraph 174 of the NPPF as it aims 
to enhance the landscape. In planning terms the design of the restoration proposal is 
considered acceptable and will not have an adverse impact on the landscape or visual 
amenity of the site or any of the heritage assets within the Middleton Lodge Estate, 
which is further considered starting at paragraph 7.23 below. 

 
7.18 There is a Public Right of Way (PROW) just outside the red line boundary of the site. 

In their initial response the PROW Team outlined action which would need to be taken 
if the PROW would be temporarily or permanently affected by the proposed 
development. Following receipt of the comment the applicant has confirmed that the 
PROW would not be affected either during the works or after completion. The PROW 
team were satisfied with this in their follow-up response and stated that the applicant 
would not need to take any action in relation to the PROW. Consideration has been 
given to the visual impact of the proposed development and it is considered there would 
be no material change to the appearance of the site, a soil bund has been created 
alongside the northern driveway which screens the quarrying activity from those using 
the PROW. Furthermore, the separation distance from the nearest visual receptors has 
not been amended since the original grant of permission, therefore it is still considered 
that the proposal is successfully screened from view and mitigated through the use of 
conditions and would not result in an unacceptable visual impact. It is considered that 
the proposal accords with ‘saved’ Policy 4/15 of the NYMLP, Policy D02 of the emerging 
MWJP and paragraph 100 of the NPPF as the proposal will not have any adverse effect 
on the PROW which is close to the site.  It is considered that the development would 
not have an adverse impact on the visual amenity of the area and accords with 
paragraphs 130 of the NPPF, Policies 4/1 and 4/15 of the North Yorkshire Minerals 
Local Plan. The proposal would also be in compliance with the general direction of the 

Page 41



 

commrep/36 

36 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

emerging Minerals and Waste Joint Plan Policy D02 Local Amenity and Cumulative 
Impacts, D06 Landscape and D11 Sustainable design, construction and operation of 
development. 

 
7.19  Therefore it is considered the proposed development is acceptable in terms of design, 

landscape and visual impact and complies with local and national policy. This is 
secured by revised conditions 8 and 25 listed in Section 9 of this report. 

 
Local amenity (noise) 

7.20 The nearest property to Middleton Lodge Quarry is Middleton Lodge which includes 
Grade II and Grade II* listed buildings. The Quarry is also with the Registered Park 
and Gardens of Middleton Lodge Estate. The impact of the proposed changes in 
condition on local amenity have been considered. The change in condition which could 
affect local amenity would be the year round working of Phase 3, instead of limiting it 
to the winter months, which could produce a noise impact from the extraction process 
due to the use of machinery and some blasting. It is worth noting that the reason for 
the original condition of only working Phase 3 in the winter months was that it was 
anticipated that Phase 2 would be complete before the work on Phase 3 started and 
the Quarry Garden would be used by people visiting Middleton Lodge, as a tourist 
attraction, which is generally in the summer months, at the time of the Appeal decision 
APP/P2745/A/09/2119601. It was anticipated that work on Phase 3 would not start until 
Phase 2 was completed and the Phased 3 work would start adjacent to Phase 2 which 
could impact the visitors to the Quarry Garden. With the proposed changes to the 
restoration scheme the completion of the Quarry Garden relies on receiving some clay 
and scalpings from Phase 3, so the Quarry Garden will not be complete when the work 
on Phase 3 starts. The appeal decision APP/P2745/A/09/2119601 stated the condition 
to limit working in Phase 3 to be only during the winter months was based on the 
potential impact on amenity of visitors to the Quarry Garden and nearby residential 
properties. The appeal decision also stated that extraction should only take place for a 
period of 15 years, which gives an end date of 2028. If the six month working remains, 
by the end of the 15 years the projected amount of limestone will not have been 
extracted, which would impact on the landbank and the reserves of limestone would 
remain in the ground.  

 
7.21 It is currently anticipated that the Quarry Garden will not be complete until 2025, by 

this time extraction in Phase 3 is expected to be 200 metres to the North West of the 
Quarry Garden with the area already worked in Phase 3 being progressively restored. 
Due to the fact there would be a delay in the completion of Phase 2 and Phase 3 would 
be partially worked moving towards the north west of the site the adverse impact on 
Middleton Lodge would be lessened. Having year round working in Phase 3 would be 
comparable to the current working in Phase 2 in terms of noise, vibration and dust 
impact as the same site equipment and blasting methods would be used to extract the 
lime stone.  Consequently any impact of the working of Phase 3 on visitors to the 
Quarry Garden will be mitigated by distance.  

 
7.22 Richmondshire District Council Environmental Health Officer did not raise any 

concerns as long as the existing hours of operation remain the same and current 
conditions 17, 18, and 19, which related to noise, remained. Current conditions 7 and 
20 include the hours of operation, and also the text regarding only working Phase 3 
between 1st October and 1st April, the reference to working only winter months would 
be removed but the hours of operation would not change. Current condition 17 ensures 
equipment and vehicles on site are fitted with attenuating equipment, this condition is 
renumbered as condition 15 in Section 9 of this report, Condition 18 ensures that the 
noise levels for the operations at the quarry are acceptable, this condition is 
renumbered as condition 16 in Section 9 of this report,  and Condition 19 ensures that 
noise levels during soil and overburden stripping are acceptable, this condition is 
renumbered as condition 17 in Section 9 of this report. Due to some conditions being 

Page 42



 

commrep/37 

37 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

discharged the current condition numbers have changed from 7, 17, 18, 19 and 20 to 
5, 15, 16, 17 and 18 respectively.  Middleton Tyas Parish Council responded stating 
that changing the working of Phase 3 to year round working makes it more likely 
properties further away from Middleton Lodge may hear the blasting when it occurs, 
concern was raised about the noise from outdoor events held at Middleton Lodge itself 
having an impact on local amenity. Outdoor events are not a material planning 
consideration for mineral extraction as this would be an issue for the Environmental 
Health Officer and live music licencing is outside of planning’s remit. There were no 
representations from any residents which supported this view and the reference to 
outdoor events demonstrates that there is more than one noise generating activity at 
Middleton Lodge. The Parish Council requested further properties to be consulted as 
neighbours, this was not considered necessary due to the distance the properties are 
away from the site, the fact that no complaints have been received in relation to 
extraction activities at the site and site notices were placed in several locations around 
the site boundary and in Middleton Tyas and Barton Village. Case Officers have 
discretion regarding who is consulted, all statutory requirement have been completed, 
the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2015 states that notice should be served on any adjoining owner or occupier, 
the properties suggested by the Parish Council are not adjoining properties. 

 
7.23 Vibration and dust are also considerations in terms of amenity. The 2010 Appeal 

decision APP/P2745/A/09/2119601 stated that the background noise levels in the area 
were relatively high mainly due to traffic noise from the nearby A1. As explained above 
conditions in relation to noise were provided as mitigation for the working of the site. 
Conditions were also included to control when blasting takes place, maximum ground 
vibration levels and a minimum of 24 hour’s notice of blasting to be given to the nearest 
residential properties, detailed in 7.22 below. The Inspector was satisfied that the 
impact of the proposal on nearby homes and the heritage assets of Middleton Lodge 
Estate, in terms of noise and vibration, could be adequately mitigated. As part of the 
Appeal decision dust was considered as an issue and the Inspector was satisfied that 
with suitable monitoring and enforcement, appropriate safeguards could be put in place 
to control and adequately mitigate dust from the site such that there would be no 
materially harmful impact on the local environment, on the setting of Middleton Lodge 
Estate or on residential amenity. A condition was included that required a Dust Action 
Plan for the suppression and monitoring of dust which needed to be submitted before 
extraction of the mineral was started. A Dust Action Plan was submitted and approved 
as part of Planning Application NY/2011/0492/A30. The renumbered Condition 21 in 
Section 9 of this report requires the Dust Action Plan to be adhered to control the level 
of dust generated and to ensure that it does not have an adverse impact. 

 
7.24 No complaints have been received in relation to the operation of Middleton Lodge 

Quarry by the County Planning Authority. There is currently year round extraction 
occurring in Phase 2, this is the part of the site nearest to the nearest buildings which 
are at Middleton Lodge. A letter was provided from Middleton Lodge Estates as part of 
the submission documents, which states that the estate is not impacted by the current 
quarry operations and since the working in Phase 3 is further away from Middleton 
Lodge it will have less of an impact, they also support the application as it will help 
reduce the overall length of quarrying operations on site and significantly improve the 
long term restoration of the site to a garden will enhance the facilities on site. ‘Saved’ 
Policy 4/14, Local Environmental Amenity, of the NYMLP states that mining operations 
will only be permitted where there would not be an unacceptable impact on the local 
environment and local amenity. Emerging Policy D02, Local Amenity and Cumulative 
Impacts, in the emerging MWJP allows minerals development where there will be no 
unacceptable impacts on the local amenity, local businesses and users of the public 
rights of way network, if there is an impact then mitigation should be used. Paragraph 
185 of the NPPF requires that development should take account of the likely effects of 
the development on living conditions and the environment paying special attention to 

Page 43



 

commrep/38 

38 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

noise. The NPPG section on noise states consideration should be taken of whether 
the proposed development has or would have a significant adverse noise impact and 
whether a good standard of amenity can be achieved.  It is acknowledged that the 
proposed change of operational hours for Phase 3 from winter working to all year round 
working would generate noise during the summer months, this already occurs in Phase 
2 without any reported adverse impact in terms of noise. Conditions in the extant 
permission will be carried through to this s73 consent if forthcoming and are 
renumbered Conditions 15, 16 and 17 to mitigate the noise generated by quarry activity 
on site. The mitigation ensures that the noise levels remain within acceptable limits. 
The working of Phase 3 in relation to the opening of the Quarry Garden (Phase 2) is 
proposed to be changed as the completion and restoration of Phase 2 is reliant on 
receiving clay and scalpings from Phase 3 and it is anticipated that by the time Phase 
2 is fully restored ready to be open to the public the workings in Phase 3 will be far 
enough away so as the extraction activities will not impact users of the Quarry Garden.    

 
7.25 When the original consent was granted it was determined that the working on Phase 3 

nearest to the Quarry Garden would occur when the Quarry Garden was open as a 
tourist attraction, and so have an unacceptable amenity impact, particularly in terms of 
noise. However the current proposal relies on clay and scalpings to be provided from 
Phase 3 for restoration and the Quarry Garden is not expected to open until 2025, by 
which time the extraction in Phase 3 will have moved 200 meters north west and so 
the noise impact will be much less and will not be considered unacceptable for visitors 
to the Quarry Garden. The existing conditions relating to noise would be carried 
forward to provide mitigation for the working of Phase 3, this includes a noise 
monitoring scheme for the site. Renumbered Condition 10 requires that a minimum of 
24 hours’ notice to be given to residential properties Kiln Head Spring, Limekiln 
Cottage, Middleton Lodge, Mill Farm, North Road Farm, The Farmhouse, The 
Gatehouse, Under Kneeton and Woodhouse Farm of the times that blasting will be 
taking place. There is also mitigation in the form of conditions which limit the level of 
noise during working. Therefore, it is considered that any impact on local amenity is 
acceptable with the inclusion of mitigation in the form of conditions and so the proposal 
accords with emerging Policy D02 of the MWJP, ‘saved’ policy 4/14 the NPPF and 
NPPG.  If the proposal were approved then the relevant condition numbers would 
change from 17, 18 and 19 to 15, 16 and 17 respectively. 

 
The Historic Environment 

7.26 Middleton Lodge Quarry is within the grounds of Middleton Lodge Estate which 
includes Grade II and Grade II* listed buildings and is included within the Register of 
Parks and Gardens of Special Historic Interest.  Planning permission C1/14/00747/CM 
includes conditions which involve the renovation of some of the Listed Buildings within 
the estate and these conditions will be carried forward if permission is forthcoming. 

 
7.27 The safeguarding against the potential adverse impacts upon interests of cultural 

and/or historic importance and/or heritage value from the effects associated with 
proposed developments is embedded within the core principles of the NPPF. The 
national planning policy with particular relevance to the safeguarding of the historic 
landscape and interests of heritage value can be found within Paragraph 194 that 
ensures that applicants have regard to the historic environment by assessing both its 
setting and significance when putting forward proposals and wherever possible avoid 
or minimising a proposals impacts upon such interests. Paragraph 195 of the NPPF 
requires local authorities to identify and access the particular significance of any 
heritage asset which may be affected by a proposed development and take this into 
account when considering the impact of the proposal. Additionally, Paragraph 197, 199 
and 200 are also relevant in their emphasis upon ensuring that proposed developments 
are so planned such that their impacts do not give rise to substantial harm upon 
interests within the historic environment of significance being mindful that a feature of 

Page 44



 

commrep/39 

39 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

interest may not necessarily be disregarded in any assessment solely by virtue of its 
non-designation, so long as a both a reasonable and proportionate approach is taken. 

 
7.28 Furthermore, the provisions of Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings & 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990 are also engaged in the determination of this particular 
application. While this current application for variation of conditions, per se, does not 
concern an application for Listed Building Consent nor any proposals directly affecting 
such designations, it does lie within the grounds of assets and, therefore, the applicable 
test against which the County Planning Authority is obliged to assess such proposals 
is that ‘special regard’ must be had to the “desirability of preserving [such] building[s] 
or [their] setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which [they] 
possess”. 

 
7.29 The specific tests for consideration are whether the proposed development would give 

rise to a circumstance where substantial harm to the interests of either a listed building 
or structure or their settings or total loss of their significance would arise as a result of 
the effects of the development. Special regard must also be had to the desirability of 
preserving any identified designated heritage asset. Where a proposed development 
is deemed to lead to less than substantial harm, the assessment of the development 
must be weighed against the attendant public benefits of a proposal. 

 
7.30 It is considered that the applicant is aware of the heritage assets as required by 

paragraph 194, as the planning application boundary includes the listed buildings and 
registered park and gardens of Middleton Lodge Estate. At Middleton Lodge the Lodge, 
stable block and associated buildings are considered to be a significant heritage asset 
being Grade II* and Grade II listed, this was reflected in the 2010 Appeal decision  
APP/P2745/A/09/2119601.  The judgement within the Appeal decision in paragraph 68 
states ‘While introducing a significantly different landscape feature resulting in change to part 
of the Registered Park and Garden, it would not in its own right harmfully detract from the totality 
or significance of this heritage asset. Nor by reason of its siting, design and screening would it 

have any material impact of the setting of the listed Lodge.’ When taking into account the 
potential effects of the proposed change in conditions on the proposed development 
upon designated assets and their settings it was concluded there is low potential for 
visual impact to the setting of the stable block and other heritage assets as there is an 
established wood between the listed buildings and the quarry. The outcome of public 
consultation and the seeking of expert views through consultation on the application 
revealed no contrary views against the conclusions of the assessment of visual impacts 
upon designated assets and/or their settings. There are features in the local landscape 
which would serve to minimise any potential significant adverse visual impact upon the 
nearest designated assets or their settings to a level sufficient to be considered 
acceptable in land use planning terms.  

 
7.31 In the particular instance of this application, when assessed against the criteria for 

paragraph 199 of the NPPF, which states that great weight should be given to a historic 
asset’s conservation and the more important the asset the greater the weight should 
be, paragraph 200 of the NPPF states that any harm to or loss of the significance of a 
designated heritage asset from development within its setting should require clear and 
convincing justification. Paragraph 201 of the NPPF states that where a development 
will lead to substantial harm of a designated heritage asset consent should be refused 
unless it can be demonstrated that the harm is necessary to achieve substantial public 
benefits. It is considered that paragraph 201 of the NPPF is not engaged in this 
proposal as the potential harm is not substantial. Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states 
that where development would lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of 
a heritage asset the harm should be weighed against the public benefit of the proposal.   
It is considered that the planning judgement is that there would be less than substantial 
harm from the proposed change in conditions on the proposed development in terms 
of designated assets and their setting, including the stables of Middleton Lodge and 

Page 45



 

commrep/40 

40 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Middleton Lodge itself, including their conservation. It is considered that there would 
be less than substantial harm due to the quarry site being separated from the buildings 
at Middleton Lodge by a wood, which would lessen the impact of the proposed 
development on the Listed Buildings and their setting ensuring their conservation and 
the significance of the heritage asset will not be affected. In accordance with para 202 
of the NPPF it is necessary to weigh any less than substantial harm against the public 
benefits of the proposal. It is considered that the public benefit would occur once 
restoration was complete as the restored quarry would form a visitor attraction forming 
part of the Middleton Lodge Estate. Paragraph 202 is engaged as it is judged that there 
is potential for less than substantial harm, but once restoration is complete the site will 
add an additional attraction to the Middleton Lodge Estate which will be for the benefit 
of visitors to Middleton Lodge, hence providing a public benefit. The extraction of the 
carboniferous limestone is also in the public benefit as the stone can be used for the 
restoration and repair of the buildings which are part of Middleton Lodge and also used 
to produce concrete which can be used in construction projects. Taking into 
consideration the proposals as put forward, they are considered to be consistent with 
the NPPF’s aims and objectives in this respect and the special regard to the desirability 
of preserving the setting of the listed buildings in Section 66 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and therefore it is considered, been satisfied 
in this particular instance. 

 
7.32 The restoration of Middleton Lodge Quarry has been designed to provide a visitor 

attraction which will link to and complement the facilities at Middleton Lodge. The 
proposed change to conditions involve a revised restoration scheme and a change to 
the months of working in Phase 3 from six months during the winter to being all year 
round. The main visible change to the restoration scheme would be not installing the 
fountain approved in the original restoration scheme, which has been done so a pump 
does not need to be installed to circulate the water. Another feature of the proposed 
restoration would be to raise the floor level of the lake in the Quarry Garden to simplify 
the drainage system to be based on gravity rather than relying on a pump. The change 
of working in Phase 3 to all year round working would not have any greater impact on 
the heritage asset or its setting than if it was left as six months, as until the extraction 
and restoration is complete the site would not be used as an added attraction for 
Middleton Lodge. The size of the quarry garden would not change but scheme would 
include the removal of the fountain. 

 
7.33 Therefore, the proposal accords with Policy CP12, Conserving and Enhancing 

Environmental Historic Assets in the Richmondshire Local Plan Core Strategy, which 
states that proposals should support the conservation and enhancement of designated 
assets and the landscape character should be restored to ensure a sustainable future 
for historic environment, the proposed restoration scheme, once complete, would 
enhance the landscape character of the Registered Park and Garden at Middleton 
Lodge. The proposal also accords with emerging Policy D08, Historic Environment, of 
the emerging MWJP as it will ‘enhance those elements which contribute to the significance 

of the area’s heritage assets including their setting’ the proposed restoration would provide 
an attraction within the setting of the historic asset which would complement the 
buildings of Middleton Lodge as the same type of limestone is being used in the quarry 
garden and the adjoining grassland The proposal also accords with paragraph 197 of 
the NPPF which promotes sustaining and enhancing heritage assets. Therefore, the 
proposal is considered acceptable in terms of the historic environment as when 
restored the quarry area will be used as an addition to the Middleton Lodge facilities 
and so accords with local and national policy. 

 
Water Environment 

7.34 The approved restoration scheme includes the provision of two lakes, one is part of 
Phase 2, within the Quarry Garden and the second at the lowest point of the quarry 
floor in Phase 3. No field drainage would be required as surface water would percolate 

Page 46



 

commrep/41 

41 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

direct into the limestone and flow into the lake. This lake would be connected to the 
lake in the quarry garden, which would then discharge into the small pond fed by the 
spring to the east. In the original restoration plan the level of the floor in the lake in the 
Quarry Garden required the installation of a pump to move the water out into the pond. 
The proposed restoration scheme has raised the floor level of the lake so that the water 
will use gravity to move to the pond and so the need for the pump has been removed. 
The site is not within a flood zone or near an aquifer. The proposed change in existing 
conditions 7 and 20, which would change to conditions 5 and 18 if this application is 
approved, including changing the working in Phase 3 from winter working only to all 
year round working, and changing to raise the floor level of the lake in the Quarry 
Garden will not impact on the surface water or groundwater at the site as there  is more 
rain during the autumn and winter months in the period when working has already been 
approved and the floor in the Quarry Garden Lake is now further from the water table. 
Plan NT03435/28/012/A ‘System for collecting surface and ground water’ shows how 
surface and ground water will be dealt with once restoration is complete, ensuring lake 
levels are maintained and excess water is drained away. The proposed development 
accords with ‘saved’ Policy 4/10, Water protection, of the NYMLP as the move to all 
year round working in Phase 3 would not have an adverse impact on surface or 
groundwater as there is less probability of heavy rainfall and flooding during the 
summer months so the surface and groundwater is less likely to be adversely affected. 
The proposed development also accords with Policy CP3 e), which promotes the 
quality of water and g), which promotes natural drainage, of the Richmondshire District 
Local Plan, Policy, draft Policy D09, Water environment, of the emerging MWJP and 
paragraph 174 of the NPPF, which includes reference to preventing unacceptable 
levels of water pollution and improving water quality by providing a natural drainage 
system,  as measures have been put in place to deal with ground and surface water 
and natural drainage is proposed.  Therefore, in terms of the water environment the 
proposed development is considered acceptable and in line with local and national 
policy.   

 
Restoration and aftercare 

7.35 A revised restoration and aftercare scheme has been submitted as Appendix 3 of the 
Planning Statement, which amends the design of the Quarry Garden and the 
landscaping of Phase 3 as described in Section 3 of the report. Since the restoration 
plan details are listed in some of the Conditions these conditions would be amended to 
include the updated plan references. The conditions which would include a change of 
plan reference are Condition 1 which lists the approved documents including:  

 Plan NT03435/28/002:  ‘Phase 2 Detailed Site Design’;  

 NT03435/28/004/A: ‘Phase 3 Detailed Site Design’;  

 NT03435/28/007/B: Landscape Masterplan;  

 NT03435/28/008/A: ‘Cross sections showing the restoration profile’;  

 NT03435/28/009: ‘Indicative cross sections through restored quarry faces and 

slopes;  

 NT03435/28/010 ‘Sections through Quarry from Kiln Head Spring’;  

 NT03435/28/011/A: ‘Section through Quarry from Woodhouse Farm’;  

 NT03435/28/012/A: ‘System for collecting Surface and Ground water’;  

 NT03435/28/013/A: ‘Vehicle, Pedestrian and Cycle Circulation’; 

NT03435/28/014/A: ‘Phases 1 and 3 planting plan’;  

 NT03435/28/14/A: ‘the Quarry Garden’ and NT03435/28/016: ‘Quarry Garden 

lake edge details’. The revised restoration plan raises the floor level in the lake 

in Phase 2 to eliminate the need for a water pump to move the water to the 

nearby spring, making it more sustainable. As shown by NT03435/28/002:  

‘Phase 2 Detailed Site Design’ and  

Page 47



 

commrep/42 

42 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 NT03435/28/007/B: Landscape Masterplan. The restoration of Phase 3 

includes a lake and grassland and areas of increased biodiversity, as shown by 

‘Phase 3 Detailed Site Design’ and NT03435/28/007/B: Landscape Masterplan. 

7.36 The restoration would have the intention of forming a visitor attraction to link in with the 
adjoining Middleton Lodge and add to their recreational facilities, the routes around the 
site are shown in NT03435/28/013/A: ‘Vehicle, Pedestrian and Cycle Circulation’. The 
Landscape Architect and Ecologist considered the revised details acceptable and did 
not have any objection to the proposal. Part of the restoration is to be agricultural land 
and the proposal accords with ‘saved’ policy 4/18 of the NYMLP which states that 
restoration to agriculture proposals should, where possible, include landscape, 
conservation or amenity proposals. The proposed development does include 
landscape design and improvements to biodiversity which is in line with the policy. The 
proposal also accords with ‘saved’ Policy 4/20, Aftercare, of the NYMLP as a 5 year 
aftercare scheme is included in Appendix 3 of the Planning Statement. The restoration 
scheme also accords with emerging Policy D10, Reclamation and afteruse, of the 
emerging MWJP as it would provide a positive impact on the area by providing a visitor 
attraction and also increase biodiversity by having different environments within the site 
such as lakes, marginal plants, native meadows and tree and shrub planting. The 
restoration would be progressive and a maintenance scheme has been included as 
part of the aftercare plan. The proposal also accords with paragraph 211 e) of the NPPF 
as the restoration is to be progressive and restoration and aftercare to be monitored as 
detailed in existing Condition 11, which would be revised to be Condition 9 if this 
application is approved. Therefore, in terms of restoration and aftercare it is considered 
that the revised restoration and aftercare scheme and revised restoration plan is 
acceptable and accords with local and national policy. 

 
Highways Matters and Access 

7.37 The limestone from the Middleton Lodge Quarry would continue to be transported to 
Barton Quarry, under Kneeton Lane by conveyor belt with no impact on the highway 
network. The extraction from Phase 2 is a year round operation so the change in 
working for Phase 3 from six months to year round would not have an additional impact 
on the highway network as the same site operatives who would work on Phase 3 are 
currently working in Phase 2 which is an all year round operation, so there will be a 
slight increase in highway movements associated with this application. It was stated in 
application C1/16/0081/CM that two full time employees work at the quarry. Therefore 
the effect would be minimal as it will only the current operatives who work at Middleton 
Lodge Quarry who create the highway movements,. This is supported by the Highway 
Authority who stated that the proposed changes would not have any impact on the 
surrounding highway network so they had no objection to the proposal. ‘Saved’ Policy 
4/13 of the NYMLP, Policy D03 of the emerging MWJP and paragraph 110 of the NPPF 
support the use of alternatives to road transport as they are more sustainable. It is 
considered that since road transport is not used for the extracted limestone this 
proposal is acceptable in terms of highway impact. 

 
 Climate Change and biodiversity 
7.38 It is considered that the proposed changes in conditions would not increase the risk of 

flooding, as the proposed development would incorporate a natural drainage system 
based on gravity. The site would be progressively restored to lakes and grassland 
planting and so provide mitigation measures for the effect of climate change. The 
proposal accords with draft Policy D09 4) of the emerging MWJP which states that 
proposals should ‘include measures to contribute to flood alleviation and other climate change 

mitigation and adaption measures…’. The proposal also accords with draft Policy D11 viii) 
which deals with implementing landscape planting to adapt to climate change and 
including areas of new wildlife habitat, which the proposed restoration plan would do. 
Paragraph 11 of the NPPF promotes mitigating climate change as part of the 

Page 48



 

commrep/43 

43 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

presumption in favour of sustainable development, therefore it is considered that this 
proposal is acceptable in terms of climate change. 

 
7.39 The site has no local or national designation and draft Policy D07 of the emerging 

MWJP states that proposals will be permitted where there will be no unacceptable 
impacts on biodiversity and paragraph 174 of NPPF promotes the conservation and 
enhancement of biodiversity. The proposed restoration scheme would provide lake and 
grassland habitats and increase the level of biodiversity present at the site, therefore it 
is considered that the proposal accords with local and national policy and is acceptable 
in terms of promoting biodiversity. 

 
Planning Conditions 

7.40 Some of the conditions of permission C1/14/00747/CM have been discharged or are 
no longer required: 

 
 Condition 5 states: The existing access shall be improved in accordance with the approved 
plan titled ‘Visitor Exit Junction by Walled Garden’ (ref: NT03435/26/001 – Rev.D) dated June 
2014. New kerbs shall be provided to replace existing as required and extended 20m into the 
site from the carriageway.  Visibility at the access shall be 160m by 2.4m in both directions. The 
proposed white lining and signing of the junction shall be implemented as shown on the 

approved plan ref: NT03435/26/001 – Rev.D. This condition was discharged in 2012 and 
does not need to be included should permission be forthcoming, and so will be 
removed from Section 9 of this report.  

 

Condition 6 states: The proposed Quarry Garden as detailed on the plans titled ‘The Quarry 

Garden ’ (ref: NT03435/28/015) dated August 2016, shall not be brought into use until such 
time as the Local Access Road between Scotch Corner and Barton, connecting to Kneeton 
Lane and constructed in accordance with the A1 (M) upgrade, has been implemented and made 
available for use. In the event that the Local Access Road is not constructed or made available 
for use, the access arrangements for the site shall be undertaken in accordance with the 
Chapter 5 of the Wardell Armstrong Report (ref: NT03435/18 – Report No.001) dated December 

2011. The Local Access Road has now been constructed and is in use so this condition 
is no longer required should permission be forthcoming and so will be removed from 
Section 9 of this report. 

 

Condition 31 states: Prior to the non-extraction elements of the development being brought 

into use a Travel Plan shall be prepared for the site and submitted to and been approved in 

writing by the County Planning Authority. This condition was discharged in 2012 and is 
no longer required should permission be forthcoming and so will be removed from 
Section 9 of this report, the ‘Green Travel Plan’ ref: NT03435/18 002 dated 
December 2011 has been added to the list of approved documents and drawings in 
Condition 1. 

 
7.41  The existing conditions of permission C1/14/00747/CM which are proposed to be 

varied are 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27 and 30. The new condition wordings are 
stated below in italic’s, the reasons would remain the same. 

 
 Condition 1 - changing of some of the plan references so should permission be 

forthcoming it would read: 
 “Condition 1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

application details dated 8 January 2021 and those previously approved under permission 
C1/14/00747/CM and the following approved documents and drawings: 

 Supporting Transport Statement (ref: JN0776) dated December 2014; 

 Approved Plan titled ‘Visitor Exit Junction by Walled Garden’ (ref: NT03435/26/001 – 

Rev.D) dated June 2014. 

 Planning Statement accompanying 8 January 2021 application 

 Phase 2 Detailed Site Design – NT03435/28/002 – August 2016 

 Phase 3 Detailed Site Design – NT 03435/28/004A – August 2016 
Page 49



 

commrep/44 

44 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 Landscape Masterplan – NT03435/28/007/B - August 2016 

 Cross sections showing the restoration profile – NT03435/28/008/A - August 2016 

 Indicative cross sections through restored quarry faces and slopes – NT03435/028/009 - 

August 2016 

 Sections through Quarry from Kiln Head Spring – NT03435/28/010 - August 2016 

 Section through quarry from Woodhouse Farm – NT03435/28/011/A - August 2016 

 System for collecting Surface and Ground water – NT03435/28/012/A – September 2016 

 Vehicle, Pedestrian and Cycle circulation – NT03435/028/013/A – September 2016 

 Phases 1 and 3 planting plan – NT03435/28/014/A – September 2016 

 The Quarry Garden – NT03435/28/015 - August 2016 

 Quarry Garden lake edge details – NT03435/028/016 - August 2016 

 Green Travel Plan – NT03435/18 002 – December 2011 

These plans, details and the following conditions shall at all times take precedence.” 

 

Condition 6 – the condition relates to the construction of the Local Access Road, The 
Local Access Road has now been constructed and is in use so this condition is no 
longer required should permission be granted and so will be removed from Section 9 
of this report. 
 
Condition 7 -  changed to remove reference to not working Phase 3 between 1st April 
and 1st  October, the Condition number will also change to Condition 5 should 
permission be granted, the revised wording would be: 

“Condition 5. No construction works, extraction or associated operations including maintenance 
and transport of mineral from the site shall take place except between the following times: 07.30 
- 17.30 hours Monday to Friday. No quarrying or associated operations (except for maintenance 
and repairs which shall be restricted to 07.30 - 12.30 hours on Saturdays) shall take place on 
Saturdays, Sundays or Bank or Public Holidays.” 

 

Condition 10 - changing of some of the plan references so should permission be 

granted it would be renumbered as Condition 8 and read: 

”Condition 8. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with 
Chapter 7 titled ‘Condition 14: Landscape Planting and Trees to be removed’ of the Wardell 
Armstrong Report December 2011 and the following plans: 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan (Sheet 8)’ 
dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan (Sheet 1-6)’ 
dated December 2011 and (Sheet 7) dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/28/014/A titled ‘Phase 1 and 3 Planting Plan’ dated August 2016; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/28/015 titled ‘The Quarry Garden ’ dated August 2016; 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/031 titled ‘Landscape Planting’ dated December 2011. 
 
In the event of any plant material, shown on Drawing no. NT03435/18/031, dying or 
becoming seriously diseased or damaged within 5 years of planting, it shall be replaced 
with similar species to a specification that shall be first agreed in writing with the County 
Planning Authority unless the County Planning Authority give written consent to any 
variation.” 

 

Condition 14 - changing of some of the plan references so should permission be 

granted it would be renumbered as Condition12 and read: 

“Condition 12. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the 
following details: 

 Document titled ‘Barton Quarry Extension: Information required by conditions 19 and 21 – 
Detailed Method of Working and Details of the Construction of Conveyor Route’; 

Page 50



 

commrep/45 

45 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 Appendix 1 Drawing NT03435/18/021 titled ‘Detailed Site Design Phase 1 dated June 
2011’; 

 Appendix 2 titled ‘Cut and Fill Calculations for Phase 1’; 

 Appendix 3 titled ‘Typical Box Culvert Section’ dated 29 March 2011; 

 Appendix 4 titled ‘Arboricultural Implication Assessment Of Trees At Middleton Lodge’ 
dated 19 April 2011 and Drawing no. TPP-B titled ‘Retained Trees shown on Proposed 
Layout With Protective Measures Indicated’ dated 20 April 2011; 

 Appendix 5 titled Arboricultural Method Statement For Trees At Middleton Lodge’ dated 
April 2011 with amendments as set out in the Sherburn Stone Co. Ltd email dated 25 
August 2011; 

 Appendix 6 titled ‘Ecological Updating Surveys 2010: Land at Middleton Lodge’ dated 20 
May 2010; 

 Appendix 7 titled ‘A Breeding Bird Survey of Land at Middleton Lodge 2010’ dated 3 June 
2010; 

 Appendix 8 titled ‘A Great Crested Newt Survey of Middleton Lodge’ dated 18 June 2010; 
the above being submitted with the letter from Sherburn Stone Co. Ltd dated 21 June 2011; 

 The details found within document no. B1747100/AIP/01 titled ‘Box AIP – Middleton Lodge 
– Barton Quarry Conveyor Tunnel’ dated 20 December 2011 and drawing no. 
1747100/ML/LOC/001 Rev 0 titled Middleton Lodge Development Location Plan’ dated 
December 2011 received via Jacobs Ltd on 23 December 2011. 

 Planning Statement (submitted 8 January 2021) – Appendix 1 titled ‘Method of working 
Phases 2 and 3 and associated drawings NT03435/28/002 – Phase 2 Detailed Site Design 
dated August 2016 and NT03435/028/004/A – Phase 3 Detailed Site Design dated August 
2016.” 

 
Condition 20 – changed to remove reference to there being no blasting between 1 
April and 1st October in Phase 3 to allow year round working the Condition number 
will also change to Condition 18 should permission be granted, the revised wording 
would be: 
 
Condition 18. No blasting shall be carried out on any part of the site unless between 11.00 and 
16.00 Monday to Friday inclusive and no blasting shall be carried out at any time on Saturdays, 
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 

 
Condition 24 – wording changed to include reference to soil stored in soil mounds 
on adjacent land under permission C1/16/00881/CM, the Condition number would 
also change to Condition 22 should permission be granted, the revised wording 
would be: 

 
Condition 22. All topsoil and subsoil shall be permanently retained on the site and the adjacent 
soil mounds site (see planning Permission Ref No. C1/00881/CM) for subsequent use in 
restoration. 

 
Condition 26 - changing of some of the plan references so should permission be 
granted it would be renumbered as Condition 24 and read: 
 
“Condition 24. There shall be no removal of topsoils, subsoils or overburden storage except in 
accordance with the details shown on Drawings NT03435/028/002  titled ‘Phase 2 Detailed Site 
Design’ dated August 2016  and NT03435/28/004/A  titled ‘Phase 3 Detailed Site Design’ dated 
August 2016. The approved details shall be implemented in full as approved. Once formed, all 
mounds in which topsoil and subsoil are to be stored for more than 6 months, or over the winter 
period, shall be grass seeded in accordance with the specification that shall be submitted to an 
approved in writing by the County Planning Authority within one month of the date of this 
decision. Mounds shall be managed throughout the period of storage to maintain satisfactory 
vegetation cover, carry out weed control and avoid erosion and waterlogging.” 

 
Condition 27 - changing of some of the plan references so should permission be 

granted it would be renumbered as Condition 25 and read: 
 

Page 51



 

commrep/46 

46 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 “Condition 25. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details found within Planning Statement (submitted 8 January 2021) – Appendix 3 titled 
‘Restoration and Aftercare’: 
• Drawing no. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan (Sheet 8)’ dated 
7 March 2012; 
• Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 
(Sheets 1-6)’ dated December 2011 and (Sheet 7) dated 7 March 2012; 
• Drawing no. NT03435/28/014/A titled ‘Phase 1 and 3 Planting Plan’ dated September 2016; 
• Drawing no. NT/03435/028/030 titled ‘The Quarry Garden’ dated September 2016. 
The restoration and aftercare of the site shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
approved scheme.” 

 
Condition 30 - changing of some of the plan references so should permission be 

granted it would be renumbered as Condition 28 and read: 
 
“Condition 28. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

details of the proposed arrangements for cycle and pedestrian access, and cycle parking, found 
within Chapter 10 titled ‘Condition 36: Cycle and Pedestrian Access & Parking’ of the Wardell 
Armstrong Report including drawing no’s NT/03435/28/013/A dated August 2016 and 
NT03435/18/004 dated December 2011. The scheme shall be implemented in full as approved 
and once created shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended 
purpose at all times.” 
 
Legal Agreement 

7.42 A Unilateral Undertaking  was given on the 13 October 2010, by the landowner, 
Sherburn Stone Company Ltd, Middleton Lodge Estates Ltd, HSBC to North Yorkshire 
County Council in relation to the original grant of planning consent  (ref: 
C1133/80G/CM) for the extraction of mineral at Middleton Lodge. A Section 106A Deed 
of Variation Agreement was entered into by the same parties on 13th April 2012 varying 
the terms of the Unilateral Undertaking.  A second Deed of Variation was entered into 
on the 17 July 2013 as part of the grant of planning consent C/12/00746/CM. A Third 
s106A Deed of Variation was subsequently entered into on 24th April 2015 varying the 
terms of the original undertaking as part of the grant of planning consent 
C1/14/00747/CM. As such, should the proposal be considered acceptable, it will be 
subject to the completion of a further Section 106A Deed of Variation to ensure that 
the planning obligations in the Original Undertaking and the subsequent first, second 
and third s106A Deeds of Variation will apply to any forthcoming consent in respect of 
the s73 application made to vary Conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27 and 30 of 
permission C1/14/00747/CM to revise the restoration scheme for Phases 2 and 3 and 
to amend the months of working for Phase 3. 

 
 
8.0 Conclusion 
 
8.1 The proposal is a Section 73 application for the variation of some of the conditions of 

permission C1/14/00747/CM. The proposal does not seek to increase the overall 
footprint of the site or deviate from any other aspect of the consented operation, other 
than changing the months allowed for extraction and blasting in Phase 3 from being for 
6 months to being all year round and having a revised restoration scheme for Phase 2 
and Phase 3. The proposal does not seek to increase the output tonnage from the 
quarry or seek to extend the time limit for extraction from what is already consented. 
The proposal would ensure the continuing supply of the remaining carboniferous 
limestone and that it can be extracted by the expiry date of 2028 and would allow for 
appropriate site restoration. In terms of the objection received there are two points 
raised, the first is that many of the saplings planted on Mound ‘C’ have not survived 
and require replacing, the second point is related to the extraction in Phase 3 being in 
the sight line of the objectors property and the request for additional screening for the 
summer working. The Applicant has agreed to replace and increase the number of 

Page 52



 

commrep/47 

47 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

saplings on top of Mound ‘C’ and it is considered that mitigation has been provided. 
The impact of the development on the sight line from a residential property is 
considered to be suitably screened by the existing woodland, and the screening would 
be greater in the summer months due to the presence of leaves on the trees and it is 
considered the existing screening in the form of woodland is sufficient so additional 
planting is not required. 

 

8.2 There are no material planning considerations to warrant the refusal of this application 
for the Variation of conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 of planning permission 
C1/14/00747/CM to revise working times for Phase 3 and the restoration scheme at 
Middleton Lodge, Kneeton Lane, Middleton Tyas, Richmond, DL10 6NJ 

 
8.3 For the reasons set out above, it is therefore considered that, the proposed 

development is compliant with the policies which comprise the Development Plan 
currently in force for the area and all other relevant material considerations. 

 
Obligations under the Equality Act 2010  

8.4 The County Planning Authority in carrying out its duties must have regard to the 
obligations placed upon it under the Equality Act and due regard has, therefore, been 
had to the requirements of Section 149 (Public Sector Equality Duty) to safeguard 
against unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. It also requires public bodies to advance equality of opportunity 
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it; 
and foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
people who do not share it. It is considered that the proposed development would not 
give rise to significant adverse effects upon the communities in the area or socio-
economic factors, particularly those with ‘protected characteristics’ by virtue that the 
impacts of the proposal can be mitigated so that they will not have a significant 
impact on groups with ‘protected characteristics’.  

 
Obligations under the Human Rights Act  

8.5 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the rights of 
the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and prevents the 
Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with those rights. Article 8 of 
the Convention provides that there shall be respect for an individual’s private life and 
home save for that interference which is in accordance with the law and necessary in 
a democratic society in the interests of (inter alia) public safety and the economic 
wellbeing of the country. Article 1 of protocol 1 provides that an individual’s peaceful 
enjoyment of their property shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the 
public interest.  

 
8.6 Having had due regard to the Human Rights Act, the relevant issues arising from the 

proposed development have been assessed as the potential effects upon those living 
within the vicinity of the site namely those affecting the right to the peaceful 
enjoyment of one’s property and the right to respect for private and family life and 
homes, and considering the limited interference with those rights is in accordance 
with the law, necessary and in the public interest. 

 
 

9.0 Recommendation 
 
9.1 For the following reason(s): 
 

(i) the proposal accords with the principles of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2021), Planning Practice Guidance and does not conflict with 
‘saved’ policies 3/2, 3/3, 4/1, 4/10, 4/14, 4/15, 4/18 and 4/20 of the North 

Page 53



 

commrep/48 

48 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Yorkshire Minerals Local Plan (1997), Richmondshire Local Plan Core 
Strategy (adopted 2014) Policies CP1, CP3, CP10, CP12 and CP13. and the 
emerging Minerals and Waste Joint Plan policies M01, M05, M06, M09, D01, 
D02, D06, D07, D08, D09, D10  and D11 and  

(ii) The proposal does not conflict with the abovementioned policies and it is 
considered that changing the months allowed for extraction and blasting in 
Phase 3 and revised restoration scheme would not result in an increased 
impact on the environment or local or residential amenity and can be 
mitigated through condition. There are no other material planning 
considerations indicating a refusal would be in the public interest.  

 
9.2    Subject to the completion of a Deed of Variation under Section 106A of the Town &    

Country Planning Act 1990 to ensure that the terms of the Original Section 106 
Undertaking and the subsequent first, second and third section 106A Deeds of 
Variation continue to apply upon any s73 application consent granted and  subject to 
any comments Members may have, the following be proposed to the Chief Executive 
Officer for consideration under his emergency powers:- 

 

The application be approved for the reasons stated in the report in accordance with the 
conditions outlined below:-  
 
Conditions:  
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
application details dated 8 January 2021 and those documents previously approved 
under permission C1/14/00747/CM and the following approved documents and 
drawings: 

 Supporting Transport Statement (ref: JN0776) dated December 2014; 

 Approved Plan titled ‘Visitor Exit Junction by Walled Garden’ (ref: 
NT03435/26/001 – Rev.D) dated June 2014, 

except as amended by the Application details dated 8 January 2021 and approved 
documents 

 Planning Statement accompanying 8 January 2021 application 

 Phase 2 Detailed Site Design – NT03435/28/002 – August 2016 

 Phase 3 Detailed Site Design – NT 03435/28/004A – August 2016 

 Landscape Masterplan – NT03435/28/007/B - August 2016 

 Cross sections showing the restoration profile – NT03435/28/008/A - August 
2016 

 Indicative cross sections through restored quarry faces and slopes – 
NT03435/028/009 - August 2016 

 Sections through Quarry from Kiln Head Spring – NT03435/28/010 - August 
2016 

 Section through quarry from Woodhouse Farm – NT03435/28/011/A - August 
2016 

 System for collecting Surface and Ground water – NT03435/28/012/A – 
September 2016 

 Vehicle, Pedestrian and Cycle circulation – NT03435/028/013/A – September 
2016 

 Phases 1 and 3 planting plan – NT03435/28/014/A – September 2016 

 The Quarry Garden – NT03435/28/015 - August 2016 

 Quarry Garden lake edge details – NT03435/028/016 - August 2016 

 Green Travel Plan – NT03435/18 002 – December 2011 
 

These plans, details and the following conditions shall at all times take precedence. 
 

Page 54



 

commrep/49 

49 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Reason: To ensure that the works are carried out in accordance with the approved 
particulars and plans 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the 

details and information shown in the Wardell Armstrong Report dated December 
2011: Chapter 2 titled ‘Condition 3: Surface water drainage’ and chapter 3 titled 
‘Condition 4: Foul and Drainage’ and Drawing no. NT03435/18/027 titled ‘Drainage 
Strategy Plan’ dated December 2011.  

  
Reason: To ensure that the works would protect local watercourses. 
 

3. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the 
conclusions found within the document titled ‘An Archaeological Evaluation on Land 
at Middleton Lodge Estate, Richmondshire, North Yorkshire’ received on 29 
February 2012 and associated plans; the document titled ‘Written Scheme of 
Investigation for a Programme of Archaeological Work on land at Middleton Lodge, 
North Yorkshire’ for an archaeological watching brief (WSI), and the plans drawing 
no. NT03435/18/027 titled ‘Drainage Strategy Plan’ dated December 2011 and 
NT03435/18/004 titled ‘Car and Coach Parking’ dated December 2011. The 
archaeological monitoring and observation, recording and deposition of the site 
archive shall be undertaken in accordance with the WSI. The post-fieldwork report 
shall be submitted to the County Planning Authority within 6 months of the date of 
this permission. 

 
 Reason: To ensure it would not have a detrimental impact on the historic character 

of the area. 
 

4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried using the document titled 
‘Badger and Tree Check, Middleton Lodge’ produced by E3 Ecology Ltd dated 6 
February 2012. The recommendations and method statements of this document 
shall be carried out in full prior to any works. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact trees or 
protected species. 

 
5. No construction works, extraction or associated operations including maintenance 

and transport of mineral from the site shall take place except between the following 
times: 07.30 - 17.30 hours Monday to Friday. No quarrying or associated operations 
(except for maintenance and repairs which shall be restricted to 07.30 - 12.30 hours 
on Saturdays) shall take place on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank or Public Holidays. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact the local 
amenity 

 
6. For the hereby approved development there shall be no external lighting used apart 

from those attached to the letter from Sherburn Stone Co. Ltd dated 20 December 
2011 being Four Head Metal Halide Lighting Tower HSS Hire Lighting Solutions. 
There shall be no external lighting at the site outside the operational hours specified 
in Condition 7 above unless details of the proposed lighting have been first submitted 
to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. Thereafter that lighting 
shall only be provided and operated in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 

 

Page 55



 

commrep/50 

50 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

7. Any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals shall be sited on impervious 
bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls. The volume of the bunded 
compounds shall be at least equivalent to the capacity of the tank plus 10%. If there 
is multiple tankage, the compound shall be at least equivalent to the capacity of the 
largest tank or the combined capacity of the inter-connected tanks plus 10%. All 
filling points, vents and gauges and sight glasses must be located within the bund. 
The drainage system of the bund shall be sealed with no discharge to any 
watercourse, land or underground strata. Associated pipework shall be located 
above ground and protected from accidental damage. All filling points and tank 
overflow pipe outlets shall be detailed to discharge downwards into the bund. 

 
Reason: To ensure works would protect local watercourses. 
 

8. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with Chapter 
7 titled ‘Condition 14: Landscape Planting and Trees to be removed’ of the Wardell 
Armstrong Report and the following plans: 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/018 Rev. A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 
(Sheet 8)’ dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/018 Rev. A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 
(Sheet 1-6)’ dated December 2011 and (Sheet 7) dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/28/014/A titled ‘Phase 1 and 3 Planting Plan’ dated 
August 2016; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/28/015 titled ‘The Quarry Garden ’ dated August 2016; 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/031 titled ‘Landscape Planting’ dated December 2011. 

In the event of any plant material, shown on Drawing no. NT03435/18/031, dying or 
becoming seriously diseased or damaged within 5 years of planting, it shall be 
replaced with similar species to a specification that shall be first agreed in writing 
with the County Planning Authority unless the County Planning Authority give written 
consent to any variation. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 

amenity. 
 

9. Every 12 months from the date of the commencement of this development or at such 
other time as may be agreed in writing with the County Planning Authority a review 
meeting concerning the previous year's landscaping, working, restoration and 
aftercare shall be carried out in conjunction with a representative of the County 
Planning Authority. A record of the material removed from the site shall be maintained 
and submitted to the County Planning Authority on each anniversary of the 12 month 
review for the life of this permission. The review shall take account of any departure 
from approved schemes and revised schemes shall be submitted to the County 
Planning Authority for approval in writing within 2 months of the review meeting. 
Thereafter all such work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
schemes. 

 
Reason: To ensure development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

10. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the 
submitted plan drawing no. NT03435/18/001 Rev A titled ‘Safety of Public Footpath 
Users’ dated 28 February 2012 and the information detailed for drawing no’s 
NT03435/18/019 titled ‘Quarry Fencing’ dated December 2011 and 
NT03435/18/002 ‘Wire Mesh Fence Detail’ dated December 2011. 
 

Page 56



 

commrep/51 

51 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Reason: To ensure development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

11. The extraction of stone from the site as identified in the application details is 
authorised until 15 May 2028. The extraction hereby permitted shall be discontinued 
and all plant and machinery associated with the development shall be removed from 
the site and the site restored in accordance with the scheme approved under the 
terms of Condition 27 below by the end of fifteen years from the date of the 
commencement of extraction. 

 
Reason: To reserve the rights of control by the County Planning Authority to    
ensure restoration of the land used for minerals extraction with the minimum of 
delay in the interests of amenity. 

 
12. The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with  the 

following details: 

 Document titled ‘Barton Quarry Extension: Information required by conditions 19 
and 21 – Detailed Method of Working and Details of the Construction of 
Conveyor Route’; 

 Appendix 1 Drawing NT03435/18/021 titled ‘Detailed Site Design Phase 1 dated 
June 2011’; 

 Appendix 2 titled ‘Cut and Fill Calculations for Phase 1’; 

 Appendix 3 titled ‘Typical Box Culvert Section’ dated 29 March 2011; 

 Appendix 4 titled ‘Arboricultural Implication Assessment Of Trees At Middleton 
Lodge’ dated 19 April 2011 and Drawing no. TPP-B titled ‘Retained Trees shown 
on Proposed Layout With Protective Measures Indicated’ dated 20 April 2011; 

 Appendix 5 titled Arboricultural Method Statement For Trees At Middleton Lodge’ 
dated April 2011 with amendments as set out in the Sherburn Stone Co. Ltd 
email dated 25 August 2011; 

 Appendix 6 titled ‘Ecological Updating Surveys 2010: Land at Middleton Lodge’ 
dated 20 May 2010; 

 Appendix 7 titled ‘A Breeding Bird Survey of Land at Middleton Lodge 2010’ 
dated 3 June 2010; 

 Appendix 8 titled ‘A Great Crested Newt Survey of Middleton Lodge’ dated 18 
June 2010; the above being submitted with the letter from Sherburn Stone Co. 
Ltd dated 21 June 2011; 

 The details found within document no. B1747100/AIP/01 titled ‘Box AIP – 
Middleton Lodge – Barton Quarry Conveyor Tunnel’ dated 20 December 2011 
and drawing no. 1747100/ML/LOC/001 Rev 0 titled Middleton Lodge 
Development Location Plan’ dated December 2011 received via Jacobs Ltd on 
23 December 2011. 

 Planning Statement (submitted 8 January 2021) – Appendix 1 titled ‘Method of 
working Phases 2 and 3 and associated drawings NT03435/28/002 – Phase 2 
Detailed Site Design dated August 2016 and NT03435/028/004/A – Phase 3 
Detailed Site Design dated August 2016. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 

 
13. Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 19 of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any other Order amending, 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), no additional plant or buildings beyond those 
identified in the Environmental Statement dated December 2006 (excluding mobile 
plant) shall be erected on the application site. 
 

Page 57



 

commrep/52 

52 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 

 
14. The terms of this planning permission and any scheme or details approved pursuant 

thereto shall be made known to any person(s) given responsibility for the 
management or control of any particular element of the development. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 

 

15. All plant, machinery and vehicles used on any part of the mineral extraction site as 
part of this development shall be fitted with noise attenuating equipment which shall 
be regularly maintained in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions. 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 

 

16. Subject to the exception in Condition 19 below, the Equivalent Continuous Noise 
level for operations at the quarry shall not exceed the background noise level (L90) 
by more than 10dB(A) at any of the following residential premises: Kiln Head Spring, 
Limekiln Cottage, Middleton Lodge, Mill Farm, North Road Farm, The Farmhouse, 
The Gatehouse, Under Kneeton and Woodhouse Farm. Measurements shall be 
hourly LAeq measurements and shall be corrected for the effects of any extraneous 
noise. Noise monitoring shall be carried out in accordance with a Noise Monitoring 
Scheme (that includes specification of the proposed frequency) which has been 
previously submitted to within 1 month of the date of this decision and approved in 
writing by the County Planning Authority. All results shall be available for inspection 
on request by the County Planning Authority. In the event that the noise level 
specified in this Condition is exceeded, those operations at the site causing the 
excessive noise shall cease immediately and steps shall be taken to attenuate the 
noise level to be in compliance with the requirements of this Condition. 
Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 
 

17. In relation to the operations of soil and overburden stripping and replacement, noise 

levels shall not exceed 70dB(A) LAeq, 1 hour at any residential property during those 

operations and at no other time. 

Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 

 
18. No blasting shall be carried out on any part of the site unless between 11.00 and 

16.00 Monday to Friday inclusive and no blasting shall be carried out at any time on 
Saturdays, Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 

Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 
 

19. The occupiers of the following residential properties: Kiln Head Spring, Limekiln 
Cottage, Middleton Lodge, Mill Farm, North Road Farm, The Farmhouse, The 
Gatehouse, Under Kneeton and Woodhouse Farm, shall be given a minimum of 24 
hours notice in writing of the time(s) that blasting will be taking place and such notice 
shall thereafter be given to the occupiers of those properties whenever blasting is 
proposed. 

Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 
 

Page 58



 

commrep/53 

53 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

20. Ground vibration levels resulting from blasting shall not exceed a peak particle 
velocity of 6 millimetres/second at any residential premises. The Company operating 
the quarry shall monitor the vibration levels resulting from each blast carried out at 
the quarry and shall keep a full written record of the monitoring results. The air over-
pressure resulting from blasting shall also be monitored if requested in writing by the 
County Planning Authority. All monitoring shall be undertaken at the nearest 
residential premises or at such other location as may be agreed in writing by the 
County Planning Authority. A full record of the monitoring shall be forwarded to the 
County Planning Authority every six months except that if the monitoring indicates 
that a peak particle velocity has exceeded the specified limit the County Planning 
Authority shall be notified in writing before the next blast is undertaken. 

Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 
 

21. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
recommendations found within the approved document titled ‘Middleton Lodge – 
Dust Action Plan’ submitted with application (ref NY/2011/0492/A30) dated 20 
December 2011. The scheme shall be implemented thereafter as approved. 

Reason: To ensure the development would not detrimentally impact residential 
amenity. 

 
22. All topsoil and subsoil shall be permanently retained on the site and the adjacent soil 

mounds site (See Planning Permission ref No. C1/16/00881/CM) for subsequent use 
in restoration. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

23. All soil movement operations shall only be carried out when the full volume of soil 
involved is in a dry and friable condition. No plant or vehicles shall cross any area of 
unstripped topsoil or subsoil except where such trafficking is essential and 
unavoidable for the purposes of undertaking permitted operations. No part of the site 
shall be excavated or traversed or used for a road or for storage of subsoil or 
overburden or waste or mineral deposits, until all available topsoil and subsoil has 
been stripped from that part. The exception is that topsoils may be stored on like 
topsoils and subsoils may be stored on like subsoils. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

24 There shall be no removal of topsoils, subsoils or overburden storage except in 
accordance with the details shown on Drawings NT03435/028/002  titled ‘Phase 2 
Detailed Site Design ’ dated August 2016  and NT03435/28/004/A  titled ‘Phase 3 
Detailed Site Design’ dated August 2016. The approved details shall be 
implemented in full as approved. Once formed, all mounds in which topsoil and 
subsoil are to be stored for more than 6 months, or over the winter period, shall be 
grass seeded in accordance with the specification that shall be submitted to an 
approved in writing by the County Planning Authority within one month of the date 
of this decision. Mounds shall be managed throughout the period of storage to 
maintain satisfactory vegetation cover, carry out weed control and avoid erosion and 
waterlogging. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

Page 59



 

commrep/54 

54 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

25 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details found within Planning Statement (submitted 8 January 2021) – Appendix 3 
titled ‘Restoration and Aftercare’ : 

 Drawing no. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 
(Sheet 8)’ dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no’s. NT03435/18/018 Rev.A titled ‘Tree Protection and removal Plan 

 (Sheets 1-6)’ dated December 2011 and (Sheet 7) dated 7 March 2012; 

 Drawing no. NT03435/28/014/A  titled ‘Phase 1 and 3 Planting Plan’ dated 
September 2016; 

 Drawing no. NT/03435/028/030 titled ‘The Quarry Garden’ dated September 
2016. 

The restoration and aftercare of the site shall be carried out in strict accordance with 
the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

26. In the event of the extraction of mineral ceasing on the site for a period in excess of 
12 months before the completion of the development hereby permitted, a revised 
scheme of restoration and landscaping shall be submitted to the County Planning 
Authority for written approval within 12 months of the cessation. Thereafter the 
approved scheme shall be implemented in accordance with a programme to be 

included in that scheme. 
 

Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

27. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in in accordance with the 
details found within Chapter 10 titled ‘Condition 35: Boundary Fencing’ of the Wardell 
Armstrong Report including Drawing no’s NT03435/18/019 dated December 2011 
and NT03435/18/002 dated December 2011.  
 
The fencing shall be erected in accordance with the approved details and the 
approved timetable. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

28. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
details of the proposed arrangements for cycle and pedestrian access, and cycler 
parking, found within Chapter 10 titled ‘Condition 36: Cycle and Pedestrian Access 
& Parking’ of the Wardell Armstrong Report including drawing no’s 
NT/03435/28/013/A dated August 2016 and NT03435/18/004 dated December 
2011. The scheme shall be implemented in full as approved and once created shall 
be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all 
times. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

29. Prior to the non-extraction elements of the development being brought into use a 
Travel Plan shall be prepared for the site and submitted to and been approved in 
writing by the County Planning Authority. This shall consider and set targets to 
reduce travel and consider amongst other issues: - 
(i)  the appointment of a travel coordinator 

Page 60



 

commrep/55 

55 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

(ii)  a partnership approach to influence travel behaviour of both employees and 
visitors 

(iii)  provision of up to date details of public transport services to employees and 
visitors 

(iv)  safe and viable alternatives to the car for access to the site 
(v)  continual appraisal of travel patterns and measures provided through the 

travel plan 
(vi)  improved safety for vulnerable road users 
(vii)  a reduction in employee vehicle trips and mileage. 
 
Thereafter the Travel Plan shall be brought into effect in full as approved. 
 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 
 

30. The two holiday cottages and stable block holiday accommodation developed as part 
of this permission shall be occupied for holiday purposes only and shall not be 
occupied as a person’s sole, or main place of residence. The owners/operators shall 
maintain an up-to-date register of the names of all occupiers of the two cottages and 
stable block holiday accommodation, and of their main home addresses, and shall 
make this information available at all reasonable times to the County Planning 
Authority. 

 
Reason: To ensure the development would be constructed in accordance with the 
approved plans and conditions. 

 

31.The fencing of the quarry garden shall constructed in accordance with the submitted 
details shown on drawing no’s NT03435/18/032 titled ‘Quarry Garden Railing Detail’ 
dated December 2011; NT03435/18/002 titled ‘ Wire Mesh Fencing Detail’ dated 
December 2011; and NT03435/18/019 titled ‘Quarry Fencing’ dated December 
2011. 
The works shall thereafter be implemented in strict accordance with the approved 
details. Thereafter the restoration and aftercare of the site shall be carried out in strict 
accordance with the approved scheme. 

 
Reason: To protect the historical character of the area. 

 

32. For the development hereby permitted of the renovation of the stable block all new 
stonework and repairs to existing stonework shall be undertaken in natural reclaimed 
local stone. All stonework shall be laid, coursed and flush pointed in a manner to 
match precisely the existing stonework of the building. All pointing of stonework shall 
be undertaken with a lime/cement/sharp sand mix in proportions of 1:1:6 and then 
brush finished. 

 
Reason: To protect the historical character of the area. 

 
33. The renovation of the stable block shall be undertaken in accordance with the 

approved plans: 

 Appendix 1: External Door Details; 

 Appendix 2: Window and Glazing Details; 

 Appendix 3: Roof and Rainwater Details: 

 Stable courtyard windows with dimensions. 
 

The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
  

Reason: To protect the historical character of the area and the listed building. 

Page 61



 

commrep/56 

56 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 
34. The renovation of the stable block shall be undertaken in accordance with the 

‘Historic Building Survey’ (ref: CP.No.10556) dated 5 June 2013. The works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and mitigation measures. 

 
Reason: To protect the historical character of the area. 

 
Informatives 
 
Discharge of foul drainage 
Condition 2 relates to the discharge of foul drainage from the site. Report no: 
NT03435/18/001 states that there will be two separate discharges to ground of foul 
drainage of following treatment. These discharges will require an Environmental 
Permit under EPR Regulations 2016. The applicant should contact the Environment 
Agency to discuss, and begin the application process. 

 
 
Statement of Compliance with Article 35(2) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 
 
In determining this planning application, the County Planning Authority has worked with the 
applicant adopting a positive and proactive manner. The County Council offers the 
opportunity for pre-application discussion on applications and the applicant, in this case, 
chose to take up this service.  Proposals are assessed against the National Planning Policy 
Framework, Replacement Local Plan policies and Supplementary Planning Documents, 
which have been subject to proactive publicity and consultation prior to their adoption. During 
the course of the determination of this application, the applicant has been informed of the 
existence of all consultation responses and representations made in a timely manner which 
provided the applicant/agent with the opportunity to respond to any matters raised. The 
County Planning Authority has sought solutions to problems arising by liaising with 
consultees, considering other representations received and liaising with the applicant as 
necessary.  Where appropriate, changes to the proposal were sought when the statutory 
determination timescale allowed. 
 
K BATTERSBY 
Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services 
Growth, Planning and Trading Standards 

 
 

Background Documents to this Report: 

1.Planning Application Ref Number: Ref . No C1/21/00118/PLANYC (NY/2021/0012/73) 
registered as valid on 21 January 2021.  Application documents can be found on the County 
Council's Online Planning Register by using the following web link:  

2. Consultation responses received. 

3. Representations received. 

 
Author of report: Joan Jackson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               
 

Page 62



 

commrep/57 

57 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Appendix A – Location Plan 

 
  
 
 

Page 63



 

commrep/58 

58 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

     Appendix 2 – Application Boundary

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 64



 

commrep/59 

59 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

  Appendix 3 – Landscape Masterplan 

 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 

commrep/60 

60 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Appendix 4 – Phase 2, Quarry Garden, Restoration 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   Appendix 5 – Phase 1 and 3 Restoration 

 
 

Page 66



 

 

OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire County Council 

 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 
22 FEBRUARY 2022 

 
C1/21/00118/PLANYC - PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE 

VARIATION OF CONDITIONS 1,6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION C1/14/00747/CM TO REVISE WORKING TIMES FOR PHASE 3 AND THE 

RESTORATION SCHEME AT MIDDLETON LODGE QUARRY, KNEETON LANE, 
MIDDLETON TYAS, RICHMOND, DL10 6NJ  

ON BEHALF OF BREEDON NORTHERN 
(RICHMONDSHIRE DISTRICT) (RICHMONDSHIRE NORTH ELECTORAL DIVISION) 

 
Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 

 
 ADDENDUM TO SUBSTANTIVE REPORT TO APPLICATION 
 
1.0  Purpose of the addendum 
 
1.1 To report on changes to the report due to adoption of Minerals and Waste Joint Plan 

(MWJP) on 16 February 2022. 
 
2.  Changes to report following adoption of Minerals and Waste Joint Plan (MWJP) 
 
2.1 Part of the considerations in a Committee Report is assessment of compliance with 

any Local Plans which are extant. At the time the report was written and submitted to 
Committee Services for publishing the extant Local Plan in terms of Minerals was the 
‘saved’ policies in the Minerals Local Plan 1997 and these are relied upon in Section 7 
Planning Considerations. 

 
2.2 The Planning Considerations also refer to the draft policies in the emerging Minerals 

and Waste Joint Plan, which has been developed to replace the ‘saved’ Policies in the 
Minerals Local Plan 1997 and ‘saved’ Policies in the Waste Local Plan 2006. In the 
report the emerging policies have been included in Section 6 and given some weight 
due to the plan having been ‘under examination’ however were not given full weight 
due to not being adopted policy. 

 
2.3 On the 16th February 2022 the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan was adopted by North 

Yorkshire County Council at a Full Council meeting. Following the adoption the 
Policies within the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan 2022 have now become the extant 
ones.  

 
2.4 As a result of the Adoption of the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan the ‘saved’ policies of 

the Minerals Local Plan 1997 and Waste Local Plan 2006 should now be disregarded 
within the Committee report and reliance should now be placed on the Policies within 
the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan and these policies should now be given full weight 
in the Planning Considerations section of the report. 

 
2.5 The Mineral Local Plan ‘saved’ policies that have been superseded by MWJP policies.   

The Minerals and Waste Joint Plan police, which  are now extant and should be given 

Page 67

Agenda Item 5b



 

 

OFFICIAL 

fill weight, detailed in each section of Section 7 – Planning Considerations are listed 
below for ease of reference. 

 
2.6 Principle of proposed development 
 Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies to be disregarded: 

 ‘saved’ Policy 4/1 – Determination of Planning Applications. 
 

MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 Policy M01 – Broad geographical approach to supply of aggregates; 

 Policy D01 – Presumption in favour of sustainable minerals and waste 
development. 

 
2.7 Need 

   Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies to be disregarded: 

 ‘saved’ Policy 3/2 – Preferred Areas; 

 ‘saved’ Policy 3/3 – Areas of Search. 
 

   MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 Policy M05 – Provision of crushed rock; 

 Policy M06 – Landbanks for crushed rock; 

 Policy M09 – Meeting crushed rock requirements. 
 
2.8 Design visual impact and landscape: 
 Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies to be disregarded: 

 ‘saved’ Policy 4/1 – Determination of Planning Applications; 

 ‘saved’ Policy 4/15 – Public Rights of Way. 
 

   MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 Policy D02 – Local amenity and cumulative impacts; 

 Policy D06 – Landscape; 

 Policy D11 – Sustainable design, construction and operation of development. 
 
2.9 Local amenity (noise): 
 Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies to be disregarded: 

 ‘saved’ Policy 4/14 – Local Environment and Amenity. 
 

   MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 Policy D02 – Local amenity and cumulative impacts. 
 
2.10 The Historic Environment: 
 There are no Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies included in this section. 
 

 MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 D08 – Historic environment. 
 
2.11 Water Environment: 
 Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies to be disregarded: 

 ‘saved’ policy 4/10- Water Protection. 
 

MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 Policy D09 – Water environment. 
 
2.12 Restoration and aftercare: 
 Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies to be disregarded: 

Page 68



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 ‘saved’ Policy 4/18 – Restoration to Agriculture; 

 ‘saved’ Policy 4/20 – Aftercare. 
 

MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 Policy D10 – Reclamation and afteruse. 
 
2.13 Highways matters and access 
 Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies to be disregarded: 

 4/13 – Traffic Impact. 
 

MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 Policy D03 – Transport of minerals and waste and associated impacts. 
 
2.14 Climate Change and biodiversity 
 There are no Minerals Local Plan ‘saved’ Policies included in this section. 
 

MWJP extant policies which should now be given full weight: 

 Policy D07 – Biodiversity and geodiversity; 

 Policy D09 - Water environment; 

 Policy D11 – Sustainable design, construction and operation of development. 
 
2.15   Recommendation 
 To reflect the adoption of the MWJP the recommendation should now be amended 

to: 
 
 9.1 For the following reason(s): 

(i) the proposal accords with the principles of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(2021), Planning Practice Guidance and does not conflict with Richmondshire Local 
Plan Core Strategy (adopted 2014) Policies CP1, CP3, CP10, CP12 and CP13. and 
the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan policies M01, M05, M06, M09, D01, D02, D06, D07, 
D08, D09, D10  and D11 and  

(ii) The proposal does not conflict with the abovementioned policies and it is considered 
that changing the months allowed for extraction and blasting in Phase 3 and revised 
restoration scheme would not result in an increased impact on the environment or local 
or residential amenity and can be mitigated through condition. There are no other 
material planning considerations indicating a refusal would be in the public interest.  

 
9.2     Subject to the completion of a Deed of Variation under Section 106A of the Town &    

Country Planning Act 1990 to ensure that the terms of the Original Section 106 
Undertaking and the subsequent first, second and third section 106A Deeds of Variation 
continue to apply upon any s73 application consent granted and subject to any 
comments Members may have, the following be proposed to the Chief Executive Officer 
for consideration under his emergency powers:- 

 

The application be approved for the reasons stated in the report in accordance with 
the conditions outlined below:-  

 
This revised recommendation removes reference to the ‘saved’ Policies of the 
Minerals Local Plan which are no longer extant. 
 

2.16  The consideration of this planning application by the Planning and Regulatory  
Function Committee should proceed taking account of this written update which 
explains the impact of the adoption of the Minerals and Waste Joint Plan which 
occurred on 16th February 2022. 

  

Page 69



 

 

OFFICIAL 

K BATTERSBY  
Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services Growth, Planning and 
Trading Standards  
Background Documents to this Report:  
 
1. Published Officer Report dated 22 February 2022.  
 
Author of report: Joan Jackson 

 
 
 

Page 70



NYCC – 22 February 2022 – Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Items dealt with under the scheme of delegation/1 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 
 

22 February 2022 
 

Items Dealt with under the Scheme of Delegation 
 

Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 
 

The Items reported below have been determined between:  
15 December 21 to 18 January 22 Inclusive 

 
A. County Council Development  
 
NY/2021/0271/PAA  Burton Salmon Community Primary 

School, Ledgate Lane, Burton Salmon, 
Leeds, LS25 5JY 

Decision Notice: 12 Jan 2022 
 
Request for Prior Approval under Part 11 of the General Permitted Development Order 2015 
for the demolition of an existing temporary classroom unit. 
 
PRIOR APPROVAL GRANTED 
 
NY/2021/0270/73 (C3/21/01562/CPO)  Pickering Community Junior School, 

Middleton Road, Pickering, North 
Yorkshire, YO18 8AJ 

Decision Notice: 12 Jan 2022 
 
Retention of prefabricated classroom unit 3912 & 3913 for a further 6 years. 
 
PLANNING PERMISSION GRANTED subject conditions 
 
NY/2021/0259/PAA  Thirsk School And Sixth Form College, 

Topcliffe Road, Sowerby, YO7 1RZ 
Decision Notice: 16 Dec 2021 
 
Request for Prior Approval under Part 11 of the General Permitted Development Order 2015 
for the demolition of an existing temporary classroom unit. 
 
PRIOR APPROVAL GRANTED 
 
NY/2021/0185/CLW (C1/21/01013/CM)  Croft Bridge, Northallerton Road, Croft 

on Tees, DL2 2ST 
Decision Notice: 17 Dec 2021 
 
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for minor repairs to stonework, repointing and 
replacement of any mortar loosened or removed as a result of removing the vegetation. 
 
PLANNING PERMISION GRANTED subject conditions 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 6



NYCC – 22 February 2022 – Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Items dealt with under the scheme of delegation/2 

NY/2021/0055/A27  Sherburn Hungate Primary School, 
                                                                               North Crescent, Sherburn In Elmet, 
                                                                               LS25 6DD 
Decision Notice: 10 Jan 2022 
 
Application for the approval of details reserved by condition no's 5, 7, 8 & 9 of Planning 
Permission Ref. C8/2019/0125/CPO which relates to surface water drainage works, ancillary 
offsite parking area, dropped kerb, with tactile paving, pedestrian crossing points & a 
Construction Management Plan. 
 
Details APPROVED 
 
B. County Matter Development  
 
NY/2021/0286/NMT Asenby Quarry Tip, Leckby Palace 

Farm, Asenby 
 
Decision Notice: 16 Dec 2021 
 
Application for Non Material Minor Amendment to amend the description of development to 
remove the dates which relates to Planning Permission Ref. C6/27/19/E/CMA 
 
Details APPROVED 
 
NY/2021/0216/73 (C2/21/02257/GENENQ)   Clapham Lodge, Leeming Biogas 

Facility, Roman Road, Leeming, DL7 
9LY 

Decision Notice: 15 Dec 2021 
 
Variation of condition No. 3 of Planning Permission Ref. C2/18/01774/CCC to allow for an 
extension of hours for feedstock delivery times. 
 
PLANNING PERMISION GRANTED subject conditions 
 
NY/2021/0127/FUL (C2/21/01528/CCC) Electricity Generating Plant, Forest 

Lane, Alne, YO61 1TU 
 
Decision Notice: 15 Dec 2021 
 
Relocation and permanent retention and use of existing single storey site office. 
 
PLANNING PERMISION GRANTED subject conditions 
 
 
To access the planning application details, consultation responses and a copy of the report 
and decision notice containing any planning conditions relevant to the development please 
access the County Council’s Online Planning Register at the following web address: 
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/register/PlanAppSrch.aspx 
 
(Please enter the planning application reference number (NY/…) into the ‘Application 
Reference’ field). 
 
KARL BATTERSBY 
Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services 
 
Author of Report:  Alice Gill  
 
Background Documents:  None 

Page 72

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/register/PlanAppSrch.aspx


  NYCC – Nov 2021 – Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications/1 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Business and Environmental Services 
 

Planning and Regulatory Functions Committee 
 

22 February 2022 
 

Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning 
Applications 

 
Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services  

 
This report outlines the County Council’s performance in the handling of ‘County Matter’ and 
County Council development planning applications for Quarter 3 (the period 01 October to 
31 December 2021). 
 
Information on Enforcement Cases is attached as an Appendix. 
 
Recommendation: That the reported be noted. 
  
 
KARL BATTERSBY 
Corporate Director, Business and Environmental Services 
 
 
Authors of Report: Jo Brownless  
 
 
Background Documents to this Report: Application Files  
 
Information on planning applications can be accessed via the County Council’s Online 
Planning Register at the following web address: 
 
https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/register/PlanAppSrch.aspx 
(Please enter the planning application reference number (NY/…) into the ‘Application 
Reference’ field). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7

https://onlineplanningregister.northyorks.gov.uk/register/PlanAppSrch.aspx


  NYCC – Nov 2021 – Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications/2 

County Matter’ Planning Applications (i.e. Minerals and Waste related applications) 
 
Table 1: ‘County Matter’ planning applications determined during quarter 3 (the period 1 
October to 31 December 2021). 
 

Total number of applications 
determined 

7 

Number of delegated/committee 
decisions 

Delegated: 
5 

Committee: 
2 

Speed of decisions 
Under 13 weeks 

 
13- 16 weeks 

(if major, 13 and if 
EIA 16 weeks) 

Over 13/16 weeks 
within agreed 

Extension of Time 
(EoT)* 

Over 13/16 weeks 
without or outside of 

agreed EoT 

2 0 5 0 

 
*Article 34 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Procedure Order) 2015 
provides for authorities to agree with the applicant to determine the planning application 
beyond the statutory 8/13/16 week period. This is referred to as an agreement for the 
extension of time (EoT) for the determination of the planning application. In instances where 
the application is determined within the agreed period the application is counted as satisfying 
the timeliness requirement.  
 
Table 1a: Performance on ‘County Matter’ planning applications  
(NYCC Service Plan target - 60%) 
 

2020/21 Quarter 1 
(Apr-Jun) 

Quarter 2 
(Jul-Sept) 

Quarter 3 
(Oct-Dec) 

Quarter 4 
(Jan-Mar) 

No. of 'County Matter' applications 
determined within 13/16 weeks or 
within agreed Extension of Time 
(EoT) 

85.7% (No 
6/7) 

50% (No 
(1/2) 

100% (No 
7/7) 

 

No. of 'County Matter' applications 
determined within 13/16 weeks 
discounting Extension of Time 
agreements (EoT) 

28.6% (No 
2/7) 

0% (No 
0/2) 

28.5% 
(2/7) 

 

 
Table 1b: "Special measures" ** performance on ‘County Matter’ planning applications  
 

2020/21 Quarter 1 
 

Quarter 2 
 

Quarter 3 
 

Quarter 4 
 

“Special Measures” stat. 
No. of 'County Matter' applications 
determined within 13/16 weeks or 
within agreed Extension of Time 
(EoT) over rolling two year period 

01/07/19 to 
30/06/21 
90% 
(No.36/40) 

01/10/19 
To 
30/09/21 
89.7% (No. 
35/39) 

01/01/20 
To  
31/12/21 
90.5% 
(No.38/42) 

 

** Under section 62A of the TCPA 1990 LPAs making 60% or fewer of decisions on time are 
at risk of designation (“Special Measures”) County Council’s own development’ Planning 
Applications 
 
 
 

Page 74



NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /3 

OFFICIAL 

Table 2: County Council’s own development planning applications determined during quarter 
3 (the period 1 October to 31 December 2021) 
 

Total number of applications 
determined 

5 

Minor¹/Major²/EIA³ Minor: 
5 

Major: 
0 

EIA: 
0 

Number of delegated/committee 
decisions 

Delegated: 
5 

Committee: 
0 

Speed of decisions 
Under 8 weeks 

 
8- 13 weeks 

(if Major) 
13- 16 weeks 

(if EIA) 
Over 8/13/16 
weeks within 

agreed 
Extension of 
Time (EoT) 

Over 8/13/16 
weeks without 
or outside of 
agreed EoT 

3 0 0 2 0 

 
¹A 'minor' development application is one where the floor space to be built is less than 1,000 
square metres or where the site area is less than one hectare. 
 
²A 'major' development application is one where the floor space to be built is more than 
1,000 square metres or where the site area is more than one hectare. All minerals and waste 
related applications fall within the definition of major development.   
 
³An EIA development application is one considered likely to have significant environmental 
effects and is accompanied by an Environmental Statement.  
 
Table 2a: Performance on County Council’s own development minor planning applications 
(NYCC Service Plan target - 65%) 
 

2020/21 Quarter 1 
(Apr-Jun) 

Quarter 2 
(Jul-Sept) 

Quarter 3 
(Oct-Dec) 

Quarter 4 
(Jan-Mar) 

No. of County Council’s own 
development minor applications 
determined within 8 weeks or 
within agreed Extension of Time 
(EoT) 

85.7% 
(No.6/7) 

100% (No. 
7/7) 

100% 
(No.5/5) 

 

No. of County Council’s own 
development minor applications 
determined within 8 weeks 
discounting Extension of Time 
agreements (EoT) 

14.2% (No. 
1/7) 

42.8% (No.  
3/7) 

60% (No. 
3/5) 

 

 
 
 

Page 75



 

NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /4 

OFFICIAL 

Table 3:  List of all ‘County Matter’ planning applications in hand for more than 13 weeks and awaiting decision as at the end of Q3 i.e. 31st 
December 
 
Site Address  
NY application ref. no. 
(LPA ref. no.) 
 

Proposed Development Date 
registered 
as valid 

Delegated 
or 
Committee 
item 

Reasons why still in hand  Is an agreed 
Extension of 
Time (EoT) in 
place? 
Yes/No 

Blubberhouses Quarry, Kex 
Gill 
 
NY/2011/0465/73 
(C6/105/6C/CMA) 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 
reference C6/105/6A/PA to allow extraction of 
silica sand and erection of processing plant at the 
site until 2036 

06.12.11 Committee Further environmental information 
received from the applicant on 7 
September 2021 and is currently 
being consulted upon with an expiry 
date of 30th November 2021.   

No 

Land to the west of 
Raincliffe Grange Farm, 
Main Street, Seamer 
 
NY/2017/0267/ENV 
(C4/17/02418/CC) 

Extraction and processing of sand and gravel from 
new quarry (11.9 hectares) including the 
construction of a site access road, internal haul 
road, mobile processing plant, site office, soil 
storage bunds, lagoons, stockpile area and 
restoration to agriculture and lake 

25.10.17 Committee Negotiations on conditions have 
been finalised and the Officer Report 
is being drafted along with a S106 
Legal Agreement. Target Committee 
date is yet to be confirmed. 

No 

Pallett Hill Quarry, Catterick 
Village, Nr Richmond 
 
NY/2017/0326/ENV 
(C1/18/00013/CM) 

Variation of condition No's 2, 5 & 8 of Planning 
Permission Ref. C1/15/250/PA/F dated 7th 
November 1994 to facilitate an extension to the 
permitted area of extraction, an amendment to the 
restoration design and to alter the period for 
completion of all mineral operations from 31st 
December 2017 to 31st December 2024 and the 
restoration of the site from 31st December 2018 to 
31st December 2025 

20.12.17 Committee Out for re-consultation and to be 
determined at 22 February 
committee 

No – to be 
requested 
upon 
confirmation 
of being 
placed on 
committee 
agenda 

Old London Road Quarry, 
Stutton, Tadcaster 
 
NY/2018/0009/FUL 
(C8/2018/0180/CPO) 

Extraction of 30,000 tonnes of limestone and 
importation of 600,000 tonnes of construction 
waste to complete restoration and export of 
300,000 tonnes of secondary aggregate 

9.2.18 Committee ES being prepared by applicant.  Extension of 
Time 
Requested  

Whitewall Quarry, Welham 
Road, Norton on Derwent, 
North Yorkshire, YO17 9EH 
 
NY/2018/0167/FUL 
(C3/18/00967/CPO)  

Retrospective application for a 2.4 hectare 
extension to an inert and demolition recycling area. 

30.8.18 Committee Agent confirmed, on 21st January 
2021, consideration being given to 
the submission of a consolidating 
application which could lead to a 
withdrawal of this application. Agent 
confirmed on 13th May 2021 the 
intention that the application continue 

No  

P
age 76



 

NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /5 

OFFICIAL 

Site Address  
NY application ref. no. 
(LPA ref. no.) 
 

Proposed Development Date 
registered 
as valid 

Delegated 
or 
Committee 
item 

Reasons why still in hand  Is an agreed 
Extension of 
Time (EoT) in 
place? 
Yes/No 

to be progressed to conclusion. 
Target Committee date is yet to be 
confirmed.  

Pallett Hill Quarry, Leeming 
Lane North, Catterick 
Village, DL10 7JX 
NY/2019/0130/FUL 
(C1/19/00587/CM) 

Proposed retention of quarry access until 31st 
December 2023 

14.8.19 Delegated Application on hold. Awaiting 
NY/2017/0326/FUL to be determined 
at committee 

No - 
Extension of 
Time to be 
requested 

Land to the rear of Unit 1, 
Skipton Old Airfield, 
Sandhutton, Thirsk, North 
Yorkshire, YO7 4EG 
NY/2019/0026/FUL 
(C2/19/02210/CCC) 

Change of use of land to a roadstone recycling 
plant, to include the erection of a concrete holding 
bay 2.4 metres high, erection of a green palisade 
perimeter fence with a sliding access gate 2.4 
metres high, siting of a mobile crushing plant, 
(14.79) sq. metre portable cabin for 
office/wc//welfare facilities & the provision of 2 car 
parking spaces. The erection of an acoustic wall of 
5m in height to the south and east boundaries of 
the development. 

21.8.19 Committee Reported to January Committee 
2020, resolved to grant subject to a 
S106 agreement. Applicant has 
decided as of September 2020 to 
complete on the land purchase first 
and then complete on the Section 
106 thereafter. The completion of the 
Agreement remains pending.  

No 

Washfold Farm, Leyburn, 
North Yorkshire, DL8 5JZ 
NY/2020/0168/FUL – 
(C1/19/00899/CM) 

Erection of a ready mix concrete plant and 
associated aggregate storage 

18.12.19 Committee Committee report drafted and under 
review. 

No 

Birdsall Estates Company 
Ltd, Birdsall to Leavening 
Brow, Birdsall, Malton, 
YO17 9NU 
NY/2020/0182/FUL) - 
C3/20/00287/CPO 

Digging of trenches and excavation for the laying 
of a piped communal waste disposal system 
including installation of package treatment plant 
(30 sq. meter) and associated manholes to 
connect 33 properties, erection of 1.2 metre high 
fence around the perimeter of proposed treatment 
plant and formation of access track/hard-standing 
area (37.5 sq. meters) 

11.3.20 Delegated Awaiting for further information from 
the applicant, requested on 13 July 
2020, in relation to Landscape, 
Arboricultural and Natural England 
consultation responses. Response 
from Agent received on 19 April 
2021, still working on requested 
information to address consultees 
response. Chased applicant for 
further information, response from 
Applicant received on 27 October 
2021, still working on requested 
information.    

No. Previous 
EoT agreed 
until 30.09.20 
Further EoT 
to be 
requested. 

P
age 77



 

NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /6 

OFFICIAL 

Site Address  
NY application ref. no. 
(LPA ref. no.) 
 

Proposed Development Date 
registered 
as valid 

Delegated 
or 
Committee 
item 

Reasons why still in hand  Is an agreed 
Extension of 
Time (EoT) in 
place? 
Yes/No 

Barton Quarry, Barton, 
Richmond, DL10 6NF – 
NY/2020/0051/73 
(C1/20/00277/CM) 

Variation of Condition No's 2 & 20 of Planning 
Permission Ref. C1/93/113C/CM to allow a 
revision of the approved restoration scheme and 
an associated extension of the area into which it is 
permitted to place imported inert material 

14.4.20 Delegated Received advice form legal, sent 
advice to applicant, awaiting 
applicants response 

No.  

Potgate Quarry, Water 
Lane, North Stainley  
NY/2020/0079/ENV 
(C6/20/03082/CMA) 

Lateral extension to Potgate Quarry to work 3.3 
million tonnes of limestone until 2042 and 
restoration for a final two years until 2044 

4.8.20 Delegated Awaiting completion of S106 
agreement. 

No - to be 
requested 

Munford's Haulage Yard, 
Tollerton Road, Tollerton, 
YO61 1RB 
NY/2020/0105/FUL 
(C2/20/01935/CCC) 

Change of use of land and buildings (Class B8) to 
form a waste transfer station with the erection of a 
site office (20.5 sq. metres) and the storage of 
skips 

25.8.20 Committee Still awaiting update on the status of 
obtaining the additional information 
including noise monitoring. 
Committee report in progress 

Not yet 

Seamer Carr Waste 
Management Site, Dunslow 
Road, Eastfield, 
Scarborough, YO12 4QA 
NY/2020/0101/73 
 

Variation of condition No. 1 of Planning Permission 
Ref. C4/9/33L/FL to allow for the continuation of 
composting and recycling after December 2020 

6/10/20 Delegated Meeting convened on 6th August 
2021 to discuss ways to move 
forward on the applications. 

No. 

Seamer Carr Waste 
Management Site, Dunslow 
Road, Eastfield, 
Scarborough, YO12 4QA 
NY/2020/0102/73) 

Variation of condition No. 1 of Planning Permission 
Ref. C4/02/01477/CM to allow for the continuation 
of recycling after December 2020 

6/10/20 Delegated Meeting convened on 6th August 
2021 to discuss ways to move 
forward on the applications. 
Consideration being given to the 
withdrawal of this particular 
application. 

No. 

Seamer Carr Waste 
Management Site, Dunslow 
Road, Eastfield, 
Scarborough, YO12 4QA 
NY/2020/0103/73 

Variation of Condition No. 2 of Planning 
Permission Ref. C4/06/01274/CC to allow for the 
permanent retention of the gatehouse and the 
weighbridge. 

6/10/20 Delegated Meeting convened on 6th August 
2021 to discuss ways to move 
forward on the applications. 

No. 

Former Watergarth Quarry, 
Rawfield Lane, Fairburn, 
Selby, WF11 9LD 

Infilling and restoration of the former Watergarth 
Quarry with excavated materials, erection of a 
temporary single storey site cabin, formation of 

29/10/20 Committee Awaiting further information from 
Applicant, requested on 11 January 
2022, in relation to application 

 Yes-EoT 
agreed until 
19.11.2021 

P
age 78



 

NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /7 

OFFICIAL 

Site Address  
NY application ref. no. 
(LPA ref. no.) 
 

Proposed Development Date 
registered 
as valid 

Delegated 
or 
Committee 
item 

Reasons why still in hand  Is an agreed 
Extension of 
Time (EoT) in 
place? 
Yes/No 

NY/2020//0162/FUL 
(C8/2020/1204/CPO) 

temporary site access, car parking area and 
associated hardstanding 

boundary and tunnel structure. 
Applicant in process of getting site 
surveyed to confirm extent of tunnel 
structure. 
Committee report in preparation 

Eggborough Sand Pit, 
Weeland Road, Hensall, 
Selby, DN14 0RL 
NY/2020/0184/73 
(C8/2020/1248/CPO) 

Variation of condition No's 2, 3 & 22 of Planning 
Permission C8/2018/0563/CPO to allow for the 
extraction of sand for a further two years until 31st 
December 2022, revise the restoration contours 
and a Restoration Aftercare Management Plan 

9/11/20 Delegated On Hold. Linked to 
NY/2020/0183/FUL to be determined 
once this has been to committee 

No – to be 
requested 

Land to the west of 
Eggborough Sandpit, 
Weeland Road, Goole 
Hensall, DN14 0PT 
NY/2020/0183/FUL  

Proposed infilling and restoration of former mineral 
workings on land adjacent to Eggborough Sandpit 

9/11/20 Committee Committee report being prepared.  No – to be 
requested 

Middleton Lodge, Kneeton 
Lane, Middleton Tyas, 
DL10 6NJ 
NY/2021/0012/73 
(C1/21/00118/PLANYC 

Variation of conditions 1,6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 
27, 30 of planning permission C1/14/00747/CM 
which relates to site access arrangements at 
Middleton Lodge, Kneeton Lane, Middleton Tyas, 
Richmond, DL10 6NJ 

21.1.21 Committee Committee report in circulation No 

Hensall Quarry Inert Waste 
Landfill Site, off Heck 
Lane/New Road, Hensall 
NY/2021/0050/73 
C8/2021/0345/CPO 

Variation of condition No's 2, 3 & 22 of Planning 
Permission Ref. C8/2013/1219/CPO to allow for 
the continuation of site operations and restoration 

10.2.21 Delegated Delegated report in preparation 
following site meeting and further 
landscape information. Awaiting final 
response from Network Rail. 

No – to be 
requested. 

Low Grange Quarry, West 
Lane, Melsonby, DL10 5PN 
NY/202/0059/73 

Variation of condition No. 9 of Planning Permission 
Ref. C1/15/00326/CM to increase the vehicle 
movements from 24 per day up to 60 vehicle 
movements per day (30 in and 30 out) 

7.4.21 Committee Meeting convened with the Agent on 
24th August 2021 to discuss the two 
applications and in particular 
highway-related matters which 
concluded with the applicant 
proposing the drafting of a S106 
legal agreement regarding lorry 
routing. 

EoT 
agreement in 
place until 
30.9.21 to be 
subject to a 
request to 
extend due to 
receipt of draft 
legal 

P
age 79



 

NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /8 

OFFICIAL 

Site Address  
NY application ref. no. 
(LPA ref. no.) 
 

Proposed Development Date 
registered 
as valid 

Delegated 
or 
Committee 
item 

Reasons why still in hand  Is an agreed 
Extension of 
Time (EoT) in 
place? 
Yes/No 

agreement 
pending. 

Low Grange Quarry, West 
Lane, Melsonby, DL10 5PN 
NY/2021/0060/73 

Variation of condition No. 47 of Planning 
Permission Ref. C1/32/153-/CM to increase the 
vehicle movements from 24 per day up to 60 
vehicle movements per day (30 in and 30 out) 

7.4.21 Committee Meeting convened with the Agent on 
24th August 2021 to discuss the two 
applications and in particular 
highway-related matters which 
concluded with the applicant 
proposing the drafting of a S106 
legal agreement regarding lorry 
routing. 

EoT 
agreement in 
place until 
30.9.21 to be 
subject to a 
request to 
extend due to 
receipt of draft 
legal 
agreement 
pending 

Gebdykes Quarry (and land 
to the north), Gebdykes 
Farm, Burton-on-Yore, 
Harrogate, North Yorkshire, 
HG4 4BT 
NY/2021/0124/ENV 

Northern extension to the quarry to extract 5.3 
million tonnes of limestone by 2037 and restoration 
of the site by 2039 

11.6.21 Delegated Awaiting completion of S106. Not yet – to 
be requested. 

Highmoor Quarry, Warren 
Lane, Bramham, Tadcaster 
NY/2021/0046/73 
(C8/2021/0944/CPO) 

Application for the variation of condition No 1 of 
Planning Permission C8/73/150L/PA, which relates 
to an extension of time for the continued extraction 
of magnesian limestone and storage of materials 
excavated for a further 5 years until 28 July 2026. 

19.7.21 Delegated In November 2021 the Agent 
proposed the submitted restoration 
plan and relevant report to be 
amended in light of the comments of 
the Yorkshire Wildlife Trust. 

No – to be 
requested 

Land adjacent to and to the 
east of the current Escrick 
Quarry to the south west of 
Escrick in North Yorkshire 
NY/2021/0180/FUL 
(C8/2021/1133/CPO) 

Construction of a site reception area comprising of 
an office building (approx. 112.5sq.m), vehicle 
maintenance building (approx. 49sq.m) and 
storage area, wheel wash and weighbridge office 
(approx.12.7sq. m) and car park 

6.8.21 Delegated Awaiting further information 
regarding drainage and landscape. 

Not yet - to be 
requested. 

* The Development Management Procedure Order 2015 (Part 9, Article 40, Paragraph 13) allows for Local Authorities to “finally dispose” of 
applications for which the statutory period for determination has elapsed and the subsequent period for appealing against non-determination has 
passed. 

P
age 80



 

NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /9 

OFFICIAL 

APPENDIX 
 
Monitoring & Compliance Statistics Report – Quarter 3 (the period 1 October to 31 December 2021) 2021/22 
 
Table 1 – Complaints/alleged breaches of planning control received this quarter 
 
Site Address District No. of 

Complaints 
Subject of Complaints Date of 

receipt of 
complaint 

Action Resolved? 

County Matters  
 Harrogate Road 
North Rigton 

Harrogate 1 Unauthorised Disposal of 
Waste Materials 

19.11.21 Forwarded this on to EA and 
also emailed complainant asking 
for evidence (photographs). EA 
are now dealing with this matter. 

Yes 

County Council Development 
       P

age 81



 

NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /10 
OFFICIAL 

Table 2 – Updates on ‘live’ complaints/alleged breaches of planning control received prior to this quarter  
 
Site Address District No. of 

Compla
ints 

Subject of Complaints Date of 
receipt of 
complaint 

Action Resolved? 

County Matters  
Land to south of 
Swinsty 
Reservoir 
(cmp/0439) 

Harrogate 1 Tipping of material from a 
building development 
without planning permission 

26.05.21 Written explanation requested 
from developer by 17.10.21 
Yorkshire Water contacted 
17.10.21 and confirmed material 
deposited over their wayleave  
without their consent. Discussion 
with Yorkshire Water in progress.  

 Ongoing 

Escrick Railway 
Cutting 
(cmp/0436) 

Selby 3 Unauthorised tipping of sub 
and top soil on a previously 
approved site. 

23.3.21 Multiple Site visits conducted, 
landowner to submit application 
for part of site October 2021. Site 
visit on 13th Jan 2022. 

On-going 

Riverside Farm, 
Bridge Hewick 
(cmp/0431) 

Harrogate 1 Importation & processing of 
wood waste and alleged 
making of compost on site 
 

17.2.21 Site owner contacted & replied.  
Online meeting with Harrogate 
BC & site owner.  Harrogate BC 
met owner on site, awaiting 
update from Harrogate BC re 
meeting with site owner. 

Ongoing 

Field north of 
B6265, opposite 
former Toft Gate 
Lime Kilns, 
Greenhow Hill, 
Pateley Bridge 
(cmp/0420) 

Harrogate 1 Alleged unauthorised 
extraction on land 
comprised field at 412977 
464497, Coldstones Quarry 
to Red Brae Bank 

29.6.20 Site viewed from public highway 
in July 2020.  Further activity 
reported by complainant & by 
parish council June 2021. Letter 
sent 29 July 2021 to registered 
landowners requesting response 
to alleged extraction.  Awaiting 
response to letter to owners sent 
29 July 2021. 
 

Ongoing 

Womersley 
Quarry 
Cmp/0447  

Selby 1 Womersley Quarry 
Conditions 

9.8.21 Damage to fence and quad bikes 
using it as access to quarry. Site 
Operator stated going to repair 
fence and increase security. 

Fence repaired 6.12.21, 
case closed 10.1.22. 

P
age 82



 

NYCC – 22 February 2022– Planning & Regulatory Functions Committee 
Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications /11 
OFFICIAL 

Site Address District No. of 
Compla
ints 

Subject of Complaints Date of 
receipt of 
complaint 

Action Resolved? 

Waiting for confirmation that 
fence has been repaired. 

County Council Development  
       

 
 
Existing Enforcement Issues 
 
Formal Enforcement notices served by the County Council  
No notices were served during this period. 
 
Table 3 - Monitoring and Compliance Visits undertaken in Quarter 3 (Minerals and Waste Sites only)  
Site District Date Visited 
   
   
   
   

 
Team meeting took place on 20.10.21 to simplify the report on enforcement matters (tables 3, 4 and 5 were removed). 

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting - To agree as an accurate record the Minutes of the meeting held on 18th January 2022
	5a C1/21/00118/PLANYC - Planning application for the Variation of conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 of planning permission C1/14/00747/CM to revise working times for Phase 3 and the restoration scheme at Middleton Lodge Quarry, Kneeton Lane, Middleton Tyas, Richmond - Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services
	5b Addendum Report - Planning application for the Variation of conditions 1, 6, 7, 10, 14, 20, 24, 26, 27, 30 of planning permission C1/14/00747/CM to revise working times for Phase 3 and the restoration scheme at Middleton Lodge Quarry, Kneeton Lane, Middleton Tyas, Richmond
	6 Items Dealt with under the Scheme of Delegation - Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services
	The Items reported below have been determined between:  15 December 21 to 18 January 22 Inclusive
	A. County Council Development
	NY/2021/0271/PAA  Burton Salmon Community Primary School, Ledgate Lane, Burton Salmon, Leeds, LS25 5JY
	Decision Notice: 12 Jan 2022
	NY/2021/0270/73 (C3/21/01562/CPO)  Pickering Community Junior School, Middleton Road, Pickering, North Yorkshire, YO18 8AJ
	Decision Notice: 12 Jan 2022
	NY/2021/0259/PAA  Thirsk School And Sixth Form College, Topcliffe Road, Sowerby, YO7 1RZ
	Decision Notice: 16 Dec 2021
	NY/2021/0185/CLW (C1/21/01013/CM)  Croft Bridge, Northallerton Road, Croft on Tees, DL2 2ST
	Decision Notice: 17 Dec 2021
	NY/2021/0055/A27  Sherburn Hungate Primary School,
	North Crescent, Sherburn In Elmet,
	LS25 6DD
	Decision Notice: 10 Jan 2022
	B. County Matter Development

	7 Publication by Local Authorities of Information about the handling of Planning Applications - Report of the Corporate Director – Business and Environmental Services
	Formal Enforcement notices served by the County Council


